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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of U Microfinance Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of thelFinanciaI Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of U Microfinance Bank Limited [the
Bank), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2022, and the profit and
loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity, the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinign and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the balance sheet, profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement together with
the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017}, Microfinance Institutions Ordinance, 2001 and the directives issued by
the State Bank of Pakistan in the manner so required and respectively give a true and
fair view of the state of the Bank's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the profit,
the comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs)
as applicable in Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
staterments in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), Microfinance
Institutions Crdinance, 2001 and the directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes cur apinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effactiveness of the Bank's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
inciuding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)

b)

cl

d)

proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 {XIX of 2017);

the balance sheet, profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement together
with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017), Microfinance Institutions Ordinance, 2001 and the directives
issued by the State Bank of Pakistan and are in agreement with the books of
account and returns;

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Bank’s business; and

zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1880 {XVIIl of
1980), was deducted by the Bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund
established under section 7 of that Grdinance.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
Muhammad Ubbaid Ullah.

PN Tageer Vel Ll

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Islamabad

Date: 156 March 2023

UDIN: AR202210240BTgFyC78k
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U MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASSETS

Cash and balances with SBP and NBP
Balances with other Banks/ NBFls/ MFBs

Lending to financial institution
Investments - net of provisions
Advances - net of provisions
Cperating fixed assets

Cther assats

Deferred tax asset

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and other accounts
Borrowings

Subordinated debt

Other liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Totel Liabilities

Net Assets

REPRESENTED BY:

Share capital

Discount on jssue of share capital
Advance against issue of shares
Statutory and general reserves
Depositors' protaction fund
Unappropriated profit

Surplus / [deficit) on revaluation of assets

Deferred grants
Total Capital

MEMORANDUM / OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Note

14
15
16
17

18

19
5.14.1
5.14.2

20

21

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
7,452,332,589 3,798,930,850

1,278,155,860
6,581,567,250
137,330,941,404
59,283,993,959
4,763,987,510

6,223,904,412
46,564,519,779
34,375,729.318
2,886,170,228

1,997,370,695 10,050,583,152
2,609,783,540 677,447,619
221,296,132,807 104,578,285,358
92,200,411,122 55,000,289,695

116,123,715,137
1,833,591,286
4,038,262,247

36,880,686,164
1,798,920,000
3,407,296,747

214,195,979,792

97,087,192,606

7.100,153,015

7.,481,092,752

5,085,714,290 4,085,714,290
{26,714,290} (25,714,290}

- 1,000,000,000
1.083,074,935 633,083,649
270,768,733 158,270,912
673,955,800 1,926,314,403
7,087,799,468 7,777,668,964
(2,014,787) (288,630,328}
14,368,334 2,054,116

7,100,153,015

7.491,092,752

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial stataments.

PRESIDENT IkHIEF EXECUTIVE

CHAIRMAN

DIRECTOR

oty

e

&L—mw-

DIRECTOR




e Pa'F L % " ) W a" I e " s T a8 h O W

U MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
Note Rupees Aupees
Mark-up / retum / interest earned 22 20,742.343,719 12,215,993,833
Mark-up / return / interest expensad 23 {14,139,020,162) (5,589,495,387)
Net mark-up / interest Income 6.603,323557 6,626,498,446
Cradit loss allowance and write offs - nat 9 & 105 1,338,155,745 {1,512,900,464)
Impact of markup waiver {453,495,303) -
Nat mark-up / interest income after provisions 7,487,984,000 5,113,697,982
NON MARK-UP / NON INTEREST INCOME
Fee, commission and brokerage intcme 24 1,300,633,449 1,018,362,875
Othar incoma 25 560,683,284 259,408,477
Total non-markup / non interes! income 1,867,316,733 1,277,771,351
9,355,300,733 6,391,369,334
NON MARK-UP 7/ NON INTEREST EXPENSES
Administrative expenses 26 8,890,033,056 5,035,205,163
Othar provislons / write offs - -
Other charges 27 10,297 850 18,000
Totel nen-markup / non intarast expenses 6,900,330,908 5,035,224,163
Extra ordinary / unusual items - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 2,454,969,827 1,356,145,171
Workers' Wellare Fund MWWF} [49.099,385) {€7,110,218}
2,405,870,432 1,329,034,952
TAXATION
Currant {B31,843,857) {429,474,114)
Prior years 31,893,787 {12,701,793)
Deterrad 894,236,077 224,177,922
28 (155,914,003) [217,997,985)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 2,249,958,429 1.111,036,967
Unappropriated profit brought forward 1,928,314,403 1,099,564,241
Adjustment on initial Bpplication of IFRS 9 {2,742,377,780) -
{818,063,377}
Less: Other comprehensive Income (2,162,145} (6,527,564}
Profit available for appropriation 1,431,730,807 2,204,073,645
APPROPRIATIONS;
Transfer to:
Statutory reserves 449,991,288 222,207,393
Capltal raserve - -
Contribution to MSDF / DPF / RMF 112,497,821 55,651,848
Revanus resarve - -
issue of Dividend @ 32 paisa per ordinary shara
and 95.3 peisa per preference Shares (2021: Rs Nil) 195,286,000 -
757,778,107 277,768,241
UNAPPROPRIATED FROFIT CARRIED FORWARD 673,958,800 1,926,374.404
EARNINGS PER SHARE 32 8.10 3.60
The annaxed notes from 1 10 40 form an integral part of thesa financial staternemt m
4
<«
w/_ 5 J@w.w.-
PRESIDENT / CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN DIRECTO DIRECTOR
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U MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 2,249,956,429 1,111,038,967
Qther comprehensive income for the yeer
[temy that will not be reclassiied to profit and loss account:
Loss en revaluation of essets transferred to profit and loss 17.3.3 (3,227,082) (8,193,752}
Tex Impact 13 1,064,937 2,666,188

{2,162,145) {6,527,564)
Comprehensive Income for the year trensferred to equity 2,247,794,284 1,104,509,403
Componants of comprehensive income for the year not transferred to equity:
Hems thet may be reclassified to profit and loss:
Surptus f {Delicit] on ravaluation of FVTOC!] investments 9,244,225 {340,246,013)
Related tax eHect [3,050,654) 50,086,811

6,193,631 {289,259,102)
Impact of reverssel ot geficit on reveiuation of investments held et fair value

through other comprehensive income dus to chapge in classification 265,693,780 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,519,681.895 815,250,301
The annexed notes {rom 1 to 40 form an inegral part of these financlal statement
-[A-Lh--v'\’l,r‘/h #
! -
PRESIDENT / GHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR



U MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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2022 2021
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note Rupeas Rupess
Frofit belore taxetion 2,405,870,432 1,329,034,962
Less: Dlvidend income - -
2,405,870,432 1,329,034,952
Adjustments for non-cesh charges
Depreciation of pjoperty and equipment 11.2 487,289,106 404,964,461
Amortization of intangible sssats 11.3 84,555,968 50,374,157
Deprecistion of right of use asset 11.4 431,502,038 260,923,394
Credit loss allowsnce agsins! edvences 105 - -

- {Reverssl) / charga for the yoar [1,355,108,781) 1,512,900,464
Advences writlen olf egainst provision 10.6 {335,282,362} {790,348,087)
Credit logs allowance agsinst invesimants 16,853,035 -
Provision for gratuity - charge for the ysar 28 57,203,735 40,983,207
Impact of merkup waiver 453,485,303 -
{Gain} / loss on sele of oparsting fixed assets - net 11.2.2 &11.4.1 (1,107,207} 6,518,030
Finance cherpges on leased assels 28 257,040,248 156,172,345

76,520,483 1,662,487,977
2,482,330,915 2,991,622,929
increase in opersaling assets
Advances {27 650,642,421} (5,091,982,796)
Other assets {excluding sdvance taxation} 8,053,212,457 [2,253,336,802)
Increase / {decreass) in operating liebilities
Bills paysbles 51,981,650 60,275,883
Deposits and other accounts 37.200,121,427 8,895,648,842
Other liabilities {excluding current 1ex, bills payable
finence lsase and provision for gratuity) (522,260,692} 436,078,404
17,132,412,421 2,046,684,511
Nat cash generated from operalions 18,614,802,336 5,038,207,440
Payments against provisions held against off-balance sheet cbligations
Contributions to gratuity fund 17.3.10 {80,568,301) {38,923,143)
Income texes paid (843,805,133} [373,206,856)
Net cash genersted from operating sctivities 18,890,329,896 4,826,077,441
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net investments in available for sale securities - Governmaent sacurities (98,616,421,625} {21,149,279,543)
Net invesimants in term deposits receipts 7,750,000,000 {1,830,000,000}
Lending 1o financial institution {6,581,567,250} 450,000,000
investments in aparating fixed essets (1,259,842 271} {599,137,836)
Sale procesds of operaling {ixed assets 1,537,580 6,837,695
Nat cash ysed in investing activities (98,608,293,666) [22,921,779,684)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANGING ACTIVITIES
Payments of suberdinated loan (148,820,000} (240,000
Borrowings chteinadfirepaid) during the period 75,243,028,973 23,806,495,522
Addition in Subordinated debt 184,491,286 -
Payments of lease obligallons {661,797,402) [355,044,598)
Dividend psid {195,286,000) -
Net cash genersted from financing aclivities 78,420,616,857 23,251,210,926
Net [decresese) f increase in cash and cesh aquivalents {1,295,346,914) 4,955,508,6883
Cash and cesh equivalents at beginning of the year 10,023,835,262 5,088,326,579
Cash and cash equivelents at end of the year 2 8,726,488,448 10,023,835,262

e
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PRESIDENT / ﬁ F EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

The annexed notas from 1 to 40 form en integral par of thesa financial statemants.



U MICHOFINANCE BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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Diacount an Statutory Depositars' Unapproprlated
Share capital Advanca agninst lssue of share rgsarva protection fund profit Tatal
lgaue of sharas .
capital
Rupaas
Balanea at 31 Decambar 2020 3,085,714,290 1,000,000,000 (25,714,290} 410,878,258 102,719,064 1,089,564,241 5.673,159,561
Profit for the year - - - - - 1.111,036,967 1,111,038,967
Other comprehansive income - - - - - 16,527,564 (6.527,564)
Total comprahensive incoma - - - - - 1,104,509,402 1,104,509,403
Transter ta: -
Statutory raserve - - - 222,207,393 - (222,207,393) -
Depositors' Protaction Fund - - 55,551,848 {55,551,848) -
Transactlons with swnaers, recordad directly In aquity
Contributions and distributlona
Issua of preference sheras 1,000,000,000 {1,000,000,000} - - - - -
Conversion of subardinatad dabt as advance
agsinst issue of prafarence shares - 1,000,000,000 - - - - 1.000.000.0G0
Balence st 31 Dacambar 2021 - as previously reportad 4,085,714,290 1,000,000,000 {25,714,290) 633,083,849 158,270,912 1,328,314,403 7,777.668,964
Adjustmant on inltiel application of IFRS 3 (Refer to nota 3) - - - - - {2,742.372,780) _ [2,742,377,780]
4,086,714,290 1,000,000,000 (25,714,290} 833,003,649 168,270,912 {818,083,377) 5,035.291,184
Profit for the year - - - - - 2,249,356 429 2,249,956,429
Cther comprahensiva income - - - - - {2,162,145) {2,162.145]
Total comprehansiva Incoma - . - - . 2.247,794,284 2.247,794,284
Transler to:
Statutory resecve - - - 449,591,236 - (449,931,2886) -
Depasitars' Pratactian Fungd - . - - 112,497,821 (112,497.821) -
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in aquity
Contributlons and distributions
Issue of Dividend @ 32 paisa per ordinary share and 95.3 paisa
par preference Shares - - - - - (195,286,000) (195,286,000)
Additicnal Tier-1 Capital TFCs 1,000,600,000 {1,000,000,000) - - - bl -
Balance et 31 Decamber 2022 5,085,714,290 - [28,714,290) 1,083,074,935 276,768,733 673,566,800 7,097,739 468
The annexadynotas from 1 to 48 form an integral part of thase financial statemants. u ’
el
/ iﬁ% ‘ Sho—vinyofl?
./l__—- - *
PRESIDENT / CH{EF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR BIRECTOR



U MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

On 30 August 2012, Pakisten Telecommunication Company Limited (PTCL, the Parent Company} scquited 108% shareholding
of Rozgat Microtinance Bank Limited, Incorporated in Karachi on 28 October 2003 under the repealsd Companies Ordinance,
1884 inow Compenies Aci, 2017}, and its name was changed to U Microlinance Bank Limited ithe Benk} with effect from 07
December 2012. Cn 31 January 2013, the Bank was grantgd license by State Bank of Pakistan {SBP] for commencement of
natonwide microfinance banking operations.

On 11 July 2013, spprovat for the netionwide commarcigl launch of Branchless Benking Services (BBS) was recelvad from SBP.
The Bank ¢commenced commerciel oparations of BBS en 23 July 2003,

The Bank's principal business is 10 sssist in stimulaling progress, prosperity snd social pesce in society through creation of
income ganerating opportunitiea for the amall entrepraneur under the Microfinance Institutions Qrdinence, 2001, The Benk slso
providas brenchless banking services. The Benk'a head office end the principal place of business is locsted at Jinnsh Super
market, F-7 Markaz, Islernabad, Pekistan.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limitad (PACRA} assigned the long-term enifity reting of the Bank a1 "A+" end short term
raling at 'A-1" on 16 Sepiembar 2022.

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The flnancial Information has been presented in accordence with the reguirements of format prescribad by SBP Banking
Supervision Deperiment (BSC) Cicuar number 1% dated 30 Decamber 2003, Further sdailional disciosures hsve bean
incorporated 1o comply with the requiremnants of 1IFRS 9 due 1o its esrly adoption by the Bank.

The Financial Results of Islamic Microlingnce Division |IMD) of the Bank has been consclideted in these finencial stalements
for reponing purpose, after eliminating Inter branch transgction/balances. Key figures ot the \MD, derviad ftom the related
accounling records of the Bank, are distiosed in relavant notas to theee financial stetemaents,

3 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in sccordence with accounting end reporting stendsrds es applicable in
Pakistan. The sccounting and reporting standards as applicable In Pakisten for financial reporting comprise of:

- international Finencial Reporling S1andards ({IFRS) issued by the Internations! Accounting Standerds Board (IASB) as notifiad
under the Companies Acl, 2017;

- Isiemic Finencial Accounitng Standaids (IFAS) issued by the Institiute of the Chenered Accountents of Pakistan as nolified
under the Companies Act, 2017,

« Provisions of and directives issued under Tha Microlinence Institutions Ordinence, 2001 {the MFI Ordinance] and the
Companies Act, 2017, snd

- directives issued by the SBP and tha Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

whenever the requirements of the Microfinance Institution Ordinance, 2001, Compenies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by
the SBP end the SECP ditfer wilth the reguirements of IFRS or IFAS, the requirements of the Microfinance inatitution
QOrdinance, 2001, the Companles Act, 2017 and the sard directives shall prevell,

Stata Bank of Pakistan {SBP through vts BPRD circular No. 4 of 2019 dated 23 Oclober 2019 had dacidsd thet the sHective
date of IFRS 9 implementation was 01 Januery 2021 for banks/DFIs/MFBs. Howsever, given the prevalent COVID-19 {Corons
Virug Diseass 2019} pandernic situgtion, SBP thraugh fts BPRD cireular No, 16 of 2020 dated 26 March 2020 had decidad 1o
axtend 1he timeline of 1ha lasks related to IFRS 9 implementation lill perieds beginning on or after 01 July 2020. Moreover in
view ol COVID-15 impact and banking indusiry representations, SBP vide its BPRD cirular letter no. 24 of 2021 deted 05 July
2021 hss decided to implement IFAS 9 from 01 Jenuary 2022, However as per Stete Bank of Pakistan {SBP)" 8PRD circulsr
letier no. 3 of 2022, the applicabiiity of IFRS 9 1o Microfinence Benks in Pekistan was further deferred to sccounting periods
baginning on or atter January 1, 2024, The Bank, however, has early edopted IFRS 9 'Finenciel Instruments® duting the yeer,
The impact of esrly edoption of IFAS 9 'Financial instruments’ s distiosed in note 5.1 o these finencial statemants. M\\\

r



U MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4.1

4.2

4.3

The SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10, dated 26 Augus? 2002 has deferred the spplicablity of the Intemational Accounting Standard
{1AS) 38, “Finencial insiruments: Racognillon and Massurement™ and |AS 40, “Invasiment Proparty”™ for banking companles tif
further instructions. Further, the SECP vide its SRO B33 (1) 2014, dstad 10 July 2014 has delerred the applicabllity of
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, “Financls! Instruments: Recognitton and Measurament”, IAS 40, “Investment
Propeny” and Inernationsl Financia! Reporting Standard IFRS) 7, "Financiai Instruments: Disclosures™ for banking companies
1!l furthat instructions. Accordingly, the requirements of these standerds have not been congidered In the praparation of these
lingnclel atatameants.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
Accounting convention
Tha financiel 5tetements are prepsrad under the hislorigal cost convention except:

» Investments clessified as "Fair value through profit or loss' and ‘Fair velue through other comprehensiva income’ which are

measured 8t fair value,
* Nat obligations in respect of defined benelit schemas which are carried at theit present velues.
+ Hight of use ssset and lesse liabilily which are initlelly measured 8t thelr prasent values.

Functional and pressntation currency

These financial stetementa are presented in Pakistan Rupees (PKR), which is the Bank’s functional cutrancy. All financigl
information presented in PKR has been rounded off to the nearest thousend PKR, unless olharwise stated.

Use of Judgemeant snd estimates

in preparing thase lingncial statements, menagemsant has made judgments, estimetes and assumptions that effect the
spplication of the Bank's accounting policies end the feported smounts of assats, liebilitas, income and expenses. Actual
rasults may ditter from these estimates.

Esumates end underlying Bssumptions ara reviewad on an ongoing basis. Revisions o aslimates are recognized prospactively.

Information abou! assumptions and eslimation uncarisintias or where judgment wes axercisad in epplication of eccounting
policies thal have g signilicant risk of resulting in a material adjusiment 1o the carrying amcunts of as5ets and liahilities within
tha yesr ended 31 Dacember 2022 is inclyded in the foliowing notes:

Slgnificant accounting estimates

{a)  Criterin / rates lor expected credil loss ageinst non-perdorming advences s per the requirements of the 'IFRS 9 Finenclal
Instruments application instructions’ 1ssued by SBP BPRD circular no. 3 of 2022 deted 05 July 2022 (note 5.1) ’

fb) Messurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumplions (note 5.13.2)

OGthar accounting estimates

fc)  Criteria / rates for axpected credit loss against investmenis as per the raguiremants of the 'IFRAS 9 Financial Instruments
application instructions’ (note 5.1}

(d) Uselul ves, reassessad values, residual velues and depraciations amortisstion method for oparating flxed assets (note
5.6

{a) Recognition of deferred tax asseals and astimation of incoma 1ax provision {note 5,10}

{f) recognition and measuremeni of provisions snd contingencles: key essumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an
outllow of resources (note 5.15)

{g) For recognition of leasad llabliities and corresponding right of use asaets under IFRS-186 {note 5.7 end nota 5.6.1) ngQ
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U MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
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Standards, Interpretstions end amendments to the secounting and reporting standards

The {ollowing Internations! Financial Reponing Standerds {JFRS - S1andards) 85 notlfied under the Compenies Act, 2017 end the
smendmaents and imearpretations thereto will be efiective for accounting periods beginning on or sftar 01 Jenuery 2023;

Ctassihication of liabilities 25 current or non-current [Amendmaenis 1o |AS 1 in January 2020} spply rerospsctively for the annual
periods beginning on or atter 1 January 2024 {as delerred vide amendments to [AS 1 in Ociober 2022) with eadier application
permittad. These amendments in the standards heve been edded to further clarfy when & lisbility is classitied as current.
Convartible debt mey nead 1o be reciassifind as ‘current’. The stendard also amends the aspect of ctassiication of liebility as
non-current by requiring the assessment of tha entity’s right st the end of the reperting period to defar the settiement of llebility
lor at least twelve monihs slter the reporting period. An entity's axpectation and discrelion at the reporting date 1o refinance or
10 raschedule pasyments on 8 long-lerm basis are no longer 1edevant for the classification of a Iwebliity a8 current of non-current.
An antity shall epply those smendmanis 1elrospectively in accordance with LAS B,

Noncurrent Liabilities with Covanants {emendmant 10 IAS 1 in Octobar 2022) eims 1o improve the informetion an entity

" provides when its right 1o deter settlement ol & lisbllity for at least twekve months is subject 10 complience with conditlons, The

amendmant 15 also intended 1o addrass concerns about classifying such a liabillty as current or non-cutrent. Only covenanis
with which 8 company must comply on or before the raporting date aflect tha classificatien of a liability &s current or non-
cutrent, Covenanis with which the compseny mus! comply after the reporting date (l.e. fulwe covenanis) do not affect 8
liebility's classilication at that date. However, when non-current flabilities are subject to future covensnts, companies will now
need lo disclose information lo help users understand the risk that those lishilities could become repayatle within 12 months
alter the reporting date. The emendments apply rewrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or atter 1 January
2024, with esrlier application permitted. These amendmants also specily the transition requirements for companias thet may
have satly-adopied tha previously lssuad bul not yet eflective 2020 smendmaents to IAS 1 (a3 relerred sbove).

Disclosure of Accounting Policies [Amendments to |AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) — the Board has issued amendmaents
on the apptication ol matariality to disclosure of sccounting policies and 1o heip companies provide usetul eccounting policy
disclosuras. The key amandmenis to JAS 1 include:

-taquiring companies o disclose their maierigl sccounting policies rether than their significant sccounting pollcies;
- cletilying thet eccounting palicies redeted 1o immoterial transactions, other events or condilions are themselves immaeterial and

8s such nesd ngl be disclosed; and
- clanfying that not ell accounting peficies thal relste to material transsections, other evenis or conditions are themselves

mategrigl 1o 8 company's financial s1atements,

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 o include guidance and two additional examples on the application of
malarislity lo accounling policy disclosures. The amendments are elfective for annust repading periods beginning on or aftar 1
Jenuary 2023 with sarlier application parmltied,

Deflinition of Accounting Estimates {Amandments 1o |AS 8) introduce 8 new definltion for eccaunting estimates ciarifying thet
they ara monetary amounts in tha financial statemants that are subject 10 measurement uncerginty, The amendmants also
cierify the relationship between accouniing policies end eccounting estimetes by specllying thet an entily gevelops en
sccounling eslimete to achigve the objeclive set oul by an accounling policy. The gmendments are effective for perods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application parmitted, and will apply prospactively to changes in sccounting
estimaies and changes in accounting palicies occurring on or attar the beglnning of the first annuat reporting paried in which th

company applies the emendments.

\
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Delerred Tax related (o Assels and Liabitities ariging from 8 Single Transection {Amendments to 1AS 12 narow the =cope of
the inilie! recognition exemption (IRE) so thal it does not apply 10 trensacuens thet give rise 1o equal and ol setting temporery
differences. As & result, companles will nesd to recognize s deferred tax esset and & deferred tex llability for 1emporary
ditlerences arising on initiel recognition of g lease and a decommissioning provision, For leases end decommissioning liebilities,
the associated deferred tax asset and ligbilitas will need 10 be recognized from the beginning of the earllest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognized s an edjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at that
date. The smendmaenis are ellective for annusl reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 wilh eerlier application

parmitted, :

Lesse Lwmbility In 8 Sele and Leasebeck famendment to IFRS 16 in Septamber 2022) edds subsequen! mesguremaent
requirements for 2ala and leasaback trenssctions that salisty the reaquirements to be accounted for as e sele. The amendment
confirms that on initisl recognition, the seller-lesses includes vaniable lesse payments when it measures a lasse [lability erising
from e sele-and-leaseback trensaclion. After inltlel recognition, ihe selierlesses applies the genars| requirements for
subsequant accounting of the iesse lisbility such that it recognizes no gein or loss relating to the right of use it retains. A aeller-
lessee may adopt dilerant epproachas thet satisly the new requirements on subsaquent measurement. The amendments sre
affective for annusl reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 Januery 2024 with eertier application permitted. Under 1AS 8, 8
sefler-lessee will need to spply the amendments ratrospectively 10 ssle-end-lasseback transeclions enterad into or after the
date of inltisl appfication of IFRS 16 and will need to identlfy and re-examine sale-and-leasebeck iransections entered Into since
implementation of IFRS 16 in 2018, snd potentislly restate those that included verigble leasa paymants, H &n entity {a seller-
lesses) applies the amendments aristng from Lease Liabilty in 8 Sale snd Leaseback for en earlier petiod. the antity shall

disclose that fact.

Ssle or Contibution of Assets betwaen en Investor end its Associste or Joint Venture {Amendmenis to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)
smend sccounting trestmant on loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also introduce new eccounting lor tess
traquent ttensaction thal involves naither cost nor full step-up of ceneln relsined interests in esgets thal 8r¢ not businesses.
The elfective date lor these changes hos been delerred Indefmnitely until the complstion ol 8 broader review,

Except as disciosed above, the menagement does not anticipste esrlty adoption of sbove stenderds end emendments and is \h
currenily avaluating the impact of adepiing these siendards. i q
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5.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Thu accounting policies 8s set out below have been epplied consistontly o 8ll parfods presaniad in thesa linancial stetamonts excaept
lor aarty adoption of IFRS 9 as disclosed balow:

IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF IFRS 9

Clessification and measuremant of finenciel Instrument:

IFAS 9 containg thioe principal classilication calegoties lor linanciel sssets: messuted o1 arnorlized cosl, fsir valua through othaot
comprehensive income ["FVOCIT™) snd tes volua through prolli end loss ["FVTPL"). This classlification is gaenersily based on the
businoss model in which 8 linancial asse1 is managad and is based on its comMmciusl cash fiows.

Imprirmant of financlal osssis:

Tho IFRS 9 roplaces tha current credlt loss massurament maithod with an "axpeciad cradit loss’ mods] {"ECL"). Tha IFRS B raquitas
\ha bank to rocord an sllowance 1o; ECLs for alf linanclal pssets not hald et FYTPL. The sliawance Is based on the ECLs associated
with the probability of dafault in the next twelva rmonths untess thare has been g significant increasa In credit risk since oripination.

Trengition

Chonges in accounting policies resulting fiom the adoption of IFRS 9 have boen applied ratraspactivaly, excapt 83 described balow.

Comparetive periods heve not beon resteted, Dilatences in the ceirying amounts of financiel agsets and linanciel lisbililles resulting
Irom tho adoption ol IFAS B are recognized In retained sarnings os of 01 January 2022. Accordingly, lhe carrying amounts ol financial
essets and hinancial lisbilities and impairment ellowance presented for 2021 does not reflect the requirements of IFRS 9 and
thoioloro, is not comperable 1o the information presonted lor 2022 undar IFAS 9.

Tho essessmant fot tho deilerminslion ol the buainess modal within which s financial asset is hald, considers tha fects and
circumstances that oxisted ot \ha dela of initin] applicaticn

Reconcillation of carrying emount bafore esrly adopilon of IFRS 8 to carrylng emeunts under complete IFAS & ot 01 Jehuary
2022

Aupoes
Impuoct of re-classificstion 31 Docombar 2023 Re-clessification Re-meesuremant 071 January 2022
Finsnoinls assets
Balancas wilh othar Banks/ NBFis/ MFBs 6,223,804,412 18,133.879 6,242,038,291
Invoslments 46, 584,619,779 616,445,098 - 47,078,584,877
Advances - nol of provistons 34,375,729,318 8,618,306, 148 [4,138,682,251) 38,855,512,215
Othor essots 10,050,683,162 {8,837,412,34¢6) . 1,213,165,808
Fineneclals liobllities
Doposiis snd other sccounts 55,000,298,895 438,822,837 - £5,439,112,632
Borrowlings 36.880.686,164 172,990,957 {168,818.307) 36,884,8680,814
Subordingiced debt 1,788,920,600 480,447 - 1,769,400.447
Oihor lisbilitics 3,407,298,747 (612,294,341} . 2,795,002,408
Impset on othar finenclel stetemant captions
Dalcniod 1ox essa] 677,447,619 {48,832,995) 1.285.918,500 1,917,633,120
Surplus / {deficit] on rovaluation ol essets [288,630,328} 265,893,780 - {22,936,648)
Doloued grants 2,054,118 . 32,347,034 34,401,210 V\

SRR
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Tha followang 1able summarise 1he elloct on reisined sarnings of the entity a5 8 rasuit of oarly adoption of IFAS 9:

Retalned enrnings as 8t 31 Dacembor 2021

Revurael of provision held against edvances
Reversal ol merkup on advances (previously suspendod)
Rocognition of expecied cratfit loss
Remeasuroment of advances on amaofized cost [oilective interest rate)
Aovoreal of loan procassing foo due to adjusiment againsl aifeclive Inlaros! rete
impact of remeasuremeni of agvencos
impact of deferrad 1ax on romeaswament of advances

Impact of remeasurement of invesmonts praviousty hald 81 smortirad cost
impact of remaeosuviemnen! of borrowings
Not impact on opaning 1otained satnings

Retalned garningn under {FRS 9 ps ot 01 Jenuary 2022

Clnasification of Financlals rssats and Lisbllities

Aupmos

1.928.314,403

2,036.616,253
580,078,438
(5,364,870,475)
(856,543,898)
1410,862, 569)

[4,136,5682,2B1)
1.240,08B,801

168,293,621
14,174,650

[2,742,377,778)

l81G!ﬂﬂJ7B)

The oBewing tablo pievides ciansliicaion ol tinancial Ingtruments ol the Bank by class snd 1halr cairying amounts as 5t 31 Decernber

2021 and 01 Jenuary 2022;

ClzasHicstlon as at 01 January 2022

Designated st  Designeted at Tota) carryin
FYTPL o | AmenlzadCost ° 7SRNG
Rupeas
Finenclals sssats
Cash and belancas with SBP gend NBP - . 3,799,830,850 3,788,930,5850
Balances with other Benks/ NBFis/ MFBs . - 8,242,038,291 6.242,030,281
Invasimants - net of provisions:
Pakisign lnvesiment Bonds (P1Bs} 6,229,888,978 6.229,686,978
Torm doposit recolpts . - 7.789,985,3M 7.78D.986.301
Mulua! Funds 12,082,205,991 - - 12,082.206,991
T.bills . 20.575.080,807 . 20,978,085,807
Advancaes - nel ol provisions . . 38,848,812.115 39,855,812.215
Orther sasals . - 1.213,165,806 1,213,185.B06
Totsl financials sssets 120 281 209 [ 64,130.320,441 97,190.812.039
Financlals liabilitles
Depasits and other accounts - 55,438,112,632 §5,438,112,632
Borowings . - 30,584,860,814  36,884,850,814
Subotdmaled dagi - - 1.788,400,447 1.788,400,447
Other labilities . 2,785,002,408 2.795,002.408
. - 96,918,376,293 96,018,376.289

Total financlals llabliities

CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT

Finonclal assats

IFRS hes dilterent requiternants for debt or equity linancial assets. Crebt instremants ara ciassitied end measured eilher at;

Amonilred cost, wheie the efiective interest rate method will spply;

Fait vaiue Ihrough other comprehensive income, with sulsequant recycling 1o the statemont of prolit or loss upon dispesel of the

linancial asset; o1
Fair value through prolit or 105s.

Inyasiments in squily insiruments, other than those 10 which consolldation or equily eccounling apply, are classilied and measured

ocithor at:

Fair value through prolit o1 foss; or

Fair velug through other comprohensivo income, with No subsaquent racycling to the siatement of prolit or logs upon disposal ol the
fmanclal asset (if the Instrument by Instrument option Is lo classily at {elr value through ather comprehensiva Income 1s elacted).

Whan classilying @ bnancial asset [other than derivatives end equily instiuments}, iFRS requires thet the contractual cash (lows test
is poslormod, commonly reterred 1o es the solaly payments of principal end interest tast {"SPP1™) tast. I an instrumant fails the SPRI
lest, il s clessilled a5 Fair Valua through profit or loss. Whan an instrumani passes the SPP! test, it undargoes the business mode! ;‘%\

tost, on a pertfolio lovel,

W$
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Busines model Cinssification basls

Hold to coflect Portlolio accounlag gt amonized cost

Hald 10 collect and soll Perttolie accounted at falf velue through othar comprehonsive income with recycling

Oihety Poruiolio sccounted at lair value thiough profit of loss

All mstirumanis held for rading arc classilied as Feu valua through prolit of loss.

Inve3iments in aquily Instrumonis are by delaul classlfiad ag teir velue 1through profit or loss, howevar, the Benk has enh iiravoceble
choice on en instrumont by insirument basis, o etect thal |he lelrvalue changes on the equity investment are secouniad tor thiough
olhwr comprehensive income. Upon disposal of the investmant, the galn or loss on disposs! [s recognized in equity. Dividends
recoivad ara racognized in the prolit and loss account The lolowing table summaiizes the two-stege appvoach lor financial sssets

ctgssilication on their Inilial recognition.

At Initial recognition Contractus! cesh flow charactsristics test
Pase Fell
Held within 2 business model whose
objective is to hold linancial essets in order to| Amortized cost Fair walua thaeugh prelit or oss (FVTAL)
T [collect contractual chsh tlows
E Hold wethin & busingss madel whose|Fsir valua through other
objective is echieved by both collecting|comprehansive incoms [FYOCH with |_ . .
g contractual cash flows and salfing !in.and: tacycling Fair valua through proff of loas [FVTPLI
= |B5sals {dabl)
i |Financiel essets which sro noither held el
smonled nor ot fair valug thiough othes|F 2! ¥Blue through profit os losa Fair value through proflt or loss IFVTPL)
comprehenslve incoma (FVIPLI .
. Conditional {air vatus oplion is elected ;:avrT \F"az}ua thiough profil of fass Fair vatun through prolit of loss (FVTPL)
_—‘3 Oplion slecied 1o piesent changes in lalr Fair value 1hrough other comprebensive
3 volue ol an equity insuument nol held lor|NfA income {FVOCI) without recycling
1tading in OC) {equity}

Finoncdal liabliitles

Al lingncinl lisbilities o1o carried 81 ameriized cost li.e. losn paysblas) and aro subsoquently sccounted In sccordence with the
elfective inlgrest raia nwthod.

Recognition and meszurament

Tha Bank recognizes & (ingnciel ssel or a tinenclel liability In Its financial statements when and only when it becomas 8 pasny 1o the
conuactual provisions of the instrumaent.

Initio! measurement of finenciel sssets and finencisl llebilities

Financisl sssets snd iiabliities not measured st falr valua through profit or loss

Whon a fineneial assat or financlal liabllity is 1ecognized initialty, the Benk measures it a1 its fair value plus or minus, rensection costs
thal sre direclly Bitributable (o Lthe acquisition or lssue of |he financisl asset or linancial Labiity. Examples ol wranseclion costs include
leas and commissions paid 10 agents such 85 broker commlgsions end stamp duty,

FIn.ancJal assots and Habillities st falr value through profit or loss.

Financial asset or finencinl Liability are measyred st initial racopnition a1 the 18l velue excluding transaction costs. Transsction costs
lor this ¢lass of financisl instrumant 8ra recognized direclly in the prolil and lass eccount.

Subsagquent moesurament of Fnoncisl assote

Finencial asseis cen ba calagorized into the lollowing catsgoras:

Amortizad cost (Expecied credi| losses need to be piovided);

Fair value through other compiehensive income with tecycling {Expactod cradil lossas need 1o be provided):

Fair value through othei compiehonsive income without recycling iter equity instrumants for which tha FVOCI option wes electad}

Fait volue \hrough profit and foss.

Tho eatagerizelion ol 1ho instrument determines tho mannat of aubsequent measuremen ! q\\
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IMPAIRMENT REQUIREMENT FOR FINANCIAL ASSETS
The Bank assesses impaitment of linanciel saseis messured st amortired cosl and FVOC! at the ond ol esch reperting parlod.
Maasuremani 0! expecled lasses rellacts;

- A considered and unbissed, probability-weighted amount;

- The iime value of money; and

- Roasonabla #nd supportable inlormatlan that is avalisbla without undue cost or eflort and that reliects past events, cuirent condilions
and forecasts of luure economic conditions.

IFRS 9 eswblishes wo spproaches for measuring impaimant |.o. generel end simplilled. Undar the genorsl approach, tmpalrment is
ganerslly messured o3 eilthes 12 months ECL or litelime ECL relevent for banks and financizl institvlions. Tha meesuremant basis
dopends on whether thoso has baen g signiicant increass In credit risk of 8 linencis! Insirument a1 the roporting dete since its nlikel
rgcognition. The Bank has identilied basis of ECL computation lor {gHowing sieges:

Stage 1: No sgnilican: delertoration in crodil quality of the finencial assets — 12 momh expacled credl nss
Stege 2: Signilicant deterioration In gredit qualily of the imanclal saset since recognition - liletime expecied credit loss

Stage 3: Cradit impeired - impairment determined on individual ot collective basis over the Iie time.

The staging guidelines applicebie on the Bank has been adopled from Si8te Bank of Pakisian {SBF] guidelines:

Ganeral Classificetion Days dup Stage allocetion Provislon 1o be mede
losns under IFRS 8
Perorming 1-28 Stepe 1
Underpeiforming (OAEM) 30 - 69 Stage 2 As per IFAS 9 ECL modeling
Non-performing .
Substandard 60 -89 whichever Is higher
Doubtiut 90.179 Stage 3 la) IFRS S ECL
Loss 180 or mote {b) PA's requirements
Microenterpr! Clngslfiuation Doys dus Stege ellogation Proviglon to bs made
&8 Padoimi 1-89 Stage 1 .
Undelpe:’r;?:rrning [OAEMI 90-178 s:ag 2 As per IFRS 9 ECL modaing
Non-psrforming
Substanderd 180 - 364 whlichever Is higher
Doubtivi 365 - 646 Stago 3 {8} IFAS 9 ECL
Loss 547 ot more (b} PR's reguiremants

In ordar 1o slign classilication and provisioning requirements with enhanced loan sizes, Siate Bank of Pakistan {SBP) vie ACAMFD
wreular 02 of 2022 deted 16 March 2022 hes dacided to tevise Prudentiel Regulations R-8 for MFBs es under:

Hegulation B-8: Clpasificalion ol Assets and Provisigning Requitermants
Specilic Provisioning:

The outstanding principsl and matk-up of the losns and sdvances, paymants 3galnst which a1e ovardue, shall be claesilied 23 Non-
Perlorming Loans [NPLsl a5 prescribed below:

For Gsnersl Loans

Category Determinsnt Trentmeant of Incoms Provigioning to be made
g‘h:::i::se“ Whete mark-up ¢f princpal is

SR cety ovardue for 30 days or mote but NiL No provisioning requited
Mntioned lgas than 60 days
{DAEM) Ve

Whare mark-up or principal is Thj :"’r:"“z |n1ere:LINp;:ihslh::rLi: 16% of oulstending principal net of liquid
Substenderd | ovetdue fer BO days or mote bul ue :usce Cd:c;g:' cledited 16 assals reahzable withoul recourse to e
pan o count of law

less than 30 days memorandum sccounl,

50% of outslanding principel net of fiquid

Whare mark-up of principal is
sasels realirable without iecourse 10 8

Doubttul overdue for 90 days or more but Ag sbove

lass than 180 days. court of lew
- 100% of outstanding princlpsl net of liquid
Where mark-up of principat is Az above pasels reslizabie without tecourse to 8

Loss

overdue lor 180 days o more. court of tow “\}l“‘\
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For Housing Loans
Category Deaterminent Tractment of Income Provisloning 1o be made
Dther  Assels Where maerk-up of principal is
Espocially ovardue lor 90 days or more but . \
Menlionad less 1han 180 deys [rom the due NIL. Nopr oning Roquired.
{OAEM) dale.
Unroslized intorest [ profit / mark-up
to bo kop!l in Memorandum Account|Provision of 25% of he dillerence resulling
wWhare mark-up or principal is end not to be crediled to Income|/from the oulstanding balance of principsl net
Substondard overdue by 180 deys or more bul |Account except whan reslired Injol hquid assals restzable without recourse
uhs iess 1han cne yeur liom the duo  |cash. Unreelizad interest / profit flto 8 court of law, snd Forcod Sale Value
dalg. mark-up piready 1sken to Income|{FSV} of morgeged propertios 10 the extent
eccount to be teversed end kept injol 76% of such FSV.
Mamorandum Account.
Provision of 50% of the diffetence rasulling
Whare mark-up of principol is from the outstanding balance of principel net
Doubtiul overdue by one yaar or more but As ebave of liquid ssaets realizable withoul recoursa
ubtiu less than two years fiom 1he due ' o 8 court of law. angd Foiced Sale Value
daio, {FSV1 of mortgaged propentiss to the axtom
of 76% of such FSV.
Provision of 100% of tha diiterance rasuliiing|
iram the ouvtstanding balsnce ol principal net
of liquid essmis reslizeble without recourss
to @ court of law, and Forced Sale Vsive
WWhore mark-up of principal Is [FSV) ol mortgagad propertias 1o the extant
Loss ovardue by two yeers or mose fiom As sbaove, of 76% of such FSV lor firsl and yecond
the due dale year, 50% for third ang founth yaer end 30%
of FSV for fith yaar from the dete of
Clessilication. Benelit ol FSV agsinst NPLs
shall not be availsble alier 05 years rom the
dete of cleasificatlon ol finsncing.
For Microanterprise Loans
Catogory Datarminant Trastmaent of Incomao Provislening to be meds

(hher Assers  |VWhare merk- uwp/ inlares|

Urrealizad [nlarest / profit / matk-up
10 be kept in Memotendum Account
and nol 1o bo crediied 10 Income
Account excopt when realized In
cash. Unreslizad interest / profit [/
mark-up alreedy 18ken 10 income
account to ba roversed and kep! In

Mamorandum Account.

Provision of 10% of the dillerance resulling
irom the culstending batancs ol pfincipal net
ol liquid assels reslizabla without recowss
10 2 court ol lew, and Forced Sple Valua
[FSV) of pledged slocks, plant & machinary
under chage 8nd mortgaged tesidential,
cammercisl and industrial properties iland &
building only] 1o the exent alfowod in
Annexure -4,

As sbove

Provision of 26% of the dilfarence resulting
from the outstanding balance of principal net
ol hguid assels resfxable withoul recourse
lo 8 court of lsw, end Forced Sale Velua
IF5V] of pledged stocks, plant & machinery
under charge and mortgeged residentis),
commarciel and industiial properties {land &
building onlyl] 10 the exteni allowed in

Especially principal is overdue by 90 days or

Mentioned more bul lgss than 180 days lrom

{OAEM) the dus gale

Substandard  |Where mark- up/  interest  or
principal is overdue by 180 dsys of
mote bul less than one yeor liom)
the duo date,

Doubtiul |Whare mark-up/ intorest or principal

is overdue by one yesr ar more but
less then 18 months from the due
dale.

As abovo

Provision of 50% of the ditferance rasulting
from the ouistanding belance of principal net
ol lquid assets reellzeble without racourse
to & court of lew, and Forcad Sala Value
[FSWi of pltedgad stocks, plant & machinsery
under charge end mongeged residential,
commaercisl and industrial properties lland &
building only) 1o the extent allowed In

| 3
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Xiil

Catogory DetermInamt [ Treatment of Incomes Provisioning to ba made
Louss Where mark-up/ imeiest of principal Provision of 100% of 1he dillsrence
15 overdue by 1B moenths or more resuling lrom the oulsianding bafance of
fiorn the due date prncyal net of qud  assels  realizable
without recourso to a cowt ol law, and
Where iand Tipde Bills are not As above Forced Sale Valuo (FSV) of pledged siucks,
paidf evusies valhin 180 deys of;: iplanl & machinaly  unde.  charge  and
| the dus dale | montgaged  residonual.  commercial  and
| . industrial properties (lend & building onlyl to
L 1 the exient allovwed in Annexure |2,

Significant increase in credit risk
A linancal asset 1s considered to have had a signifcant deleno@atan ots credit quslny, when lollowing faclors aasts:

Quantitative factor: 30 days of more past due 107 gencial luans snd 80 days o more pas! due o mrroenierpuse oans;

Qualitative factors:

Restructunng/Rescheduling due 10 credit reasuns;

Unavadablefnadequale ‘inancial tnfoimation/linancial siatements;

Expeciation o lorbeerance (1estuctunng/rescheduling) occurring:

Crualilied report by exteinal auditors,

Sgnificant conlingent hisbinigs;

Pending iitigation resuliing in & deumental imjsact,

Loss of key stult 10 the ory)anizanon,

Increase in oprstational sk and higher cocurtencu ot hauculent aclvilics,

Bortoweer 15 the sugject of iigation by tird partivs hat may have a signdicant mysact on hes hingrcial position,

Frequent changus in seriwr managetent;

Inza-group Wransier of funds withou! undertying Lransactions; and

Delotment/delay in the tate io: commencement of commzicil geertons by more than ane year

T:anster Frorn Stage 2 o Stage ! Where thete is evdence thay there s significant reduct:on in credit tisk, the Fls would continus to
morntor such fmancial mstruments / credn exposules lor 4 probatonary period las decided by the Fis) 1o conlurn if the tisk of default has
decreased suthciently belore upgrading such oxposure trom Lifetime ECL (Stage 2] 10 12-months ECL {Stage 1|

Key sssumptions used in calculation of ECL:
Expectad credit loss is b product of: Probatxhty of defaidt {"PD7) x Loss gven delauvi (TLGD 71 x Exposure at default ("EADT)

Probabliity of default:

Probabiity of dolaull 15 a 1erm ascnbed 1 the kelnood o a delaul oier a specibisd oeugd (ng
amuunt due.

i @ botrower will nul be able to repay the

Many models have been developed by statisticians to estmale probabdity of default tor ponfotios with varying default r1ates. These
models lake o sccount ¢ number ol {ztiors such as debil chatactensics ancledmg thud-party-credi-nsk-1anngs, days past due, past
delault rstes. mocroeconemic lactors, and asset cofrelation 1o estimate lutute POs associated with the financisl sxposuies ol an entity.
Besed on analysis performed on available datla, Row rate rmigration matrne have been found most sutable for estimation of prababiity of
delault Accotdinply, the Eank bas competes loss rates lor us 20ventes using flow rate by observing default behavior over the pened of 5
yedts as suggested by BASEL 1.

The flow rates have been determined psieg nonth on month moverent of oulstending talaace from one bucket to ancthet. In arge! to
atnve al loss rle the preauct of avecage fiow rates and LGD was taien

Forward locking Information:

IFRS 9 requiies incofpor:iing tuture econonne conditions inio the muasurement of ECL Future econcniic conditions ace incorporated by
adsting estunates of P 1o tefllec! expactations aboul the stage ol econgmic cycle expecied 1o be prevalemt in the economy as-and-
whon dofeult 15 expecten 1o anse i the Tulure. The macrogconomilc lzctors were solecled based on regression analysis of historical
defaull rate and macsectanamig indicater and pased on the 1esults of ihe analys:s GDP and CPI were cunsideray 10 be 1he most suilsble
lactors based on highes! canelation wih defaul tate

The GDP and CPl lorecast were sonrced from “ Ihe Economust Intolbgence Unir” which was used to doterrming lorward fooking Point in
tumu POs (P PDst In comphance wath IFRS 9. GOP and CPi vaie lorecasted consuletng scenanos ingicebng moverngnt of both
indicators undul base case, oest case, and wolst-case simutstions Base case lotecasts woi¢ sensiized using a scal:ng faclor of 5 yesrs
Stengard geviation [0 guiciming bellul and worsl-casc scunanics 11 was assuined tal lureesst 15 & normal distnbution. As per nonmsl
oistnbulicn propafty the bose, bettwr and vworst would have: 68%. 16% and Y6% chancas ol likelthaod.

Furthennore, w order 1o amve at tne Pont v Teno IPYT] lwss tates, the Vasicek model frinewolk has been usad (0 take into account
macipetonomic vanablas lor Pakisian, loss rares mng assel gorelalion as nputs.

A
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Loss given default (LGD}:

Loss grven detfaull 15 e 1955 expected 1o e sullered should the counterpadty defaull and is sei as 8 pefcentage. To estimate LGD,
specilic and accurate recovety duth 15 10 be made mvailable, In e absence ol this inlormation, the Bank. in accordence wiih 1he
application insliuctions 1ssued by SBP vide BPRD Circular Lotter No. 24 of 2021 dated 05 July 2021, has used LGD percentages of 46%
toe secured partfolio and 75% for unsecured portfolio. Dunng the yaar, SBP ssuet hnalized apphcation instruclions o implementation of
IFHS & vide BPRD Circlar No. 03 dated 05 July 2022, whereby. 1w 1he absence of the Bank's LGD model based on accurale histoncal
datz. the LGD perceniagus prescnbed under Basel F-1RB approach wore suggesied. Accordingly. duting The year the Bank has used LGD
percentages vl 35% lor sucwred portiatio and 46% for unsecured portlolio 1o determing ECL as of 31 December 2022. Hagd thera been
1o chaage in the LGD pereentages based on the applcation inskuctions for implementaton of IFRS 9, the ECL as of 31 December 2022
would have been Rs. 5 85 billkon and protit hetore tax for the year ended 31 Decernber 2022 would Rave deen lower by Rs 2 16 balion.

Exposure 8! dafsult (EAD):

Exposuie al dofaultis Uhu value of 1he contractual obligation that must bo tulfiled by the obligor under the conlract at the ume of defaul.
Therelore, EAD repiesents the smouont ol poienual exposure that is al sk

In casc of advances. the: EAD is 10 be calculated by amorlizing ioans over ther tenures. The EAD is 1o be bilurcated into stage 1, slage 2
ant slage 3 using low risk, signilicant increase in cradit risk and delault dofinitions. Further, tho SBP guidelines require that loan
tescheduled should be considered as an indicator of signilicent increase in credil risk. Tnerefore. the sescheduled portiolio has bean

Classiied in stage 2 os sbuve

DERECOGNITION

Financial assots
A financial assel 1s deracognized whan, and only when

e contraclual nghts 10 the cash flows Trom she hinancial assel expire, or
the eniity uansfers the financial assel and the wansiet qualilies to: derecognucn (substantially 4 usks and 1ewards sie ransiered

meaning thal nu control 1S retained)

Financial tiabilities
A fnancial liabilty {e.g. debi) is derecogrized frum the balance shool when it is extinguished, that s when the obligatior 15 discharged,

cancelled or expired. Thes condition 15 rnet when the debtor aither:
Drscharges the habilily (. part of ity by paying the crediter. normally wwith cash, other financial assgets. Quods Of SeIvICes: o

- 18 legally released from pirnaty 1esponsibility 1or the lubinty tor pai ol 1) either by process of law ot by 1ha craditor

Palicles applicsble before 01 January 2022:

inyostments

The wvestments ol the Bank, upon minal recognuion, are classified as held-for-tiading, held-tu-maturity or available-for-sele, as
appropitate. Invesiments l(other than held-orradingd are immally measured at lan valye plus transsction costs assocuted with the
invesiments. Held-lor-trading investrments are mitially measuied al fair velue and 1ransachion costs ar¢ expensed oul in the profil and loss
account Purchase and sale of invesiments thit requite delivery wilhin the i irame ostablished by regulstiun Uf market convention is
recogmised at the tade date. which s the date 1ne Bank cornrnits 1o puichase ol sell the mvesiment

Held for trading

These reprasent secunties acquired with [he migntion Lo rade by leking advantage of shori-letny markel/ ntelest rafe movements.
These secutines are requued o be dispesed olf vz 80 days from the date of ther acquisition Alter inibal measurement, these are
matked to martket and surplus/ dehicn ansing on revalustion ¢l ‘held for wading' snvestments is taken 1o prohl and foss account in

accoidance with the requilements prescribed by SBP

Held to maturity

Investments with fixed :naturity, where management has beth the intent and the ability o hold till tnaturity, are classilied as held 10
maturily. Subseguent 1o nilal recagnilion gl cost, these invesiments are me:ssuled al amorhized cnst, tess provision lor Impairment m
value, ! any, and amortizerd cost is calculated taking inte account ettecuve interest rate method Prold on heid 1o malueity investments is
recugriized on & Iime proparlion basis king in1o account 1he cifective yeld on the invesumenls,

Awalinhle for sale

These are investments which do not fsll under the held-fur-treding and held-lo-maturity categories. After intial measorement, such
invesiments sre measured a! fair value The swplus / (delicit) arising on revaluation 1s shown in the balance sheet below equty which 15
1aken to the pretin and foss account when aclually ceahsed wupan dispossl

Premium o discount on stcuntios classified as available-for sate and held-1o-matunty 1s amornsed using elfecive interas! method and ﬂ\q\
takon 1o the profit and loss account V\
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Puovision for impsgirment in 1he value o! equily securitles is made elter considering objective evidence of impairment 85 & result of
ang of more gvonls that may have en impact on the estimaled tvro cash Hlows of theta investments. A significant of prolonged
docfino in the value of securily is 81sc considered B8 an abjeclive evidance of impeiiment. Provision {or diminution in the value of dobt
docuntigs is made as par 1he Prudantial Reguistions. In 1he event ol impeirmemt ol aveilable for sale secunilias, the cumulstive loss
thut had beon rocognized dirocily in surpius on revaluation of securilics on tha balanca sheet below squity is thersol removed and

rocognized in the profit and loss accounl

Advonoes

Advancos erc 3luiod net of provision lor non-perioiming advances. The oulstanding principai end maeik-up of the loans snd advences,
peymants sgeinst which aro oveidue lor 30 days o more ere ciassilied as non-perfoiming loans (NPLs). The unraslired imeres: /
polis / mark-up / service charges on NPLs Is suspended and credited 1o imerest suspensa account. Further the NPLs sra cleasifled
inlo lollowing calagaiies ss presciibed in the Regulations:

Othar azsots especislly mentioned

Theso sra advancos, psymanis againsl which are overdue lor 30 days of mora but less then 80 days.
Substandard

These sra advances, payments ageinst which are overdue for 60 days or more but Isss than 80 days.
Doubtfut

Those ere sdvences, paymonts sgainst which sie overdua lor B0 deys or mote but less than 180 days.

Loss
Thoso are advancos, paymonls against which are overdus 1or 180 deys or more.

In eddition the Bank maintains 8 waich lisy of all accounls overdue lor 5-29 days. However, such accounts ere not treated es non-
potiorming lor the purpose of classilicatiory piovisloning,

In order 10 enabla MFBs in extending rellel measures to the sffected borrowaera, SBP vie ACEMFD Clrculer Letter No. 01 of 2021
dotod 01 Docombor 2021 retaxed the crilerls for claasilication of gssols end provisioning requirements lor Deferred and Reatructured
Pontlolie (CRP) as por the lollowing:

Cotegory Daterminant (Existing) Determinant (DRP)

Othar Assets Loans [ptincipalmark-up) is ovordue for 30 days or Loans Iprincipa¥mark-up) is overdue lor 60 days or more but

Espacislly maore but less than 60 days loss then 30 days

Mantlionad

1AEM)

Substandsrd  Loans Iprincipalimark-up) is overdue for 80 deys or Loans [princlpamerk-up) is overdue for 90 deys or more bul
moto bui less than 90 deys loss than 120 deys

Loubtlul Loens (principal/mark-upl is ovardue for 90 deys or Loans [principal/mark-upl s overduae lot 120 doys or more but
mose bul lass than 180 days lass than 210 days

Loss Loens {principolfmerk-up) is overdue for 180 days or Loans (principslimaik-up) Is overdye for 210 days or nore
morg

In pceordanco with ihe Regulstions, tha Bunk mainteins spacific provision of oulstanding principa! net of cash collslersals end gold
tarnaments and bultion) realizable without recourse 1o 8 Court ol Law 2t tha [oflowing rates:

Other assets aspecielly mentioned Substendard N
Suhstendard 25% ot outstanding principal net o cash collatarals
DoubHul 50% of ouistanding ptincipal net of cash collalerals

Loss 100% of outstending principal net of cash collaterals .

In addition to abovao, a genaral provision is made equivalent 1o 1% (2021: 1 %) ol tha net cutsianding baiance (advance net ol specific
provisions) in accerdance with the requirement ol the Repulstions. The Benk piso recogniags genersl provisions in eddition to the
above general provision when the ciicumstances indicate delinquency in the portfelio.

Generel and specific provision is charged to the pralit and loss account in tha pariod in which they occur.

Non-porforming advances are wrillen ofl one monih alter tho loan is clessified as *L.oss’. Howeva, the Bank continues ils elions ot
tocovoly ol tho writion off balances.

Under gxceplional circumslancaa menagement reschedules repeyment tamms lor clients who heve sulfered catsstrophic evenis and

who appesr willing and eblo 10 fully tepay their loans, Such rescheduling does nol heve any elfects on the classiiication ol the loan es \*
por the Prudontial Reguletions.
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Impairmeant

Non-derlvstive financisl assets
Finuncial aysa1s not clessilied at 183 value through proflt end loss account me 8s d ot esch reporting dete lo determing whathar
there is objoclive evidence of impairment.

Objective ovidonce thal linenclal essets nie impaired includes defsult or delinquency by a8 debtor, restrucluring ol 8n amouni due ta
tho Benk on tho 1erms thet the Bank would not considor oiharwise end indication that a deblor will enter bankruptcy.

For linanciat s3xpls measured a1l emortized cost, the Benk censiders evidence of impairmant lor these assais at both sn individuwsl
ussol and & caollective leval. Al signiliconl assels are assessad ot impaizment individually, Those lound not 1o ba impaired are than
cotloclivaly esagssed lor any impairmant thet has beon incuired but not yet individuslly Identilied. Assels that are not individually
significani ore collectively assessed for Impairmen|, Colleclive assessmenl iy camed out by grouping logelher essets with similer risk
chureclerislics. In assessing collective impalrment, the Bank uses historicol informetion on the Uming of recoverles snd the emount
ol loss incurred, and makes en adjusiment il cutrenl economic and cradit condillons are such that 1the actual lossas are [ikely 10 be
gioBlér or lessor 1han suggasiod by histotical trends.

An impairmant loss is calculated as tho dittarence belween an gysal’s carrying amount end Lhe present value of the estimated lulure
caah liows discountad 8t 1ho assat’s onigingl alfective inteiest rete, Losaes are recognised In profht and loss account end reflecled in
#n pllowance account When the Benk considers that thete are no realistic prospecis of recovery ol the asset, the relevant amounis
atg written oft, If the amount ol irpotrmeni loss subsequenily dectesses and the dectease can be related objectively to gn event
ocuurting atler 1ho impaliment was rocagnised, then the previously recognizad mpeirment loss is reversed through proflt and loss

Non-financlal eszet
AL gech reporiing date, the Benk reviews the catrying amount of its non-financial assets {delerred 1ax assels] to determine whathet
thate is eny indication of impsirment. If any such indication axists, then the assel's recovershle smount is estimated.

Foi impsliment testing, assets era grouped logethar into the smofest group ol oasels thal penerates cash inflows Irom continulng
use that ae largely indopondant of the cash inflows of other assels or cash genenating umhs (CGUS).

Thu recoverabla smount ol on essal or CGU is greater ot ite value In use and its 1alf vedua lass cosis 10 sell. Value in use is beged on
tho astmmed lywre cash flows, discounted 10 their present velue using e pro-tex discount fete thel reltects curtent msrkes
ossessments of tho time value of money and the risks spacific to the asset or CGU, An impaitment loss is recognised Il the carrying
omount of an nsset or CGU exceeds its iecoverabla amount,

Impairment lossas are recogmisad in profit 8nd loss accouni. These ere allocaled 10 reduce the cartying emounts ol 1he asels in the
CGU on 2 pro 121a hasis. For other ssseis, an impairmani lpss is reversed only to Iho oxtant thet the asset’s carrylng smount does
not exceed tho carrying amount thal would have been detesmined, net of depreciation or smortizetion, i no Impeirment loss hed
toon recognised,

Finential Instruments

Finsncial assets and ligbilitias are recognized when tho Bank becomes a party (o the contraclual piovisions of the instrument. These
are derecognirad when tho Bank cegsos 1o be the party (o the conlracivel pravisions ol the instrument.

All finencial psscis and ligbiities arc inilially measured et cost which is the fair value of the consideration given and received
raspectively. Those financial assets and lisbifities ere subseguently measured at falr value, emortized cast or hiatorical cost es the

casa may ba,

Othes porticuls! recognition methods adopted by the Benk are disclosed in the individusl policy slatements associzled with gach item
of fimancisl instyuments.

Flnanclal Assate

Finpncisl 855615 ara cash and balances with SBP and NBP, balences wilh athaer banks, investiments, edvances and other faceivables.
Adgvences are siated 8l their nomingl value 8s reduced by eppropriste provistons ageinst non-perarming sdvances, while olhers
{ingncial assats 'encluding invostments are slated al cosl. Investments ase recognized es per note 6.4,

Finenciai Lizbllites
Financial ligbilities ere clessilied according to tha substance of the contraciual Bsrangement entered into, Financial Hablilias Include
doposits, borrowings and olher ligbifties which are stated at thelr nominal vafue. Ftvencigl cherges are accounted lor on accrusl basls.

Any gain ot lass on the tecognitign and de-recognition of the financial assels end lisbilities iy Included in the net prafil end loss for the
year in which 1l Bris@s.

Derlvotiva financlel instruments

Derivative linancisl instruments sre inhisfty rocognised st toir value on the dale on which the derivative conbiact Is entered Inlo end

wro subseguently ro-measured at foir value using vsluation technigues. All defivative tinencial instrumonts are carried as essets when

tair vatue is positive and lebililles when lair value is negsliva. Any change in the lair value ol dervatve linancial Insuuments is taken Q

to the piofit and loss account. \’Q
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5.2

53

54

5.5

Cesh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivelents comprise cash in hand, balances held with State Benk of Pakistan (SBP} and Natianal Bank of
Pakistsn (NBP) snd balances held with other banks / Non-Banking Financlal institutions {NBFIs) / Microlinance Banks
{MFBs) and are carried at amortized cost.

Sala ond repurchease agreements

Assels sold wilh a simullangous commilment o repurchase at & spaclfied future dale (repos) continue to ba recognized in
the bglance sheat and are mesesured in accordance with the accounting policies for invasimant securltas. The counier
party liability lor consideration recaived ig included in borrowings from financial institutions. The differance betwaan sake
and repurchase price [s trested a3 markup/returnfinterest axpansae overl lthe perlod of tha transaction. Assets purchased
with a corresponding commitment to resell 8t & epecified fulure dete {teverse repo) are not recognized as Investment In
1he belanca shael. Armnountie paid under these agreements are inciuded in lending 10 financial Institutions. The dil{erence
between the purchase end resale price is ireated as markup/raturnfinterest incoma over the period of the wensaction.

Investments

The invesimanis of 1the Bank, upon Initial recognition, are classified:

Amortized cost, where the affective interest ate method will 8pply;

Feir value thiough other comprehensive Income, with subsequent recycling 1o the statement of profit or less upon
disposal of tha financiel asset; or

Fait vatue through profit or loss.

Invesimants [(other than feir vélue through profit or lossl re inflielly measured et falr value plus transaciion costs
associated with the invesimants. Investmenis held at Iair velue through profit of loss sre Intislly measured a1 fair value
and tranzaction costs are expensed oul in the prolit end loss eccount.

Falr value through profit or loss

Thesa represent securities acqulrad with 1he intention to trade by leking adveniage of shon-lerm merket/ interest rate
movements. Altas initiel measurement, these are markad to markel end surplus/ deficit arising on revelustion ol these

invesimants |s taken to profit and loss account.

Amortised cost

Investments with fixed maturity, where management hee both the intent and the ebility to hold till meturity, are clessHied
st amortized cost. Subsequeni 10 initiel recognition et cost, these Investmants are measured at emortized cost, less
provision lor impsirment in value, if any, and eamortized cost is calculated 1sking Into eccount effective tnterest reie
mathod. Markup earned on invesimants held at emortised cost s recopnized using efiective interast rete.

Fair velue through other comprehensive Income

These ere investments which do nol feil under the {eir value through prolit or loss [FYTPL) end amertised cost categonies.
Altet initizl rnessurement, such investmenis are meassured at falr value. Tha surplus / {deficit) erising on revaiuetion is
shown in the balance sheet below aguily which is taken to the profit and loss account when actuslly reslised upon

disposal.

Premium or discount on securlties clessified s FYTOCI end emortised cost is amoertised using effective interest method
and laken 10 the profit and loss account,

Advences

Advances a/a messured gt emortised cost; these are initielly measured et feir velue plus Incremental direct cost nert of loan 54\},

procassing iee received and subsequently 81 their emortised cost using 1he eifeciive interest maethod. K
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56
56.1

56.2

5.6.3

5.7

Opersting fixed sssets
froperty and equipmant
Ownad

These are sieted at cost less accumulated deprecistion and Impairment [ any). Cos1 includes expanditure thst sre diractly
atuibuteble to the acquisition of items. Depracislion is charged using the siraight-iine basls over the estimated useful livas ol
sssets. Full month's deprecietion is cherged in Ihe month of addition end no depreciation is cherged lor tha menth in which
tha disposal is made. The residual value, depreclation metheds and usetul lives sre reviewed ang adiusted {if approprista) at
each balance sheet date. Geins and losees on disposal of assels ere delermined by comparing the sale procasds with the
carrying amouni aré included in the profit and loss account. Subsaguent costs are Ingluded in the esser’s carrying emount or
recopnised a5 o laparate assel, BS epproprisle, only when it i probable that future economic benetits sssocieted with the
item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the ltem can be maeasured refiably. Tha carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecopnised. All other repairs end melntenence s charged to the profit and loss account. An assatl's carrying 8rnount is
written down immediately 10 its recoverable amount if the es5e1’s carnying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
eamount,

Hight of use assats

The Bank recognizes righi-of-use assets at the lease commencemant date. Right-of-use esse1s ere initielly measured at cost,
which comprisas the initisl amount of lease lisbility adjusted for eny lease payments meda st or bafore the commencement
dete, plus eny inillal diract costs incurred. Right of use esset is calculated es the initist amount of the laese liablfity in terms of
rantals for business locations al the lease conlract commencement date,

Tha nght to use 855615 is subsequently depraciated using the etright fine method Irom the commencement dete to the end
of the lease term, unless the tease transfers ownership of the underlying essel 1o the Bank by the and of laese 1erm or the
cos1 of the right of use pssel reflect thet the Benk will exercise a purchasa option. In that case the right of use esset will be
depreciated over the use(ut lile ol the underlying asset, which 18 determined on the same basis 83 those of property and
squipment. In addition, tha right of use sssel is pericdically reduced by impsltment lnsses, if any, and adjusted for cenain
ramessusement of lease lisbility.

The right ol use essel is subsequently depreciated using the stigight line method for a period of lesser of ten years or actusl
laese term. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residuel vaiues ere reviewed et each reporting date end adjusted i

approprigte.

Capltal work-In-progress

Ail expenditure conneciad with speciftc assels Incurrad during instellation and developmant pencd are carried under capitgl
work in progress. These are transtarred 1o spacllic 8ssels as and whan thess are available for use. Capliel work in progress
is steted 8t cos1 less accumulated impeirment fossas, if any. .

Intengible assets

iniangibla assets with @ definita usetul life are stated a1 cosl less eccumulated emortisation and impairment {il sny). Thase
sre amortised from the month, when these assels are eveilable lor use, using the straight-line method, whereby the cost of
1hs Intengible asset is amortised on the basis of tha estimaeted useful lite over which economic benafits are expected to flow
to the Bank. The residual velue, uselul lile end amortisation method is reviewed end adjusted, il 3appropriste, st each balence

shapt date.

Lease liability

A1 the commencement date of the lease, the Bsnk recognizes lesse figbiities measuwred st tha present valve of lease
paymenis 10 be made over the 1pase term, The leese paymants include fixed payments fincluding In-substance fixed
paymanis) less any lease incentives receivable, variebla lease pgyments that depend on an index or a rate, snd amounis
expecied 10 be paid under residual value guarsniess. The leese payments 8lso include the exerclse price of & purchese
option reasonebly cerein 1o be exeicised by the Benk end payments ol penalties for terminating o lesse, if the lease tarm

taflects the Bank exarcising the oplion to terminste, The variabip lesse payments that do not depend on en index of a rate gq\x

are recognized as expense in the paricd on which the event or condition thet tiggers the payment occurs,
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Short-term loases

The Bank applies the shon-lerm lease recognition exemptlon to Its short-term leases of property and aguipment (i.e, thoae
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less fram the commencemant dale end do not conlain 8 purchase oplion).

Taxation

income 18x expense comprises currant and deferred tax, 1 is recognised in profit end loss actount except 1o the extent thet
it relates 1o items recognised directly in eguity or In OCI.

Curremt tax

Cuwirent 18x comprises the expacted 1ex payable o refundablie on the taxeble Incoma or loss for thae year end any adjustment
10 the 1ax payable or refundsble In respect of previous yaars. The amount of current tax peyable or refundable is the best
egumate of the lax emount expectec to be paid or recaived that reflects uncertainty relsted 10 \ncoma wxes. [ any, Tha
cherge for cusront texetion is besed on taxable income at current rates of taxstion enacied or substentelly enected at the
reporting date, eftar taking into consideretion evailabla 1ax credits, rebates and 18x losses, H any. Currant 1ax essets and
ligtllitias are offset if certain crierle are met.

Deferred tax

Detetred tex is recognised in reéspect of temporary ditferences between the carrying amounts ol assets end liabilities for
finenciel reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred 1ex Is not recognised for:

temporary differences on initial recognition of assets o! liebililies in a wrensaction that is not 8 buginess combinatien and
Lhat affacts neither accounting nor taxable profil of loss;

temporery differences {elated to invastments In subsidiarles, essacietes and joint arrangemants 10 the extant thet the
Bank is able to control the timing of the reversel of the temporary differances and i is probabie thal they will not reverse

in the foreseeable futyra; end
1axable temporary ditfarencas 8fising on the initial recognitlon ol goodwll.

Delerred x assels ara tacognised for unused tex loages, unused tax credits and deductible temporary dilerences 10 the
axtant it I probable that luture 1axable profits will be aveilable sgainst which they can be ysed. Fulute taxable profits aia
Cetermined based on business plens for the Bank and the reversel of temporary differences. Dslerred tax assets sare
revigwed at each reporling date and are reducad 10 the axtent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benelit will be
realized; such reductions sre ievarsed whan the probability of fulure taxable profits improves. Unrecognized delerred tax
e350ls ara reassassed at each raporting date and recognised 10 the extent that it has become probable that luture taxabla

profits will be avallable agalnal which they can be usad.

Delerred tax is measured at the tex rales that are expacted lo ba sppliad to temporary differences when they reverse, using
1ax rales enacted of substantially enacted s1 the reporting date. The maasursmant of deferred 1ax reflecis the tax
consequencas that would follow trom the menner in which tha Bank expects, et the reperting date, to racover or sattle the
cartying amount of its essels and lisbilities. Defarced tax assets and lisbilities are offset if certsin criteria are mat.

Group texation

The Bank is taxed es a one fiscal uml along with the Parent Comgpany and Hs other wholly owned subsidlarles undet saction
S8AA 1o the Incoma Tax Crdinance, 200%. Current and delferrad incoma taxes 81e recognised by esch entity within the Group
in their respaciive prolit 8nd loss account, ragardless of who has the tegel rights or obligetion for the recovery or payment of
tax Liom or fo the tax suthorities, However, tax habllity / raceivable is shown by tha Parent Company, on submission of
ennual 18x relutn, who hes the legsl obligation to pay or right of recovery of tax from the taxedon authorities. Balances

beiween the group entlties on account of group tax is shown as other receivebla / lisbility by the respective group entities. i\h
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5.12 Doepostts, borrowings and subordinated debt

Deposits, borrowings and subordinated dabt raprasents sources ol funding of the Bank. Daposits, debt securities in issus
and subordineted liebilities ere initisthy measured at fair value minus incrementsl direct trangaction costy. Subssquently, they
ere measured at their amonised cost using the elfeciive interast mathod, axcept where the Bank designates ligbililles af

FVTPL.

513 Employee benelits
5.13.1 Short-term employee benefits
Short-lerm empioyea benefils are expensed as the related service is provided. A lisbility ts recognised for the amount

expacled to be psid i the Benk has s present legal or constructlve obligation 1o pey this amount as 8 result of pest service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimeted reliably.

5.13,2 Defined contribution plan - provident fund
The Bank operates & defined contribution provident fund scheme for permanant employees. Contributions to the jund are

made monthly by the Bank and amployees g1 en egreed mte of salary (B% of the basic selary of the employes), the fund is
managed by its Board of Trusteas. The contributicn of Bank Is charged 10 proflt and less eccount.

£.13.3 Staff retiremont hensfit - gratulty

The Bank operates delined benefil plen comprising en unfundad gratuity scheme coveting all eligible employees completing
the minimum quahlying pariod of service (three years) as specilied by the schama.

The Bank's net Bebility in respect of 1his delined bensfil plan is calculated by estimeling the emount of luture benetit that
amployees have earned in the current and prior petiods and discounting that amount,

The celcuintion of definad benefit Uability 15 parformed snnuelly by e gqualiied actvary wsing the projecied unit eredit method
{PUC).

Remeasurements ol the net delined benefll lisblilly, which comprise sctuania! gsins and losses are recognised immediately
in other comprehensiva Income. The Bank determines the net Interest expanse on the net defined benafit liebllity for the
year by applying the discount rate used to measura the delined benafit liabllity a1 the beginning of the annual period to the
then-net defined benelil liability, taking inte account eny changes in the net defined banefit lisbility during the year as e result
of contributions and banefil peyments. Nal inlerest expense and other expenses relsted to defined benefit plan ate

recognised in profit and loss sccount.

When tha benefits of a plan ere changed or when 3 plan is curleiled, the resulting chenge in benafll that relstes to past
service of the gein or los$ on cuntailment is recognised immedlalely in profit and loss account The Benk recognises gains
and losses on the selllement of e defined benefit plan when the settlemant cccurs.

514 Reserves

5.14.1 Statutory reserve

In comptiance with the requiremants of the Reguletion R-4, the Benk maintains s1alvtory reserve 1o which en approprietion
equivalant 10 20% of the profit ater 18x 15 made 1l such tima the reserve fund equals the pald up cepitel of the Bank,

Howvever, 1hesaalier, the contribution is retduced 1o 5% of the profit after tax.

§.14.2 Depositors' protectlon lund

In compliance with the requiremnsnts of section 19 of the Microfinance Instilutions Ordinance 2001, the Bank contribules 5% \'
of annusl profit after tax 1o the Depositor's Protaction Fund for the putpose of providing security or guarantes 1o the permﬁﬂ\@

depositing monay in tha Bank. ‘A
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5.14.3

5.14.4

5.16

5.16

5,16.1

Cash reservo

In compliance with the ragquirerments of the Regulatton R-3A, the Bank melinieing B cash reserve equivalent to not less than
5% of its deposhs lincluding demend deposits end lime deposils with tanure of lass then 1 yaar) in 8 current sccount opensd
with the Stale Bank of Pakistan {(SBP) or its agant.

Statutery liquidity requirement

In compliance with the requiremants of the Regulation 8-3B, the Bank meintains liquidity equivalent to &t ieest 10% of its
101al demend liohilites and time habilities with tenure of less than ane yeer in the form of liquid assets i.e, cash, goid,
unencumbered treaeury bills, Pakisian investment Bonds and Government of Pakisten sukuk bonds. Treasury bills ang
Pakistan investment Bonds helg under depositor's protection fund ere excluded for the purposes of determining liquidity.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balange sheet when the Benk hes & legal or consiructive obligation es e result of a8 past
avent, and it is probable that en outllew of economic bansfita will ba required 1o sene the obligation and a relistile astimate
czn be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions ate detormined by discounting the expected future cash tlows at a pre-
tax discount rete that tefiecis curent merkst essessment of time value of money and risk specific to the lisbility. The
uhwinding of discount is recognised 85 interest expense.

Ravenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on tha consideralion spacilied in 8 contrect with customer and excludes amounts collecied on
hehalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognized when the Bank sslisfies the perlormence obiipations by transterring 8 promised good or service 1o ]
customer. Goods or services are trenslerred when the customer obeins conurol of those assels. Revenue from all revenue
slreams 15 recognized when the services ore provided 1o the customer.

The stand-slone seling prices ere determined besed on the observable price at which the Benk sells the services on o
standslone basis.

The nature and timing of sallsiaction of performance obligatlons in contracts with customers, including significant payment
terms, and [he related revenue recognilion policles aie as follows:

Interest Income end expense

Effective interast rote

Interest income and expanse are recogrised in prolit or loss using the etlective Interest method. The ‘eHeclive intarest rale’
ig the rale thet exactly discounts estimated luture cash payments of recelpis through the expacted fie of the finencis!

instiument {o:

= tha gross carfying amoun! of 1he financial essel; or
* the amortised cost of the linanciel liabiity.

When calculgting the effective interesi rete for {lnencis!t instruments other then purchased or oiiginated credil-lmpaired
essets, the Bank estimatas future cash flows consldering all contractuel terms of the linanclal InstrumenL but not ECL. For
purchased or ofigineted credit Impalred financia) assels, & credit-sdjusted eflective Interast rate Is caiculated using estimated

future cash flows including ECL.

The calculslion of the effective interast rate includes transaction costs and fees end points peid or racelved that ere en

integtal part of the eflactive Inteiesl rate. Transection costs include incrementai costs that gre diracily atuibuteble 1o the E«e‘

acquisilicn or issue of 8 financial 8sset or financial liability. *
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5.17

5.18

Amortised cost and gross carrying smount

The ‘smortised cost’ of & linancial asset or financial Nability Is the amount at which the finenclel asset or financlal llabitity Is
maeeswured on Initis! recognition minus the principal repsyments, pius or minus the cumulative emortisation using the effective
interast method of eny difference between thet initisl smount and the meturily amount and, for financlsl assets, sdjusted for
any expecled credit loss sliowance. The ‘groes carrying smount of 8 finencisi asset’ is the asmortised cost ol a financlal agset
belore adjusting for any expacted credit loss sllowanca.

Calculation of interest Incoma and expense

Tre afteclive inlesest rate of & fingncial Bssel or financig! lisbility is calculated on initlel recognition of 8 financisl asset or 8
tinanclal ligbitity. In calcuating imerest incoma and axpense, the effective interest rale Is applied to the gross carrying
amaunt of the assot (when the assat is not credit Impaired) or 10 the amortisad cost of the lisklity, The sHective Interest rala
is revised 85 8 result of periodic re-estimstion of cash {lows of flcating-rate Instrumants 10 reflect movemaents in market rates
of intarast. The aflettive inlerast rata is also revised for feir veiva hedge edjusimants at the dale on which amortisstion of
tha hadgae adjustment begins. '

Howaever, for finsncis! ssgets that have become credit-impelred suhsequent o initial recognition, intarest income is
calculsted by applying the effectiva Interast tate lo the amortised cast of the finencisl esset. I! tha saset is no longer credil-
impaired, then the ceiculation of interest income revarts to the gross basis.

For financlal essets that were credit-mpalrad on initlsl recognition, interest income |Is calcuiated by epplying the cradit-
adjusted effeclive inlarest rale to the amortised cost of the assal. The calculstion of Interest income does not revert 10 &
gross tesis, aven il the credit risk of the ssset improvas,

Fee, commission and brokerage Income

Fae and commission income and expense that gre integrsl to tha effective interest rate on & finenciel asset or financial
fisbitity are included in the effective interast rale.

I & losn commitment is no! expactad to 1esull in the drew-down of @ loan, then the relsled loan commitment lee is
recognised on a straighl+ine basis over the commitment period.

Other {ee end commission income - including gccount serviclng fees, Invesiman! management feas, selss commission,
placermant lees and syndication 1ees — is recognised es the related services ere parformed,

Other fge and commission expensas relate mainly 10 transaction end service fees, which ere expansed es the services are
recaivad.

Income on intar bank deposits
Income trom interbsnk deposits in saving accouns are recognized In the profit and loss account using the eHecilve interest

mathod.

Borrowlng costs

Bofrowing cosis are racognized 8s an expensa in tha pariod in which they ere incurred except where such cosis relste to the
scquisition, consttuction or production of a qualifying esset in which casa such cosis are capitelized as parl of the cost of that

assel.

OH-setting

Finencial 8ssets and financial liabiliies and tax assels and tax liabilitied ere only olf-set and the net emount Is reporied in the
tinancigl sialemanis when there is s lagally enforcaable right to set off tha recognized emount end the Bank intends either 1o
settle gn nel basis or 1o reslize the assels end 1o setle the lisbiiities simuitanecusly. Income and expense ilems of such

assats and liabilities are elso oli-set and the net amount is reported in tha financial statemants. ‘}\‘v\

u\\\\



---_-.-----_-

U MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOYES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

5.19

520

521

5.22

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Trensactions in foreign currencies are transiated into Pak Aupee 81 exchange rsle on the date of wsnsaciion, All monatary
sgsels end liabilitles in forelgn cutrencies ere transisted into Pek Aupee at the ete of exchenge epproximating those ruling at
the belance sheel dete. Foreign exchenge gains end losses resuliing from the settlement of such wensactions and from the
wansiation 8t the yesr and exchange ratas of monetary essels and liebifities denominated in foreign currencies sre recognized
in prolit and Joss account.

Earnings per share

The Benk presents basic and diuvled eamings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is celculsted by dividing the profit or loss
stliibutable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the waighted sverage numbaer of ordinary shares cutstanding during the
yest. Diluted EPS Is detarrmined by adjusting the pofit or loss atiributable to ordinary sharehotdars end the welghted avarage
numtrar of ordinary shares oustanding, adjusted for the etacts of gl dilutive polentisl ordinery sheres.

Shere capite! and dividend

Ordinary shares ere clessified s aquity end recognised at their face veive. Dividend distibution to the shareholders is
recognised es liability in the pasiod in which it is declared.

Fair value measurement

"Fair value’ is the price that would ba raceivad 10 sell en asset or paid to iransfer 8 Nlabllity in an ordarly trensaction betwaan
market panicipanis a1 the messurement date in the principal or, in ite #absence, the most edveniagacus merket 1o which the
Bank has sccass at that date. The fair value ol e fistilily reflecls its non-parformence rfsk,

A numbor ol the Benk's eccounting policies and disclosurgs require the measurement of igir values, for both flnenciel and
non-financial essets and fiabilisies.

When ons is avallable, the Bank measuras the fair value of an instrument using the quoled price in 8n ective market lor thet
insilument. A market is regerdad as sctive it trsnsactions for the essel of liability teke plece with sulficient {requency and

voiuma to provide prcing informeation on en engoing basls.

it there is no quoted price in &n aclive merket, then the Benk uses valustion techniques thet meximize the use-cf relaven
observable inputs and minimize the use of uncbservable inputs. The chosen valustion technique incorporetes eil of the
factors thet market participans would teke into account in pricing & trengectlon.

4 en Bs9et of 8 ligbility measured 81 teir velue hag e bid price 8nd en esk price, then the Bank measures essats and long
positions at a bid price and liabifities and shorl poshions at sn esk price.

The bas! evidence of 1the fair vaiue of 8 financisl instrumant on initial recognition is normally the ransection price - i.e. the
teir valus of tha considerstion given or received. If the Bank determines thet the feir value on initial recogniton ditiars from
the transection price snd the feir velue is avidenced nelther by 8 quoted price in en eclive merket for an identlcal essel or
liability not based on 8 valustion technique for which eny unobserveble inputs sre judged 10 be insignificant In relstion to the
messutement, then the financial instrument is initielly measured 8t fair value, adjusted to defer the ditierence batween the
tair value on initis! recognition and tha transaclion price. Subsequently, thet dillerence is recognised in profit and loss on an
sppropriate basis over the life of tha instrumant bul no Iater then when the valuation is wholly supported by obsaervable

markel dats or the trenssction is closed oul.

M\\
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2022 2021
6 CASH AND BALANGES WITH SBP AND NBP Note Rupeas Rupees
Cagh in hand - Local currency 1,640,403,221 808,863,563
Locsl currency current accounts
Balances with State Bank of Pakistan {SBP) 6.1 6.811,163,187 2.880,491,101
Batonces with Natlanal Bank ol Fakistan {NBP) 776,181 778,188

7,462,332, 8689 3,789,830,850
6.1 This ingludns batance mainteined wilh SBP to comply with 1he requirement of Prudentis! Regulations for Miciolinance Bonks 1o malntain
minimum cash reserva not lass then 5% [2021: 5%) of the Bank’s time and demand deposhs Habilities with tenura of less then one
year. This slso includes As. B9,626,518 (2021: A3, 150,299,534 ) mainleined with SBP under Dapositors” Prolection Fund.

2022 W0
? BALANGES WITH OTHER BANKS/ NBFis/ MFBy Nota Rupaes Aupees
int Pakisian - Local currency
Currant accounts 71 682,281,712 12,386,714
Depomi nccounts 1.2 693,874,148 8.211,618,898
1.276.158.860 6.223,904,412

7.7 This Inctudes Re. 12,800,000 (2021: Rs. 10,600,000} held as depasit under llen in respect ol atandby letter of guaraniee issued to China
Union Pay Inlormalionsl,

7.2 Deposit accounts carricd interast &l (ates renglng from 18,.26% to 7.00% [2021: B.50% to 11.6%) por annum,

2022 2021
8 Lending to Financisl Instiuitlon Rupees Rupees
Revorse repo 5.58‘!,5!:"1'&I

8.1 This rapresenls reverse repo from:
- Nauansl Bank of Pakisiar sl the rate ol 18.10% amounting 10 As. 1.47 biflon wilh maturity date of 03 Janvary 2023,

- Natlongl Bank ol Pakistan al the rate ol 16.9% amounting 1o Rs. 1.47 bilion with maturity date of 03 January 2023,

- Nationgl Bank of Pekisian a1 the rate of 16.40% amounting (o Rs, 1.45 biliion with maturity dale of 03 January 2023,

- National Bank ol Pakistan ai tive iate of 16.40% amounting to Rs. 1.70 bilion witlh maturity date ol 03 Januery 2023,

- Nalional Bank ol Pekistan at the 1010 of 16.40% amounting lo Rs. 484,63 mallon with maturity dete of 03 Janusry 2023.

2022 201
g INVESTMENTS - NET OF PROVISIONS Note Rupeos Rupees
Amoriised cost
Pakislen Invasimant Bonds (P1Bs} 9.1 5,690,878,066
Torm linanco cortiticates (TFCs) - -
§,690,878,086
Falr Value Through Proflt and Lossz [FVTPL}
Mulvel Furnds 93 21,971,008,621 -
Tioasuty bills [T-bills} 9.4 20,326,564,5689 -
Pakistan invesiment Bonds {PIBs) 9.1 §1.,120,887,624 .
2,268,758,526

TFCs

95,667,295,339 -

Fulr Value Through Othar Comprehenalve income (FYOCI

T-bills B4 34,458.448,109 -
Pakistsn invostment Bonds {PIBs) 8.1 -

Ija1ah Sukuk BS5 1,009,648,676 -
Private sukvk - TFCs 501,724,249

Loss: Ctetil loss allowance [Stago 1] {15,953,039) .

36,952,767,998 v\m&!\\\\

/"'"""“"""""""""‘"
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Avaliahis for sale

Murkat Treasury Bills {T-BHls)

Pakislen Investment Bongs (PIBs)

Unreahsed loss on revaluglion of investments

Held for trading
Mutual Fungds

Hald to meturity
Torm deposit recaipts
Laoss: Provision for giminulion in value ol tnvastments

Note

54
5.1

83

9.2

2022 2021
2022 201
Rupoes Rupess

- 21,005,0685,107
- 6,066, 754,960
- {339,506,278)
- 26,732,313,788
- 12,082,205,
- 7,750,000,000

46,684,519,779

137,330,841,404 ——teeee e

This represents Pakisten Imvestment Bonds carrying intergst al the 1ate ranging from 9.00% 1o 17.67% (2021: 9% 10 9.5%] per ennurn,

8.1
9.2 Teun Deposit Receipts (TDRI caiios moikup at rate ranging belweean 10.5% 10 16.00% (2021: 8.50% 10 12%}.
9.3 Tins represonts Investments in open endod mutuel funds and are messured &l [ait value through profil or joss. Feir valve of thesc
iinvostmonls is detarmingd uing quoted repurchase price. Linhs hald in funds eré Iebuiated below:
2022 2021
Ma. of unlts Rupoas No. of units Rupess
ABL Cosh Fund 528,894,610 5,320,256,664 681,214,232 7.043,167,898
Faygal Income ang Growth Fund 62,576,863 7.245,670,807 36,078,250 4,037,160,639
JS Islamic Income Fund 15,239,784 1,699,995,712 - .
JS Mecrofinence Sector Fund 38,208,628 3,645,698,446 - -
Pak Oman Government Securities Fund 198,042,950 2,310,052,162 08.979.054 1,001,877.454
Aitaloh GHP ncome Mulliphor Fund 17,421,580 1,015,164,760 - -
Altalegh GHP Income Muitiplier Fund 9,167,041 534,166,049 - .
889,650,547 21,971.006,621 B0B,271,576 12,082,205 8981
9.4 This teprasants market treesuty bills with malurities renging from 36 to 97 days (2021: 13 10 191 days! cafrying interest at the rete
1enging tiom 15.55% to 16.95% (2021: 7.40% lo 11.45%] per annum.
8.5 ljurah Sukkuk cerries matk up &1 the rata ol 168.46% 1o 19.30% (2023 Nil) per annum and due Lo matura in 22 June 2027,
2022 2021
9.6 Rovoluation of FVYTOCI investments - not of delerred tex Rupess Rupees
Murkol Treasury Bills {T-Bills) 18,776,825} {26.979,500)
Iarah Sukuk 15,853 &38 .
Priveto sukuk - TFCs (9.884,258) -
Pokistan Investment Bonds [PIBs) - [312,625,778)
{3.007,148) [338,508,275)
Ralaled deferred tax effect 992358 50,876,951
{2,014,767) (288,630,328)

SR
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10 ADVANCES - NET OF PROVISIONS

Micro credits
Sccuica
Ursceuied

srameg lrareng

Advancos - grase

Cradit loss allowance against advances
- Siage 1
« Stage 2
-Stage 3

Advancos - net of credit loss allowance

10.1  Advancos - Credit loss allowanco details

Quistanding gross exposuto

Parforming
Under Porforming

Other 355818 espec ly mrertened
Nan - Parfroming

Subsiarcerc

Deuntfu

Loss

Total

Corrasponding crodlit Joss allowance
Stage !
Siege ?
Stage 3

10.2  Particulnrs of wilto offa / charqa offs
Agenst cradn loss ollawance
Apg rsl pigv.s or
Dueclly cliged 1o proln & logs accoun

Performing Non peHorming Tatal
Stage 1 [ Staga 2 Stage 3 ota
2022 I 1023 il 2022 I 2021 2022 I 2021 2022 202"
Rupons )
32,264,090,792 84,286,900 - 188,788,719 32,547.146,412
22,050,395,489 5.980.233,226 1,783,601.282 29.024.229977
608,856,102 - - - - 606,696,302
54,921,382,584 - 6.074,500,126 1,982.389,981 . £2,978,272,881
1253.833.048) - - - (253,833,048)
. - [2,497,449,969) - - {2,497,449,969)
- - - (942,995,714) - 1942,995,714)
(253.833.048) 2 12,497,449,969] [942.985,714) (3.694.278,732}
54,667.549.635 - 3577080067 3 1033394267 x 59,283,993,959 ]
\ Stage 1 Stage 2 Stope 3 [ Sacel Siace? “Siace 3
| 5 2022 _ 2023
[ Rupoos Rupees |
54.921.382.584 5.471,448.723 -
821,011,130
- 1.005,531,891
- 580,693,358
- ) 368,205.206
. - 1,854,439,2585 ) . i
_ 54,921,382,584 £.102,459,852 1.954,430,255 s - -
1251.833.018) -
(2,197.119,969) -
- - 942,995,714}
1293,832.048) (2.49/,449 9869) [942.995,714)
2022 2024
Rupees Rupees
1335,282,962| :
- {772.192,304t
1453.495.303) (18,156,783)
1788.778.285] _(790,348,087)

I\



\ 2022 | 2021 _i
|

| Numbas Rupees Numbet Nupees
Acvarces - §'0ss . A5 190 AR
. 3 1Isg1r [ (529,081 100
N . 14,505 933,9451
[ . AR 12.035,615,253)

Agvances - net of nrovisioas

7 T A0315.729318
——igh LD
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IMFDsI as mennoned above, e slatutory prov-sion would hava bean Ns 1,307 it on aned the Profi nelare tax would have bnon lower by s 7101 euilon Hownaver, donng the yean he Bask early adontad IFRS 0 ard as
nar he xdehnes ol Stale Bank of Pokistas -ws.e0 wa GPRO Creuty: wo 2 of 2022 gatad 5 July 2022 pravsan 10 e
wrpact ol Exaoctad Credn Loss as disclosed wnote 10 5 has nees ecogrised v (hasa tmancial staiemems

o
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311 December

A1 Decamber 2001
10.5 Mavement in impairment allowance for eradit losses Is as lollows: 2022 !
Rupees Rupees
Balance al begmnihg of the year 2,035,615,253 1 31300621776

Impact ol Re-measurameny doe |o adaplion ol IFAS 9
Imparment charga lor ho year '

Heversals 11,355,108,781)
Advances wiillon ofl [335.282,962) 1790.34R.08 /)

Balanoe at end ol 1ho yaar 1.694,278,732 ?,[_)Z}_{}E' .."JM

3,349,055,222
1,512 D0 1654
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2022 202:
1" OPERATING FLXED ASSETS Naote "Rupeas Rupons
Capm! work-n-progress 111 650796724 121,458,550
Property and equipmam 1.2 1,524 380,420 1.288,159.012
Intangitle assols 13 753,348 530 210,253,358
Pight of use sase1 IROU] L1 224 561,71 1.156.333.210

4,753,547, 510 1888170228

114 Caplial work:In.pragress

Broakup af capis! work in progreds 41 the reporirg daia is as loilows:

Advarcas 10 SupDiEs § Contscions 1.1.% 68,812,050 78.308.159
Qifica impiawarnanta . 582,251 874 142,11037
ﬁl.m. , T24 171 418.550
1131 Thi3 rapursanis Jdvanca grean for soitware ard croporiy ard equicmant
112 Proparty and squlpmemt
2022
Cowl o 1ot Book valus st 31 Rytos of
At 01 Jenumry Addivens Dlsparsats / Trandars Al 21 Decambar A1 01 Janoary Chergoforthe DN Is/ At 21D b D bar 2022 dopradal
02 writeot] o] 2on et wrlieol nn %
! {per anrrum)
Rupaes
Ownad
Famlture and (irtera 22 108,145 74,769 885 e831,389) . 298414453 81099 458 14,951,841 {484,848) 107,508,153 150,804,293 10.00%
Computar aquipmeaats 798,692,674 154,670,214 (12.595.780 - $34,770,100 LELR ALY 193,343,148 (12,380, 638) 553,667,217 381,102,883 33.33%
Hactrical equipmant 845,899,501 112,528,044 1642,0567] - 1.254,062,7H 688,320,915 203,209,688 (598,227) T97.A31,280 471,151418 10.00%
Vahides 31,597,740 . B - .551,740 3,139,357 'l 1A Ky ] il.m.ﬂ!'l ngm,199 112540 w000%
Offica Imprevement 542,591,123 151,551,533 183227771 . 17,9203 INLTELER? 4581420 - WEAAMD AT 10.00%
mlﬂ& mgg& (22,224,581 - 3243, 785291 1294000473 mgas 108 [21,794,608] & pPral 1 K ral |£4é g
121
Coxt Daprecation ’ Bon'k\"'-uc an Hates of
A1Q1 January Additrons Qupeasls f Tianalers At At 01 Jenuary Chetga for the D il At 21D bor 2071 d i |
2o writaoll 11 Qecembar p-3] yeor wizet| 2021 %
2021 Ipar snnymy
Pupees
Gvened
Fumnura ard fixtura 705,889 237 22,272,058 {5.553,148) B 422.308,145 42,078,587 22,2973 1,524 8231 G3.095.458 119,287.499 10.00%
Camputar oauwipmants 701,955 128 98,454,074 Q.B18.6MH - 798,092 074 214,781,099 103,858,834 0.80a.a12) M N4117 103,802,268 nn%
Elecirical aquipmant 876210032 76.407.651 5,720, 724) - 948,859 801 4240719 187.053.302 5.389, mn 5B85.320.919 872,674,371 20.00%
Vahiclas 31,597,740 - . . 31,597,140 W0X0433 089,924 9129357 z.m.:m 0.00%
CHifce improvermaent 488,738,043 68,242,930 (11.788.747) - 542,891,125 Nﬂ.w'\ﬂﬂ 49,558,078 7474 Slﬂ a1, mm 10.00%
2,303 635077 263,512 80 ©27.025.195 - 1549, i88.485 847.719.400 A04.961.481 (186873391} 1,254 000473 a E,mz

1123 Cant of fully doprecisied poparty and equipmant that are still in use o As. 440,543,545 [202); Ag. 285,965,459,
1122  Theta wero no dolslion of fxed A55uts Guring Tha year with cost in excats af Ag. 1 mlion pr book vehee In excass of Ag, 250,000, Cumuinird velue of dapets during tha yorr were ¢3 folows:
Deowcription " Onginalecost  Accumulsted " Bookwvalue  Salepracoeds  Goin/(Loxsl  Modaof ParUculars of buyers

depreciztion dizpaxal
Rupses

Total xva1s soid 22,224 581 23,794,008 430373 1,255 658 828,235 Az per poficy  Vatioud buyan MQ
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11.3 Intangible assats

Gl Em aB am Oy & m o

[-_--_-----_-

) 2022

Cost Amortlzstion Book value ot Rates of

At 01 January Additlons Transfars At 31 Dacamber At 01 Jonuary Charga for the Transfars At 31 Decambaer 31Decombar  amortlzetion
2022 2022 2022 yaar 2022 2022 %
[par annum)})
Rupaes
Compuler soltwargs 303,628,575 42,528,932 479,555,663 168,767,335 64,555,968 21323303 248,232,380 10.00%
Licenses 55,792,894 11,114,278 3,509,017 12,394,739 - - 12,394,739 11,114,278 20.00%
Mail sarvar 78,378 . 78,378 78,378 - - 78,3718 - 331.33%
449,499,848 53.643.210 503,143,058 179,240,452 84,556,988 243,796,420 259,346,639
20
Cos! Amortizatlon Book vaius st 31 Rstes of
A101 Januery Additlons Transfars At AL 01 January Charge for the  Transfeis At 31 Decomber Decombar 2021  amortlzation
023 31 December 2021 . yaar 2021 Fa
202t {per anaum)
Rupees
Computer softwares 274,786,219 118,843,357 393,628,576 116,393,178 50,374,167 166,767,335 270,259,296 10.00%
Licenses 55,792,894 - 55,792,894 12,384,739 - - 12,384,739 - 20.00%%
Mail sarver 78,378 - 78.378 78,378 - - 18,378 - 33.33%
330,656,491 118,843,357 449,499,848 128,968,296 50.374,1 87 179,240,452 270,269,386

11.3.1 This includes oparating system and microsoh oifica licensea. Tha average remeining life of 1ha computer soliwares is 02 yaars {2021: 03 yaars),

e
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1.4

11.4.1

121

122

123

12.4

12

2022 2021
Aight of use assat Note Rupsesz Rupees
Balance a1 start of the year 1.158,333,270 1.204,105,972
Adoimons 1.623,119,353 184,002,253
Disposats £ Termunation of lease A (23.,385,178) 138.075.661)
Modihcahion of lease 1,998,321 79,224 100
Depreciation 26 {421,502,038) {2B0.923,394)

Balarce a1 end of the yeu 2,328,563,728 1,168.333.270

Details ol delstion of nght of use asscts duting the year wath cost n excess of As 1 milion or book value in excess ol Rs, 250,000 are

as folluws;
Dascripticn Orlginal cost  Accumulatad Book velue Sala Gain Mode of  Particulars of buyers
depreciation proceeds disposal '
Rupges
Vehc | pase 4,484,460 EFARREY 7,613,345 267,419 LROM  Buy hack " Mr. Bansaa Asghar
Vehiciy Loaso 2.392.200 1,865,210 1,526,430 1,169,954 (GE536] Huyback  Mr Narandar Xumas
Vencle Lease 3,303,060 1297357 2.870.703 2910103 Buy baick  Insuranco claim EFU
Vahitie Lease 2,759,560 1,203,822 1,955,738 1.955.736 Buy nack  M:. Naoboel Anmed
vencie Logse 3259560 1.h75,458 1,684,106 1.6es106 Buy back Mz Khiger haya!
vehielp Loase 3.140.011 2,145 674 931 337 %94 337 0 Buybeck N Niza
Vehicle Loasa 3,140,011 1.72/.006 1,111,005 1,113,004 (il Buy nack M. [=al Zoman
Vahicla Louso 2,944 485 1.526,4B6 1.428.002 1,128,002 i Huyback  Mr Tural Ab Skoh
Vercle | pase 7.805.000 811,500 1,562,500 2,197,250 232750 Buymack M Arushey Maveen Asnral
Venca Lease 2664630 1.910.524 55 106 1IL5106 ¢ Wi Huy sace K0 Soitan
Vahclo Lease 2.557,.214 1,960,531 L045,BR3 597,000 317 Buy bick  Mr, Saemagd Pretw
Vamcie Loiaso 2.1539.135 753,914 2,280,272 72,377,540 42319  Buy buck  Mr. Syed Besn
31,-.5&}.329__ ..;..—l.b UM.EIE‘M ___'2_9‘536.235 A?D!‘b‘l |‘5? e 2/1922
2022 202
OTHER ASSETS Note Rupeas Rupees
Incone / maik-up acsiued 121 . B,537.417,246
Agvancus, deposis and olher prepay 411,741,156 376.198,888
Receivable from 1-Liny - 100,536,490
inventory of ATM cateds #nd slationity 78,608,546 23182612
Agdvance (o employeos 12.2 138,243,944 125,840,940
Recewable from SBP 123&12.4 909,693,698 ABE,749,452
Insursncy clesms recuwvable 138,164,141 43,071,656
Receivable ftom slaf! retrement berehl - Provident 173 2,376,025 -
Recievable lrom detned cantribution plan - Gratnly fund 16,733,389 -
Othurs 301,809,796 31,675,667

1,997,370,695 _10_050.583.1 52

Thrs 15 net of markup suspended acwuniing o As N {2021, Bs 1,793 midliani on non-perlorming fozns of inc Bank.

These represent loans (0 staH and executives of ihe Bank far @ maximuin penod of 60 months. Thuse are secured against the
retiremont benefits of employees

This represents amounl recewable lram SBF in respect ol msurance prermuen ped by the Bank for hvestock and ¢rop loans undet
ACEMFD circulat no. 01 of 2013 deled 01 Novernber 2003

This includes Rs. 453 million recevable rons Guvemment undor “Mark-up Wuwvet and Financing Schames lur Farmors in Rain/Flood
Alfectud Areas under Kissan Packigu 20227 via SBP vide circular ACAMFD Nu 3 of 2022 daled 21 Decembaor 2022,

Tne 10i¢l puisianding tnarkup acciucd v loans in Flood allecied areas as al 30 Seotember 2022 amounted o Rs. 808 million net of
recovents The Bank has waived ull the enure amuunt by diuectly wiiting oll the markup acciued on leans. 50% of this amount, Rs.
453 nullon has been wcognised as toceivable from the Governimeny

DEFERRED TAX ASSET Rupeas Rupees
Deductable temporary ditlerences ansing m respect ni
Prowision agains| ativances 1,219,111,981 590,328.473
Detict on rovalgatzn ol available fur sale secuntics 992,358 50.875.951
Remcasurement of employees™ retirement benchis 3,984,711 291977
Leaso linance facthines 76,268,506 60,826,189
Mintmum Tax over Noimal 1gx / Tuxatle losses 984,924,340
Accolurated tex deprecietion / anottizcation gllowancy 80,564,840 11,408,196
Itnpact of remeasureinent ol financial asseis 557.793.133 :
2.923,625,869 746,458,533

Total deductable temporary differances

W

&9\"“
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2022 2021

Texable temporory dilferences erising in respect of Rupees Rupees
Treasury bills {189,338,287} {26,073,192)
Pakislen invasiment Bonds {PiBs) - 124,439.803)
Mulus! funds (124,508,042) 115,497,819)

Totel texable tamporary differences {313,848,329) 169,010,914

Deferred tax asset 34509'733540 677447819

Neti balence at

l---_-[---_---

Nol balanco at [mpaoct of Reocogniead in
Q1 Jestuary pdoption of Profit and loas Other 3 December
2022 IFRS B account comprahenslve 2022
Insorma
Rupges
mn22
Taxsbis lomporary diferoncas
[rossuy Bills 125,073,182} 164,265,085 [185,338.257)
'skisizn invasimaont Bonde {PIBS) 124,439,803) - 24,439,803 . .
Murtual {unds 119,497,819} - (105.010,123) - {124,808,042)
Orductible tamporory difforenices
Oporating flxed osaols 41,408,168 . 39.156.644 . 80,564,840
Hovision lor pvancos 590,328,923 171,226,013 342,442,458} . - 1.218,111.581
Mimmyum tax / Tex lpas - . £84,924,340 - 854,924,340
Employao rotirernoni benailt - gratulty 2.819,774 - - 1.064,937 3,884,711
fmpact ol romassurornont af {inoncial assets . 115,882,488 242,100,847 . 857,793,173
Surptus / idelicitl on revaluation of assets 50,875,851 {43,032,998) - {3,050,584) 682,350
Lobsex 60,926,189 - 15.232.317 - 76,258,608
746458,533  1.290,085.501 939,071,482 (1,885,667}  2,923.629,869
877,457,818 1.220,005.801 884,238,077 11,885.857) 2,808,783,540
Not balsnco ot impact of Recognlsed in Nat belanco st 31
01 Joruzry 2021 mdoplion of IFRS  Prolit and loes Qzhar Docerrdar 2021
9 account comprahenshmo
Intome
Rupoes
2021
Taxablpo tempaorary ditorencss
‘licasury Dills (B.054.086) (17,018,108} {25,072,192)
"gkisten trrvestmaont Bands {P1Bs) (24,439,807 124,439.803)
Mutuzl tunds (18,487.919) 119,487,019)
Doduetlblo tomporary dilforoncos
Oporating Fixed asacls 24,254 688) 65,662,864 41,408,188
fravision fot advances 360,768,234 209,540,189 - ' 690,328,422
krnployza retirement benmil - gratuity 251,588 . 2.666.188 2,919,774
Surplus / [deficill on Jevalustion of assety {110,860 . 50,868,911 50,875,951
Looses 50,984,492 5,931,697 - €0,926, 189
407,670,684 285,134,760 53,653,088 746,450,533
149,618,688 224,177,822 53.653.008 677,447,818
2022 2021
Number of Amount Numbar of Amount
accounts Rupees BCcounts Rupees
14 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS '
Fixed deposits 1,644 26,708,855,451 1,666 20,280,326.633
Seving deposils 17,476 £5,999,875,603 15,846 30,892,674,501
Current deposits 3,639,509 5,678,273,914 2,722,176 3,827,288,181
3,658,628 88,357_,054‘558 2,738,578 55,000,289,895
Istamic
Fixed deposils 37 76,902,500 -
Seving deposils 423 3,222,331,560 - .
Current deposits 3,675 514,172,104 - -
4,135 3,813,408,254 - -
Total deposite 3,662,764 §2,200,411,122 2,739,578 55,000,289,5695

M
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’-----------

2022 2021
Number of Amouni Number oi Amount
14.1 Particulars of deposits by ownership accounts Rupeaes ACCOUNIS Rupees
Intvioual aecosine s 3,654,807 15.287,817,803 2.739.404 29,488,403,09”
Institulional Aepositors
Sorcotanond hrms g1 7.822 33,609,932,644 140 17.428,759,097
Banks / financial msututions 135 43,302,660.675 34 8.103,127,556
Total 3.662.764 92,200,411.122 2.739.578 55,000,289,695
14.2 Thiz inchides deposns amounting 10 As. 6,5/ million {2021 Rs. 5769 million) Irom relamed pames. Also refer nore 37.
2022 2021
15 BORAOWINGS Note Rupees Rupees
Enntounngs from Eanag [ Simancial inshivions m Saanian
Socured
Faysal Bank Limwier - | ! 128,400 166,666,657
Alled Bank Limites - 1| 5.2 505,947 1,333,333,330
National bank of Patstan - Hunning finange 15.3 1,041,639,451 1,000.C00.000
Fay3al Bank Limitee - I 154 133 333.332.6G7
State Bank ol Pakistan 155 1,056,302,092 1.500,003,000
Repo Borrowing 15.6 29,659,931,975 15,565.721,500
Al Sack Lonted Runming fingnce: - 1 57 520,945,753 500.C20.000
Sanic Al Falah iCesh Managements 520,237,309 .
Hopn Borrowing - PIB ib8 - 1.916.632,000
Eank, Aialsh - FPTT 158 3,300,820,710 3.5C0.000.000
Bant. ol Funjnb 1510 509,013,950 600,000,000
AllieA Bant Limitad 11 LR 2,480,884,187 2.250.600,000
Pasietan Micrigage Refinance Company 1512 - 5GG.CCC.C00
Pakistan Kuwarl Investment Company (Privaied Lirited 15.13 402,842,238 750.000.000
Alwod Bant Lielee Bunnog linance - i 1514 5,023,383,565 5.000.000.000
Auien Bank Lmian N 515 432,359,183 5C0.C20.000
Patistan Morigage Refinanca Company - 11 1516 437,515,028 500,000,000
Uniled Bank [ rmited 1517 339,528,731 &75,000.000
WCE Bar Limned 5 g 351,356,304 500,000,000
Menzan Bank - Bi Mangi 1518 1,080,318,360 -
UMEBL ADT-1 TFCs .20 1,001,126,576
UMEL - MCE - STFVIC 152 10,086,400,184
N3P - Teim Finance 15.22 1,525,644,213
MCS - STRWE-2 1523 20,231,346,739
ABL RF-MWM-G 1504 20,100.136,986
Meezan Bimaugjial - 7 15.25 2,005,058,418
Pioazan Bimueal 2 15.28 3,002,727,063
ASKARI RFAVIV Fariny 1527 10,013,561,644
Call Borrowing - ZTE.. 19.28 1,000,000,000 -
116,123,715.137 36.880,686.164
15.1 This repraseats term: hinance loan of Rs. 1 hillon garying markup of G-months KIBOR plus 1% 12021: 6-Months KIBOR plus | %)
pet anaum payable tameannually. The an 15 secures aganst fusy pan passu charge nr: book Aebts, advances and recevable of
the Bank voith 255 margim and Meciniinangs: Cred | Guaranies Fanility from Siale Sank of Paiastan al 75%. Tms loan 15 repavable
n B equal semi-annual instalments of Rs, 166.67 milinn each Repaynmwents have stared rom August 2019 and as on 31 Dec 2022
sntire ameon of loar bas been renen
15.2 This reprosents term lnance faclity under syndicate tinancing thraugh Allied Bank Limeted of Rs. 4 billon carrying markup of 6-

months KIBOR plos 0.959% (2021 G-Momhn KIBOR plus 0.95%:¢ per annum pavable semeannualiy martears. This »s securend
agains? frst pan pastu charge over all present and flure assels axcluding lana acd buifing of the Bank nut not nmited 1n advances
anel invesiments beyond SRR and SLR requirternents nl the Bank weth 25% margir Disbursemeant was wmitinly made  against a

loan was drawn pn 31 Decembor 2018 and as on 3% Dec 2022 enire amount of loan has been repaie

ranking charge whirt was upgraded 10 151 pan pasu ity i 130 davs nf hrsi dishersemant, This loan ss renayeble in 05 equal sem-

aniual nstalments vath the Wrst pancipal repsyment laling due 0 eigiveenth 181hi month from the first disbursement date, T

A
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This represents utlized amouni of running finance fadhity through Nationsl Bank of Pakisian Limited of Rs. 1,000 milllon
{2021: 1,000 milllon) cenying markup of 3-months KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum {2021: 3-Months KIBOR pgus 0.75% par
ennum), This is secured ageinst lirst pari passu charge on all current and futuie book debis, sdvances end recetvable of the

Benk Markup is repayable on quanterly basls,

This rapresents term flnance foan of Rs. 1 billion carrying markup ol &-months KIBOR plus 0.75% per ennum (2021: 6-Months
KIBOR plus 0.75% per annumt. This is secured ageinst {Irst parl passu charge on book debts. advances end recelvables of
the Benk for Rs. 1,333 miflien {25% maigin}. Initial disbursement on ranking charge was upgraded to first per passu from 21
December 2018. This loan is repayable In 8 semi-annyal instalmants of Rs. 168.656 mlllon sach atter grece perlod of 01 year
with the notions! principle of Rs. 1,000 within {lrst two semi-annua! merk-up payments end as on 31 Dec 2022 entire amount

of fosn has keen repaid.

This represents term finence loan of As. 7,600 mililon carrying markup of 6-months KIBOR minus 100 bps (2021: 6 Months
KIBOR minus 100 bps) for the tenor of live years. Markup amoun! s payable on evary haif year end i.e 30 June end 31
Decembat, while paymant of psinciple will be made in the fast four quariers oi the loan period o in buliet form. The loan is
provided against the following terget set by the SBP,

-1hs loan should be disbursed to 60% femala borrowers

-the Bank should digburse 25,000 loans; and

-gll loans disbursed should meet the E&S guldline issued by SBF.

This rapiesents Repo Borrowing from;

- Pak Oman Investment Benk st the rete of 18.9% amounting to Bs. 1.45 blllion with maturity date of 08 January 2023.
- Pak Oman Imvastmant Bank ot tha rate of 18.9% amounting 1o As. 1.45 bilkon with maturity dste of 05 Jenuary 2023.
- Zoral Taragiati Bank LimHed at tha rate of 18.40% amauntlng 1o Rs. 1.98 billion with maturity date of DB Januvary 2023..
- 2api Taragieti Benk Limited at tha rate of 16.40% amounting 10 Rs. 1.88 billion with maturity dete of 08 Jenuary 2023.
- CDC ABL Incoms Fund a! the rete of 16.40% amounling 1o Rs. 1.47 billlon with maturity dste of 18 Jenuery 2023.

- COC ABL Income Fund et the 1ate of 16.40% smounting 10 Rs. 1.47 billion with maturity date of 1B Jenuary 2023.

- CDC ABL Income Fund at the rete of 16.40% amounting 1o As. 195.60 mililon with matuiity date of 18 January 2023.
- Bank of Punjeb at the rete of 16.40% amounting to Rs. 1.93 billion with maelurity date of 05 Jen 2023.

- Bank of Punjsb a1 the rate of 16.40% amounting 10 Rs, 978.8 million with maturity data of 08 Jan 2023.

- Bank of Punjab at the re1e of 16.40% amounting to Rs. 1.93 bliion with maturity date of 06 Jen 2023.

- Bank of Purijab 8t the rate of 18.50% emounting to Rs. 1.99 biilion with maturity date of 03 Jan 2023.

- Bank ol Punjab at the rata of 16.50% smounting 10 Rs. 1.98 bilion with maturity dets of 03 Jan 2023.

- Bank of Punjab at the rate of 16.50% emounting 10 As. 992,953 milllon with meiurity date of 03 Jan 2023

- Bank of Punjab at the rate of 16.40% emounting to Rs. 1.91 bilion with matuity dale of 03 Jan 2023.

- Bank of Punjab at the rate of 16.40% amounting 1o As. 1,91 bilion with maturity date of 03 Jan 2023.

- Bank of Punjab et the rate of 16.40% amounting 1o Rs. 1.91 bilion with maturity dste of 03 Jan 2023,

- Bank of Punjab 81 the rate of 16.40% emounting to Rs. 994.6 million with matuiity dale of 03 Jsn 2023.

- Knushali Bank Limited at the rate of 16.50% amounting to Rs. 1.89 bilion with maturily dste of 03 Jan 2023,

- Khushali Bank Limited st the rate of 16.50% emounting 1o Rs. 487,25 million with maturity date o 03 Jan 2023:

- Habib Metro Bank Limied 81 the rate o! 16.20% amounting 10 Rs. 457.25 million with matusity date of 06 Jen 2023.

This represents running linance of As. 500 million oblained from ABL a1 the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 0.85% per snnum
12021: 3 months KIBOR + 0.85% per annumNo be paid on quenerly besis with the tenor of 12 months. This tunning linance
facility is socured against all present end future assets of Bank excluding lend and bullding wath 25 % margin and is obtainad
lo mee! the short lerm funding requliement and to finence growth In advances.

This represents Repo Borrowing from Zarai Taraglati Bank Limiled at the rate of 14.50% amounting to Rs. 1.84 billion and
stand malured on 28 Juty 2022.

This rapresents privalely placed teim finance certificates {TFCs] of Rs. 3.5 Bilion disurlbuted in 35,000 TFCs of Rs. 100,000
esch, The lssus amount was utilized 10 enhance 1he sdvances porticlin ol the Bank. The facility tenure Is 04 years (inclusive
of 01 year grecel end Is priced at 6 Month KIBOR + 1.35% (202): & Momh KIBOR + 1.35%). Hell of the issue smount [s
secured 8Qainst 15t pari pgssu charge on the book debis, sdvences and receivables with 25% margin remaining half is
secured apeinst chargeflien on governmeni secunlies, Semi - annual principal redemption shell commence from 2nd year
from issue date in OB equar principal installments and shall continye 1ill the maturity of the instrument. The rating ot these
certilicatas Issued by PACRA Is AA- with stable outlook. These TFCs eie required to be inducted in CDS and the laws and
regulation releting to the CDS with respect to the 1erm finance cailificates will be appliceble 10 the TFCs. . KW\J’\
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This reprasents term finence fecility obtainad from The Benk of Punjab of Rs. 800 Milion carrylng markup ol &months
KIBOR plus 0.95% per annum {202! :5-months KIBOR plus 0.95% par annum) paysble semi-annually In etresrs. This Is
sacured egaingt lirst parl passu charge over ell present and futlure assets (excluding land end building), book debts, edvances
microcradil recervables and invesimants of the bank with 25% margin. This ioan is repaysble ln 07 equel semi-annual
instalments with the first principsl repsyment falling due an twallth (12thl manth frem the lirst disbursement date. The loan
was drawn on 30 June 2021,

This represents syndicated lerm finance facility of Rs. 2,250 milllion The seld finance carrying markup et the rala of 8-month
KIBOR plus 1.25% per ennum(2021:6-month KIBOR ptys 1.29% per annum). Mark up s pald sami ennushy in arrears, The
lirst payment shall be due end paysble st the and ol eighean months from disbursament date end subseguently every six
months tharesfter. This is secured egeinst first pan-passu charga on all present and future assets of the borrower with the
margmn ol 25%. The loan was drawn on 26 November 2021.

This raprasants housing loen from Pakisian Mongege Refinance Company Limited of Rs. 500 million carrying merkup at the
tate of 1 year Kibor with negative spread of 1% deponding upon the utillzstion. First peyment sheli {ell due et the end of 3rd
manth from disbursement end subsequently every quarter thereafier. This was secured against first pari-passu charge on all
present and fulure cument as5sa1s of the bomawar with the margin of 25%. Loan amounting 1o Rs. 300 milion was drawn on
27 August 2021 and Rs, 200 million on 30 Sep 2021, As on 31 Decamber entira amount of 10an has bean repsid.

This raprasents wilised amount of 1erm finance facility of B3. 750 million {from Pakistan Kuwait Investment Company (Private}
Limitad {PKIC or lander) fo enhancement of advances portiollo of UMBL, carrying merkup et the rate of 6-months KIBOR
Pus 1.10% per annum (2021: &-manths KIBOR pius 1.10% per ennum}. This is sacured against first par-passu charge on all
present and future as5ets texcluding land and buildingl including but not limited 1o book debts. advancas, microcradits, bills,
cash and benk balancas, investments eic with 25% margin. This loan Is repayable in 4 seml-annual instalments of As. 1B7.5
mlltion each with no grace penad. The loan was drewn on 2 December 2021,

This represents ulilised amount of 1unning flinanca facliity of Rs. 6,000 million , canying markup at the rate ol 3 months
KIBOR + 0.05% per annum {2021: 3 months KIBOR + 0.09% per annumj to be paid on quanterly basis in sriears with the
tenor of 12 months. This is seoured against ABL asset management unils with 5% margin. This running finance faclity Ls
obtained to meet the short term funding requiremant and 1o finance growth in advances/agri pontfolio Including but not limitad
to landing in KPK/Bslochisten. The foan was drawn on 20 December 2021.

This reprasants housing loen of Rs. 500 million from Allied Bank Limited carrying markup at the rate of 6-months KIBOR pluz
0.95% per ennum (2021: 6-months KIBOR plus 0.96% per ennum). This Is secured against first pari-pessu hypothacated
charge on all prasent and future assets (excluding land and building) ol the Bank a8t 25% margin. This losn Is repaysble in 9
agual semi-snnua! Instelments of As. 55.55 million each inclusive of 6 months grece period. The losn wes drawn on 17

December 2021.

This reprasents housing loan ol Rs. 500 million from Pakistan Morigage Relinance Company Limited carrying merkup 8t the
rate of 1 yasr KIBOR with negative spread ol 1% (2021t yeer KIBOR with negative spread ol 1%) depending vpon the
ulilization. First principal peyment shall {all due at the end of 3rd month from ecxpiry of grace petiod and subseguently every
quenef theraafier, This is secured against first pari-passu charge on ell present and fulure assets of the Bank. Tha loan was
drawn on 30 December 2021.

This represents housing loan of Rs. 475 million from United Bank Ltmited carrying markup at the rata ol 1-month KIBOR plys
0.85% pe: annum {2021: 1-month KIBOR plus 0.85% per annum). This is secured against fist pari-pessu hypothecated
charge on all present and luture 8ssels with 25% marpin. This lean is repsysble In 8 equel semi-annysl Instaimenta cf Rs.
79.17 million starting from Juns 2022, The logn was drewn on 29 December 2021.

This represanis housing loan of As. 600 million oblelned from MCB Bank Limited cairying markup at the tate of 3-months
KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum (2021: 3-months KIBOR plys 0.75% per annum). This is secured agsinst tirs1 pari-passu charge
amounting 1o Rs. 667 mullion on 8l present and fulure essets {excluding land end buitdingl but not limited to
advances/microcredi raceivables and investments {excluding CAR and SLR requirements, any lien over cash/TDRI. This loan
is repaysble in 12 quarterly instelments of Rs. 41,67 million staning from fiftaenth monih sach Inclusive of 1 year grace
period. The loan was drewn on 31 December 2021,

This represents 8al Mawasjisl of Rs. 999 million from Meszsn Benk Lid to finance the lending operetiona of Islamic
Microfinance Division of U Microfinence Bank Ltd by utllizing the shori-tarm facility to setup, estsblish end develop Igan
pontfolio, carrying markup 81 the rate of 12-months KIBOR plus 0.15% per snnum{2021: Nill. This Is secured agsinst
Government security amounting to Rs. 1.1 Billion charge. This Ioen is repayable sfter 12 Months amouniing 10 RS, 999 million

on 22 June 2023. The logn was drawn on 22 June 2022, t‘m

AL
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This represents term finenca cerificales {TFCs) of Rs. 1 Billion distributed in 10,000 TFCs of Rs. 100,000 each. The Issue
emount will be utiized 10 contribute towards Ubank's Addillenal Tier-1 capitel. The facility tenure is perpetual and is priced ot
B Month XIBOR + 3.5% {2021: Nil). Profit will be paysble semi-annualy in arrears on non-comulative on the outstanding Issue.
Amgunt basis shali conunue till the matunty of the instrument. The first such profit peyment will fell dug six months from the
issue of the dete angd subsaquently every six months. The raling of thaese certificatos Issued by PACRA ks A-. These TFCs
shell be inducted in CDS and the Iaws snd regulation relating to the CDS with respect 1o the term linsnca certificates will be

applicable 1o the TFCs.

This represents lcan of RBs. 10 Hllion from MCB Bank Ltd to finance the working capitel requirements including for expansion
of the Bank's advances portiolio. This loan is secured with 109% margin on latest NAV at the rete of 01-month KIBOR +0.05%
per annum {2021: Ni). The principle amouni of facllity |s repsyable on maturity and mark-up repayments lall due st the time
of adiustment of each yranche/metunty. The Ican will stand metlure &5 on 31 March 2023.

This raprasenis Term finance lacility of Rs. 1.5 million from National bank of Pakisten cetrying markup et the rate of 0B
months KIBCR plus 0.65% per annum{2021:N:l). The purpose of the iscility is to meet business requiraments of the comspny
including but not Imited 1o expansion of the Banks's advances portiolio. This |s eecured sgeinst First peri-passu
hypothecation charge over gll prasent and future aesets (excluding lend & building) of the company Including birt not limited
to advancas, mitcocradit receivables end Investment beyond CRR end SLR requirement of the company with 26% margin.
This loan is repayable in eight equal seml-annual instaliments with the principle repsyment dua on 18th month from the
dishursement date. The mark up is fequired to be repaid semi-annually In 10 semi-snnusl instaliments and the first mark up
payment is due at the end of sixth month from the disbursement date.

This rapresents ioan of Rs. 20 billion from MCB Bank Lid 1o finance the working capitel raquirements including for expansion
of the Bank's advances portfollo. This facility is secured ageinst Pakisian investment bond/reasury bills to be kept in IPS
sccount maintained with MCB at the rale of 5% mergin .The loen carries interest at the rate of 01-months KIBOR per
annumi2021:Nil).The principie amount of facllity is repayable on malturity and merk-up repeyments fell due et the time of
adjustment of each trenche/meaturity. The loan will stend mature as on 31 March 2023, -

This repiesents Running linence/Money Market Loan bank ol Rs. 10 billion from Allled benk of Pakistan to meet short-larm
lunding requrements including but not limited 10 finance growih in advsnces portfolio in KPK andBalochisten reglons. This
tacility carry markup at the rate of 03-months KIBOR per annum{2021:Nil). This is seturad against Pakistan invesimant
bond/irapsury hills to be kept in IPS account maintalnad with ABL with 5% margin.The loan waes drawn on 28 December
2022.8nd the loen will stand mature as on 31 August 2023.

This represents Bai Mewajisl of Rs. 1.9 billion from Meezan Bank Ltd 1o finence the lending operations ol istamic
Microfinance Division ol U Microfinance Benk Lid by utilizing the short-term lacility to selup, establish and develop loan
portiolio. The loan carries inlerest 8t the rate of KIBOR +0.15% with {loor of 3% and cap of 5%. This loan is secured agalnst
the investment in Pakisatan invesimen! Bonds mainteined with thitd party banks investor portfolio with 5% margin.

This represents Bai Maujjel acility of Rs. 2.9 bilhon {rom Maezen bank limiled to finence the lending operations of Islsmic
Microfinance Bank by utilizing 1he short term laclily to set up, establish and develop loan portiolio et the rate of
KIBOR0.0S% per annum (2021: Nillwith licor of 3% and cep of 26%. This is sacuted sgainst over the principle value of
PeXistan nvestment Bond's or treasury billg in 3rd party IPS eccount of UMBL maintelned with ABL or Pak Brunel Invesiment
CO Ltd &1 the 1ate of §% mergin and for lien over GOP ljarah sukuk in the IPS account o! UMBL maintalned with MBL with nll
margin . Theis facllity will sinad mature on 31 Augusi 2023,

This represents Running financa bank of Rs. 10 biljon from Askerl bank limited to finance working capital requirements and
mvestmsnt and stetutory snd reporting requirements a1 the tete of 01-month KIBOR ptus 0.01% per annumi2021:Nil). This ig
sacurad agsinst Pakislan invesimant bondfiressury bills/sukuks to ba %ept in IPS account maintained with AKBL with 5%
margin..Tha pnnciple Is required to be repaid 81 matuiity on demand and merk up is repayable on quanerly basis. This fecility
will stand mature on 31 August 2023.

This represents Celi Borrowing from Zarei Teraglatl Bank Limited al the rate of 16.76% amounting 10 Rs. 1 billion with
maturity date of 06 January 2023.

2021 2020
SUBDRDINATED DEBT Note Rupees Bupaas
Term Finence Certificates 1841 449,100,000 598,920,000
Subordinated Ipan {rom PTCL 18.2 1,384,491,286 1,200,000,000
1,633,591.286 1,75B.920,000

v
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This represents term finance certiticates {TFCs) of Rs. 600 milion distributed in 120,000 TFCs of Rs. 5,000 each issued as
subordinated 1o8n in June 2017. The losn i3 evailed as TIER-II subordinalad debt for inclusion in the Benk's Supplementary
Capitel. The facility tenure is 7 years and is priced st 6 Month XIBOR + 3.50% (2020: 8 Month KIBOR + 3.50%). The
instrument is structured 1o redeem 0.02% of principal, semi-annuslly, over the tirst 80 months and remaining principai of
24.95% each of the issue amounl respectively, In four egusl instaiments starting from 86th month. The TFCs are
subordinated as lo the payment ol principal and profit 1o alt other indebiness of the Bank. The rating of these certificates
155ued by JCR-VIS is A- with an stable outlook.

This represents unsecured. subordinated debt from PTCL, the Parent Company. The facility tenure Is 7 years wilh grace
period of & years and Is priced 81 3 Month KIBOR + 2% (2021: 3 Month KIBOR + 2%} per annum. The loan |s avalied as TIER-
It subordinated debt for inclusion in the Bank's Supplernentery Cap'tal. Loan |s structured to redeem In four equal semi-annual
instalments starting {from June 2024, Tha debt Is unsacured, subordinated as 1o the paymaent of principle and profit 1o el) other
indebiness of the Bank, including deposit end it is not redeamable before maturity without prior eppravel of the SBP. In the
previoys year. the Benk end Parent Company PTCL entered inio an egreement for the conversion of its Tier Il subordinsted
debt amounting to As. 1 blllion inlo ordinery shares subject 10 regulstory spprovals. State Benk of Pakistan via letier no.
BPRD/BA&CFP/671/17407272022 dated 12 January 2022 granted approvel lor the sald conversion subject to certain conditions,
altective as of 31 December 2021, Approval of Secyrities and Exchange Commission of Pakisten (SECP) was obleined on 25

Moy 2022,

During tha yeer, the Bank issued fully paid up, rated, privetely placed/DSLR listed, unsecured, subordineted, perpetual and
non cumulglive deb! instrumant in the nawre of Additional TIER 1 Capilal Term Flnance Certiflcatas of Rs. 1,000 milion
linclusive of Green shoe oplion of Rs. 250 millign} {The "TFC') 85 instiument of redesmasabla caphtel under section 68 {1) of
Companigs Act, 2017 carrying meikup 81 the rale of 6 months KIBOR plus 3.5% peyable semi-gnnually on 8 non-Cumulative
basis on the oulstending issue amount. The Bank hes full discretion over the amount and timing of prolit distribution and
waivar ol any profit distribulion or other payment doas nol constiiute an event of defsult. The Bank may call the TFCs a1 par
{either partially or in full) with prior approval of State Bank of Paklstan {SBP), on any protit payment dete efter 5 years from the
issue date. The instiument Is subordingted as to payment ol principal snd proflt to aNl others cleims except common shares.
These tarm llnance centificates ara convertabla into fixed numbsr of ordinary shares ol the Bank upon CET 1 trigger event,
the point of non vigbility (PONV) trigger event of {ajlura by the Bank 10 comply with the lock in clause.

2022 201

OTHER LIABILITIES Note Rupees Rupess
hMark-up / return f interest payeble 171 - 612,294,341
Accrued Bxpensas 516,764,563 525,121,278
Payable 10 utllity companies for utility bills coliection 14,397,781 18,382,235
Texes payabla 191,712,618 168,481,251
Payable 10 PTCL., the Parent Company 576,795,820 393,782,248
Payable 10 PTML, an sssociated company 22,224,150 66,190,908
Uncoltecied remittances 118,688,968 121,780,510
t.easo lhability 17.2 2,093,065,634 1,194,881,938
Payable 10 1-Link 46,521,776
Paysble 1o stafl relirament banelit - gratuity 17.3 - 3.404,095
Peyable 1o definag contribution plen - provident tund 17.4 - 154,137
Bills payable 188,229,422 136,247,772
Others 163,455,181 84,304,213
Workers' Welfare Fund 105,505,333 82,481,823

4,038,262 246 3,407,298,747

This includes emoumnt of Rs. 209 millon {2021: Rs. 18.39 million} payable to related partias on account of markup for the
month of Decembar 2022. For details of balances please refer to note 37 o these financial statemnents.

2022 201
Lease liability Note Rupees Rupees
Lease lisbility - right ol use assels 17.2.1 2,048,472,320 1,127,350,510
Leasa lighilities - right of use assets - vehicles 17.2.2 44,593,317 B87.311,428
2,083,085,637 _1,194,6861,938

NI
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2022 2021
12.2.1 Lesse 1iabllity - right of uso assels Rupees Rupees
Contractual meturity of ramaining lease commitments
Within one yesr 584,532,242 304,542,788
Between 2 and 5 yenrs 2,274,665,637 1,183,007.898
769,561,847 456,665,183

Alter 5 yesrs
Total un-discountod lease commilments

1,854,615,850

3,628,759,733 ,

Future minlmym
lesas payments

Interest cost for
future periods

Prasent value of
minlmum lease

17.2.2  Leese lisbilities - right of use assets - vehicles
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17.2.2.1

2022 peyments
Rupoes
Not later then one yesar 13,319,334 5,263,631 18,572,865
Later than one year and not later then live years 33,422,124 4,945,323 ’ 38,367,447
44,593,317 10,198,854 56,940,312
20
Nol laier than ona yeer 18,663,811 4,929.3M 23,693,152
Latar than one year and not later than five yesrs 48,647,617 B,756,042 54,403,859
67,311,428 10,885.383 77,986.811
————T

The Bank hes lersed vahicles from commercial banks with Jeese term of flva years. These cerry financa charge et slx month
KIBOR plus 1% {2021: six month KIBOR plus 1%) per ennum. The rentals are peyable in eguel monthly instalments in
advance upto Dacember 2028, Al the and of the lease term, the Benk has the oplion to acquire the essets on payment of all
instalments. The facility is secured by way ol ownership of leased assets.

2022 2021
12.3 Movement In the llabllity recognised in the balance sheat Rupees Rupees
Prasant value of delined benefit obligation 221,614,178 156,936,452
fair value of pian easets {238,347 567} (153,5632,357)
Net delined benefit {assat) / lisbility (16,733,389} 3,404,095
17.3.1  Net defined benefit Hiability - gretuity
The Bank operates en unfunded gratully schems for jis eligitie employess.
Movement in not dofined benefit Hability - gratulty
Batance a1 01 January 156,936,452 107,091,392
Charge for the yoar 79,288,457 53,964,771
Experience edjusimenis on defined benelit liebility 12,455,387 6,649,031
Benelits paid {27,065,118) {10,768,742)
Balance at 31 Decomber 221,614,178 158,936,452
Reconcliiation of lisblifty recognised in the balance sheet
Present value Feir value of Net dafined

of deflned plen assats benefit abllity

2022 beneflt / {esseot)
Rupess

Balance at 01 Jenuary 156,536,452 {163,532,357) 3,404,085
Chargo lor tho yoar 79,288,457 - 79,288,467
Exparience adjustmants on dalinod banelil liehility 12,455,387 (9,228,305} 3,227,082
Benefils paid on behal of the fund {27,088,118) 27,066,118 -
Expected raturn on plan assels - {22,084,722) (22,084,722)
Caontributions 1o gietuity fund - {B0,GEB,301) {80.568,301)
Balance a1 31 Pecembar 221,614,178 {236,347,567)

|1e.m\igm\\
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1742

17321

17.3.3

17.3.4

12.35

Presant valye of Foir value of Nat defined

defined benefht plen assets benafit ligbllity /
2021 obligation {eagnt)

Rupges
Balence at 01 January 107.091,392 1114941113} [7.848,721)
Charge for Lhe year 53,984,771 - 683,964,771
Exparianca adjustments on defined benelit ligbllity 8,649,031 2,644 721 9,193,762
Benefila paid (10,768,742} 10,768,742 -
Expected return on plan Bssals - {12,981 664} (12,081,684}
Contributions Lo graluity lund - {38,923,143) 138.923,143)
Balancae e1 31 Decomber 156,938,462 1153.632,357) 3,404,096
2022 2021

Charpge to profit and loss account net of retum on plan essats Rupaes Rupess
Charge for the year 62,921,195 53.984.7
Expacled relurn on 25561s {5,714,480) {12,991,584)
Coat for the year 57,208,735 40,883,207

Expanse is racognfzad In the foliowing lina itams In profit and logs account

Administralive expenaes 57,203,735 40,983,207

Cherge / [credit] to othar comprehensive Incoma

Actuatial loss / {gein) on obligations 12,456,387 6,649,031

Actuariel loss on assels 19,228,305) 2,544,721
3,227,082 9,193,752

Key actuarial assumptions

The Iplest actuarial valusticn was cairied out on 31 Dacamber 2022 using projacted unlt credit methed with the toliowing
asgsumptions:

2022 2021
Valuation digcount rale 14.25% 12.25%
Discount rete used [or interast cost in profit end loss account 10.95% 10.50%
11.36% - 11.25%

Selary grawih rate
Date of next expected salery incresse
Mortahty rate

01 Januery 2023 01 Jenuery 2022
SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

Expected return on plan p5sets 14.25% 12.25%

Duralion {yoars) 11.68 _11.89

Withdrawal rates Low Low
Age 60 Age BD

Relirement sssumption

Assumption regerding future morielity has been based on State Life Corporation (SLIC 2001-2005), ullimate mortality rate
wilh | year setback 85 pet recormmandation of Pakistan Society of Actuaries (PSOAL

Sansltivity analysle

For & change of 100 basis points, present value ol delined benefit lisbifity 8t reporting date would have been 85 follows:

2022 2022 2021 2021
Increase Decraase Increese Decresse
Rupaops Rupoas Rupees Rupeas
Discount rate 200,878,754 246,886,584 131,778,925 166,945,805
Salery incraase rate 248,779,002 189,897,409 162,694,445 130,919,861

b

U
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17.3.5.1

17.3.6

17.3.7

17.3.8

17.3.8

17.3.1¢

Although the analysis does not take into account {ul] distribution ol cash flows expeciad under the plan, It does provide an
approximation of the sansitivity of the assumptions shown.

The Benk's expected charga lor defined benefit llability - gratwity for the next yesr Is Rs. 51.801 million,

Risks associated with defined benefit llabllity - gratulty

Final Salary Risk {linked to Inflatlon risk)

The risk that the {inal saisry at the time of cesgetion of service is graatar than what wes assumaed. Since the benefh is
celcuisted on the finsl salery fwhich will cigsaly reflect inilation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit emount
INcreases 85 salery Incresses.

Salary Incresso Rizk

- Mortality sk

Tha risk that the sclual mortality experience is differant than the essumed montality. This sffact is mora pronounced In
schemas where tha ege and saervice disuibulion is on the higher side.

« WHhhdrawsal Risk

The risk of actyal withdrawels exparience is dillergni from the assumed withdrewsl probabilty. The significance of the
witlhdrawal riak varias with tha sge, service and the entitled benefits of the beneflciery, .

Expacted meturlty proflle

Following ara the expected distribution and timing of banetit payments st tha repofting dete:

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Yaar 1 25,185,815 19,446,694
Yapr 2 17,444,449 * 10,345,290
Yasr 3 16,393,417 9,676,634
Yagr 4 16,213,499 8,301,074
Yaar 5 15,226,277 8,673,584
Yaar G to Yesr 10 93,902,066 45,462,654
Yesr 11 8nd beyond 1,588,260,315 853,975,287
Present value of Not {asset] /
deflnod benefit liabllity at the
ligbllity raporting date
Historical Informetion Rupees Rupess
20 206,781,512 158,935,452
2020 107.031,392 107.091,382
2018 81,787,046 81,787.046
2018 47,612,926 47,612,926
2017 29,488,343 29,488,343
Fair value of pion essets
Tolel gsse1s of lund - opening 153,532,357 114,941,113
Expeaciled raturn on plan assels 22,084,722 12,981,564
Contributions 1o gretuity fund 80,568,301 38,923,142
Benalits pald [27,066,118] [10,768,742)
Acluarial loss on plen 853615 9,228,306 (2,544,721)
Total ssseis of fund - closing 238,347,567 153,532!357

e
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17.4 Employeses provident fund

Snze of tha lund

Cost of irvasimaents held
Paicontage ol investmenis hold _
Fair value of investmaents

2022
Rupoos

266,774,413
265,774,413

100%
265,714,413

17.4.7 Investments reprosent balances held with bank canying inlarest et rete of 15% (2021:12%) per annum.

17.4.2 Invostmants in TFC represent balancas held at cerrying interest st rate of B8 Month kibor + 3.6%,

00
Rupaes

221,405.264
221,405,264

100%
221,405,264

All the invesiments oul ol provident fund trust have baen meda in accordence with the provisiens ol Sacton 218 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

18 SHARE CAPITAL

18.1  Authorized caplial

2022 2021
Number Numbaet
800,000,000

800,000,000 Ordinary shaias of Rs. 10 each

18.2 Issupd, subscribed and pald-up capltsl

Yn22 2021
Number Numbat
20,000,000 20,000,000

8,571,429 8,571,429

200,600,000 200,000,000
80,000,000 80,000,000

100,000,000  100.000,000
100,000,000

508,571,429 408,571.429

18.3  Pakistan Telecomrnunication Comnpany Limited {PTCLI, the Parent Company, holds 100% shares of the Bank.

18.4  All ordinary shares rank aqualiy with regard 1o the Bank‘s reslduel assels. Holders of these shares ate entitled 1o dvidends from time

Ordinary shbres of As. 10 each fully paid In cash

Fully paid sheres of As. 10 each issuad &8s tight sharas
et discounied rate of Rs. 7 each

Fulty pard ordinary sharas ol Rs. 10 each in cash
issued as righl shares at par

Fully paid oidingry shares of Rs. 10 esch in cash
Issued as other than right sharas 81 par

Fully paid prefarence shares of Rs, 10 esch in cash
issued a5 other than nght aharas at par

Fulty paid shares ol As, 10 esch in cash

iasued ag right shares a1 par.

10 lima and gre entitied 10 one vole por share at generel meslings of the Bank.

19 CONVERSION OF ADVANCE AGAINST ISSUE OF SHARES

18.1

2022 201

Rupeas Rupeess
8.000,000,000 8.000.000.000
200,000,000 200,000,000
85,714,230 85,714,280
2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
800,000,000 800,000,600
1,060,000,000 1.000,600.000

1,000,000,000

5,085,714,290

4,085,714.280

This reprasents corvarsion of Tier 1l subordingted debt amounting to As. 1 bllfion into ordinary sheres subject 1o reguiatory
approvals, Stata Bank of Pekisian via letter no. BPRD/BAKCP/B71/174072/2022 deted 12 January 2022 grented epproval 1or the said
conversion subject 1o cerlain conditions efleclive gs of 31 Decembar 2021, Approvel of Securities and Exchange Commission of

44

Pakistan (SECP) was obtaingd on 25 May 2022. The Bank issued shares In tha monih of September 2022 agains! the advence, g

R
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20 SURPLUS/{DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

Surplus on revalualicn o! fixed assels

Surplus / {deficit) on ravaluation of securities
Federaf and Provincial Government secunios
Markel Treasury Bills (T-Bills)

ljgrah Sukuk

Private sukuk - TFCs

Pzkistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)

Retated oelerred 1ax sflec:

21 MEMORANDUM / OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

21.1 Contingeacies

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
(8,776,826) {26,979,500)
15,653,939 -
i {9,884,258} -
| - {1312,526,779)
{3.007,145) (339,506.279)
592,358 50.875,951

2,014,787] {288, 630,328}

A super 1ax at rates tanging from 1% 10 4% of 1axable income was imposed thiough the Finance Act, 2022 for ‘(ax Year 2022
and onwards through promulgation of sechion 4C in the Income Tax Crdinance, 2001 The Parent Company of the Bank along
with other petiloners has successiully challenged this levy before the Sindh Hign Coun who held through s Otder dated 22

December 2022 that the said 1ax was o apply cflective lax Year 2023

However, the honourable Court suspended its

judgment tor B0 days as per the procedure given i the Code of Ciwil Procedure. in arder for FBR 1o 12ke up the manter before
the Supieme Coun. Keeping in views the Courr’s judgment in the petiticner's favour, no prowsion has been recorded in these

accounis for super 1ax 1o lax Year 2022

21.2 Commitmeants

Siandoy lerier of guaraniee
Propeny and eguipment
Intangrble assels

2022 2021
Rupeas Rupees
12,800,000 10,6C0,000
31,007,633 4,898,005
43,807,639 15,496.005

21.3  This represents letier of guarantee 1ssueo wn hehaif of tne Bank 1o China Union Pay Internaupnal Company Lmited [of interbank

setllemants.

22 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

Mark-up / return / interest on agvances

Interest on INVESTMenis 1N government secuniies

Imerest on deposit accounts / TORs vath other
banks / tinanciat insututions

23 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED
Mark-up /1eturn /inierast expense on geposts

Mark-up expense on borrovwngs lrom banks / financial INnsuiuhons

24 FEE, COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE INCOME

Loan precessing fee
Branchigss banking
Other fee income colfezted from customers

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

13,665,513.951 10.032,070,107
3,526,716,542 1.147,398.214

3.550,113,226 1.036,525512
20.742,343,719 12,215,993.833

B,761,282,624 4.212,660.763

5,377.,737,538 1,376.834.624
14.133,020,162 5.589.435 387
1.171,848,375 893,026,763
75.4909,179 78,874,418
52,877 291 45.451.694

1.300,633.449 1.018.362.875
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25

26

26.

27

27.1

OTHER INCOME

Recovary against advences wiitten olf
Gain on sale of invastments
Oiher

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Stolf salaries and benefiis

Charge for defined benelit plan - grawity
Canttibution 1o defined caniribution plan - provident fund
Non-Executive directors’ fpe

Fmancial cherges on lezsed pss501s
Trainings

Insurance

lent, rate and taxes

Travslling and convayance

Postage end courier

Utilities

Repait and maintenance

Depreciston on proparty and equipmaent
Amortization of intangible assets
Depracistion on right of use gssets
Software support and mainignance lae
Stationery and printing

Audilors’ temuneration

Legat and professional fee

Security services

Otfice supplies

Interney and connectivity charges
NADRA varliication chatgas

Bank charges

Marketing exponsas

Othet

Auditors' romunaeration

Hall year raview
Annusl audil

Fee for certificetions
Taxstion services
Advisoty services

OTHER CHARGES

SBP penalty
Loss on sals of investmanis

This regrasents penalty paid during the year related 1o various non-complisnces identified by 1he Stete Bank of Pakistan during its

inspection ol the Bank.

Nota

1.2
1.3
1.4

26.1

2022 2021

Hupoas Rupees
197 375,260 103,743,626
155,180,786 140,623,053
214,127,258 15,141,798
586,683,284 258,408,477
3,149,415,176 2,337,879,514
57,203,735 40,883,207
58,023,122 . 42,448,396
- 3.750,000
257,040,248 166,172,345
20,956,966 9,840,904
238,530,266 182,608,122
123,475,806 66,882,955
156,734,788 79,485,408
16,841,080 14,246,356
251,986,218 169,619,092
386,786,963 232,432,768
487,289,104 404,964,481
64,686,968 50,374,167
431,588,500 280,923,394
242,228,018 224,133,084
131,119,775 105.776,2B4
8,581,919 4,640,761
45,584,681 30,476,850
280,284,760 180,015,793
£8.515,181 33,299,218
113,346,170 56,648,693
48,355,389 . 64,160,781
79,167,800 61,214,011
171,712,873 130,713,798
13,943,940 21,854,860
6.8280,033,056 5.0355205.163
650,000 350,000
1,800,000 1,350,000
2,200,000 1,700,000
B 180,142
1,800,000 1,060,819
B.850.000 4,840,761
10,297,860 19,000
10,257,850 19,000

ol
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28

23

2022 2027
TAXATION Note Rupees Rupees
Current -for the year (881.843.867) 429.474.114}
- for oot years 31,693,787 {12.701,793]
. {850,150,080) (442,175,900
Delerred 13 694,236,077 224,177,922
1155,914,003) 217.997.885)
Effecive tax 1ate 8.48% 16 40%
2022 2021
Tax rate reconciliation Rupees Aupees
Profit belore tax and after WWF (Rupaas) 2,405,870,432 1.329,034,852
2022 2021
lax rate 33% 29%
Tax on accounting prodit 33.00% 29.00%
Tax elfect of income taxable at lower rales -26.01% (14.15%)
Prior year charge -1.32% D.96%
Permanent difference 0.81% 0.58%
Tax expanse for the year 6.48% 16.40%
2022 2021
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note Rupees Aupeas
Cash &nd balances vith SBP ang NBP B 7.452,332,589 3.799,930.850
Balancas with other banks / NBFls / MFBs 7 1,276,155,860 6.223.504,.412
8,728,488,440 10.023.835,262
Recanclliation of movements of Habtilities to cash flow arising trom financing me1hdlies:
Subordinaled Borrowings Leasa Hability Unappropsinted Totsl
loan profit
{Rupees)
Bap=ze 81 3% sty 2037 1,738,920,000 36.880,686,164 1.194. 661,938 1.526,314.403 41,800,562 505
Change from tinanclng activiios
Az uang { moodicat ans 164,491,286 855.627.352,917 - —355.311.3‘4.203
Hyymenis {149.B20,000) {776,164,323.,844) (661,787,402} - (¥r7,195,941.346)
Lnngena fymnent 1185_286.0090] {195.286.000)
34,671,286 79,.243,028,971 (661,797.402) {185,285.000) 78.420.816.857
Other changes
Aduneny Hroafications 1,325.681.011 - 1,325,881,011
Dufptne's {22,520,181) - 122,520,161}
- led Al BRE S - (2,742,377 _780) [2,742,377.780)
Inferest oot on lesse fagities 257,040,248 - 257,040,248.00
1918l compenhensve income - 2,247,794,2584 2.247,794,283 .96
Transfers to . -
Statutary resemne {449,991.286) {449,991, 286.00)
Dopositors” pratectian fund {112.497 821} {112,497,821.00}
! uase faciity avpied . r . . .
1,580,201,098 {1.057.072.603) 503.128.4585
Buslance at 31 Decamber 2022 1,833,581, 286 116.123,715,137 2,093.065,644 673,955,800

129,724.3an§ m\)
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Reconcliiatken of movoments of llsbllities to cazh flow artsing from financing activities:

Subordinaied Bormowlings Laase llabilfty Unsppropristed Total
oan proth
{Rupees)

Batarce 51 0Y Jangary 2073 2./99.180.000 13274180637 1.212,010,220 1.089,564,741 18.384,925,611
Change fram flnancing aclivhles
Hece ois !I 424,056,216.609 " . 424,056.216,608
I'yyments (240,000 {400.44%,721 .06 /) 1355044556 - 400,805,003, 683

(240,000 23,606,495 522 {355,044, 538! 23,251,210,926
Oihar changes
Asgivens f mushicalons 21672846 221.522 448
Cisposals (33995, 187) - {39.999.187
Intirast cost on Jease Licilies 196,172,345 . 156.1/2,345.00

11.000.000,000)

lianster w advarce lo: muvance of shures {1.000.008,008
- 1.104,509.403 1.104,509,403.00

Total comprenensve mec e
fransters to

Stalutory resolve 227,204,393) {222,207.393.00}

Depositars’ protect:on luna 155.551.848) 155.6491.846.00)
11,£00,050.00%5: 33/ .695 604 . B26.750,162 164,345, 766
Balance at 31 Dacomber 2021 1, /88.920,000 36,880,686, 164 VD466 330 1,926.1344,403 41,800.582.508
2022 02
30 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES N Numbers Numbers
Cred:1 / sales siaff
Permanent 293 240
Contraclual 1292 1,062
1,585 1.302
Banking / support staf!
Permanant 1,030 812
Contractual 1,197 893
2227 1,705
l'otal number ol employees at 31 December 382 E 3.007
Average numper of cmpioyees during Lhe yea: 3,362 3.000
3 NUMBER OF BRANCHES
Branches / service centres at beginning of the yaar 207 212
Closed duning the year {1} 5)
Opened dunng the yea: 97 -
303 207

Bianches / service cenres atl and of 1he year

Ky EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic - Basic eainings per share is calculated by dwiding the prolit atinbulatia 10 eguiy holders ef the Bank by tha weighted

average number of ordinary shares auistending dunng the year.
2022 2021

2.249,956.429 1.111.036.967

Profi altnbutable to equity holders (Rupees)
369,119,374 308,571,429

6.10 3.60

Weighted average numser ot shares (nunibers)

Earnings per share - basrc [Rupeas) J—

Diluted - Diluted estnings per shase 15 calculaled by dwviding 1he profit attributable 10 auuily holders of 1he Bank by the weighled
averags number of ordinary shares ovistanding during the year afrer adjustment of all dilutive potanual ardinary shares.

2022 2021

Protit atinbulable to eguily hotders (Ruaees) 2.249,956.429 1.111.036,967

Weighted average number of shares (numbers) 728,848,044 341,413,188

3.09 3.25

Earnungs por share - dilvied {Rupees) l“
W
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DETAILS OF BUSINESS LOCATIONS

The addresses of the branches of the Bank are as follows:

Piot no }ris. nazimabad no |, Al-ghafoor , eden groud floor, karachi.

Nazimabad

Rawalpindi PTCL Exchange, OSS Hall, Kashmir Road, Saddar, Rawalpindi

Bhakkar Plod? 156A2 Club Road Mandi town Bhakkar

Lodhran Khata 00.291, ward no. 26, Near Jalalpur Mor, Opposite Ahl-e-Hadis Masjid, Multan Bahawalpur
Road Lodhran

Layyah Khasra § 371, Near Paracha Petro) Pump Chobara Roaed, Near TDA Chowk Layyah

Lahore 117 -A, Chowk yateem Khana, Multan Roead, Lahore

Rahim Yar Khan House # 20A, Al-Hemra House, Moda! Town, Rahim Yar Khan

Sahiwal Plot # 183/c, Block # B-vli, Kechehrl Road Sahiwal

Bahawalpur House # 17, Texation # B-DI, 2784/2, [hata Sinde Ram, Stadium Road Farid paic Bahawalpur

Ahmedpur East Khata ¥ 136/134, Khatooni # 193, Near Rohi Auvlos, Kachahry Road, Ahmedpur Easl, Districl
Sahewalpur

Dunyz Pur Khewat No. 233, Near Khewaja Asim & Qesim Company, Rallway Road Dunyapur, Disirict
Lodhran

Karachi Gulshan F-13/11, Block - 5, Gulshan-e-[gbal, Karachi

Abbotiabad Shop # 1,10 3, first floor, Yousaf Plaza, Mansehra Road, Abbotiabad

Mirpurkhas PTCL Exchange Office near Main GPO chowk Mirpurkhas

Multan Khewat No. 431, Khatoon! # 786, Moza Neel Kot Chungi No 6, Bosan Road Punjab Nursery
Gulgasht Colony, Multan.

Chistiag Khatooni no.397, Tal plaza near melaad chowk, college road, chistian dsitrict, bahawalnagar.

Pakpatian Plot Wo. B-1/92/A-11 Khasra No. 208714, Khewn1 No.2603, Khatond No. 2928, College road
Pakpatian

Faisalabad Plot # 343-B, London Plaza, Ground Floor, Adjacent [deal Bakers, Satiyana Road, Falsalsbad

Muzafarabad Shop # 1-6, Ist Nloor, Bilel Shopping Complex, Upper Adda, Muzaffarabad

Gujranwala Khatooni no.65, Khewal no.65, Afiab Steel Marker, Near Old Regenl Cinema, GT Road,
Gujranwala

Peshawar Compound No.§0, T.T.C, Opposilc Guibahar Road, District Peshawar.

Nawabshah Samar Palace HouseX 25, 26 Hospital Road Nawab Shah

Ghotki City Survey ¥ 850, Ward B, Near Faisal Bank, Dewari Road, Ghotki

Khairpur House # B-2443, Kachehry Road, Opposite ZTBL, Khairpur Mirus

Hyderabad House # A72592, Ward A, Bhurgury Road, Hirabad, Hyderabad

Mankera Haji Ikram Filling siation Asghar Chowk Mankera

Kot Addu Khata#431 Khatonif640 Near Al Quraish CNG GT Road Kot Addu

Okara Khewat No 1320, Khatooni No 1408, Khasra No C/2771, Sahi Manzil, College Road, Opposile
Municipal Corporation, Okara,

Kasur Kasur Beroon (Jadecd Urben), Tehsil & District Kasur, Khawat # 165, Khatooni # 503, Khasra #
2193

Hafizabad ¥hewat # 755, khatooni # 1793, Gujrenwala road near MCB hafizabad

Gujrat Khewst no.788,khatooni no.1374-1375,khasra nod| mohal nanwan rangpure sargodhs roed
gujral

Sukkur City survay no. 240, ward <, picl old cto compound buiding, neern ki chari,minara road sukkur.

Ghulam Muhammad Abad

House no 1451B(4M 1195F) Main GMA Road sabri chowk, 70fil bazer,civil quarters Ghulam
Muhammad Abad Faisalahad.

Qifa Dildar Singh

Khasra no 4203/130 , Near Jambyah Muhammadia, Hahzabad roed

Ali Pur Chana Khewat no.424,khatooni no 1 10 Gujranwale Road, Alipur Chaia

Uch Sharil 13713, Khatooni No, 20 Soheil Trade centre, Near ZTBL, Ahmedpur East road, Uch sharif Tehsi}
ADE, distriet Bahawalpur '

Khanewai Near Purana karkhara nad union council no | khasra no 205/2% khewat no. 28/27, zafar ullah

racd Khanewal
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Basirpur Khewat § 2727266, Khatoonl # 673, Khasra £ 169, Mavza Baseerpur, Tehsil Depalpur District
Okana

Depalpur Khewat # 1916, Khatooni 4 3060, Khasra # 45/1449, Hujra road, Decpalpur Opposite lari Adda

Renala Khurad Khewsl no. 596,khalooni no.576 Chak # 21/2-L, Hussain Arcade, Androon Hadud committee,
Renala district Okara

Hujra Shah Muqeem Khewat no. 144071404 khatooni 10,2193, salam khata no.333-4, qane no.216, Circular Road,
Hujre Shah Mugeem, Altari Road, near Molvi Muhammad Siddique Daras

Chichawatni Kewat no.|7,Fazal Plaza, Begum Shahnaz road, Chichawatni

Darya Khan Khate # 51, Khatoni # 72 Near govi college of commerce railway road Darya Khan Dismict
Bhakkar

Khanpur Ahmad Plaza Bypass Road Khanpur, Tehsil Khanpur, District Rahim Yar Khan

Sadiqabad Kheta # 676, Khatoni # 7,Nishiar road, Melra Abad colony, Nebar Kinara, Tehsil Sadigabed,
District Rahim Yar Khan

Digri City Survey # 1185, Mirwah Road digr} Taluka Digrl, District Mirpurkhas

Raiwind Khewat no 2432, khalooni no 34832, sunder road near sohail surgical hospital raiwind

Khudian Khewat # 285, Khatooni # 938, Khasra # 10133/7452/3-14, Moza Khudian, Andrcon Hadood
Committee Near Lari Adda Tehsll & District Kasur

Pano Agi Survey ¥ 436, Baiji Road Tehsll Panuu Aqil Disrict Sukkur

Shahdra Khewat no 82 khatooni no 118 khasra no 1637142, gt roed, saced park,had best moza fatch puri,
tehsil lehore

Hasilpur " Khewat & Khatooni # 103, Altaj Piaze, railway road, Hasilpus, District Bahawalpur

Chowk Azam Khewat # 19, China plazz, Near Khushhali Bank Ltd, Fatchpur road, Chowk Azam Dismict
Layyah,

Karor Lal Essan Khata 4 74, Khatoni ¥ 264, Near PTCL exchange faich pur road, Tehsil KarorLal Essan Distriet
Layysh,

Kahror Pacca Khewal # 92, Dunyapur road near railway phatak, zafor abad 1ehsil Kahror Pacca, District Ldhran

Jelalpur Pirwala

Khewat £ 246, Mouze jelaipur pirwala, District Multan

Arifwala Khesra ¥ 2082, Khewat # 1346, Khatonl # 1361, Lakar Mandi, Arifiwala Pakpattan

Dinga Khasra no.211, Khewat no.700, Khatooni no.1700, Anear Plaza, Thana Road Near Gulzar

Muridke Plot no. 1-5,Khewal no.8302 khatooni no.2566,Khasra no. 3133 Timber Market, Qaiser Park, GT
road Muridke.

Wazirabad PT 1 no BV-1i-5-3/RH; Malik Bullding; Rex cinema Road ncar Boys High School Wazirabad

Dharampura SEER-240/8/RH, Allama Iqbal Road, Lahore.

Jalalpur Bhattian

Khewat no. 78 & 739, Khatra no. 446 & (166 Khatooni no. 134 & 47272 Vinkay Chowk Pull
Same Nala Jalalpur Bhatrian disirict Hafizabad.

Pindi Bhanian

Khewnt no. |83; Khasra no. 397, Khatooni no.476/494 Main Bazar Hafizabad Road near nelka
Siop Pindi Bhattian; Disuler Hafizabad.

Eliahabad

Khewal no.l100, Khatooni ne.1992, Khasra no.3904/1167, Chunian road, Ellehebad, Tehsil &
district Kasur

Tando Muhammad Khan

Plovcily survey no.1940/1, ward-B, phuleli Road, Tande Muhammad Khan.

Phalia Khatooni no.80, Khasra no.364, Heelan Rosd WNear Heelan Choungi opposile goummel
baker,Phalia.

Shujesbad Khewat # 92, Chungi # 10, Near ZTBL, Jalaipur roed, Shujabad, District Multan

Ranipur Plot no.659 National Highways, Werd no.04, Town Ranipur.

[slamabad Shop no.7 & 8, Plot no.64W, Masco Plaza,Ground Floor, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, [slamabad.

Jaranwala P-1480, Faisalabad Road, Near NADRA office, Jaranwala, Tehsil &Disirict Faisalabad.

Korangi Plot No. N - 23, Ground Filoor, Arca — N Korangi No. 3 %, Karachi.

Rajanpur Khata no. 644, Inlagal no. 12720, Moza Rajanpur [ Kamran Market Indus Highway, Near
Khushhali Bank,Rajanpur

Tando Ailahyar Plot no.7, Near Grid Station Mohalla Main Hyderabad Road Tando Allahyar Tehsil & District
Tando Allahyar

North Karachi

Plot no R-12, secior no § ¢/4 North karachi township Karachi r&
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Shahra E Faisal Showrgom NO.11 & 13 Ground floor Pak Avenue,Plot No 24/A survey Sheet No.35-F/I, Block
No.6, PECHS, Shahra-e-Faisal Karachi

Jhang Khats no. 55, Moaza Civil Station, Katchery Road, Library Chowk, Jhang,

Moro Ward# 13 Main Road, Moro, District Naushahro feroze,

Tando Adam Ward# A House# 516 Neas Indus Hotel, Hydersbad Road Tando Adam District Sanghar.

Umar Kot Plot # 19, 20, 40 & 41 Mirpurkhas, Road Umar Kot District Umar Kot

Bahawalnagar Khewat # 2222, Khatooni 2321,Minchen Abad Road, Near Askari Bank, Tehsll & District
Bahawalnagar,

Kandhkot Registration No# 464, Entry No¥ 1000, Juman Shah Mohalls Kandhkot District Kashmore.

Mechar Ward¥ A City Survey ¥ 752, 1041 & 1042 School Road Mehar District Dadu.

Mehrabpur Plot No# 111 A-13 A Thari Mirwah Road ,Mehrabpur District Naushahro feroze.

Naseerabad House No.# 2334 Ward-B Madine Shopping Cenwme, Mohallah Kalhis Bazar, Badah Road,
Nesirabad, Distri¢t Qumbar, ShahdadKot.

Shikarpur Ward No#l 5| Near Jahaz Chowk Station Road Shikarpur Districi Shikarpur,

Chundko Plot# |49 Main Chowk ncar Bus Stand Chundko District Khalrpur Mir’s.

Sargodha Bilal Plaza, Plot No 40 C, W - Block, new satellite Town, Sargadha.

Sheikhupura Khasra no 128471285, Khawat no 5-13, 5 College Road 129 Civil Line Sheikhupura,

Dera Ghazi Khan Shop no 21-22, Biock E Opp. Civil Line Police Station Railway Road Dera Ghazi Khan.

Qambar Ward ~B ity survey no $3/132-64/88, 65 & 66 Muhabbat Alf Road O!d Shahdad Kot, Near
NBP/Sindh Bank, Qambar.

Larkana Ward A, City Survey no 571/1 and 570/2 Bank square, near Mobilink bank, District Larkana.

Muzaffargarh Khewat no §46, Jhang Road, near bank of Punjab, MuzalTargarh.

Chowk Sarwar

Khatoon? no 34, Khewst no 15/32, MM Road, opposite general Bus stand , Chowk Sarwar
Shaheed , 1ehsil Kot Addu Distriet Muzafargarh.

Narowal Khala ro. 1171, Khatooni no 1958, Khasra no. 520672570 Jasir Bypass, Circular Road , Tehsil &
District Narowa.

Noorpur Thal Khawat no.i134/1072, khatooni no.!717 Joharsbad Road near Rescue 1122 Qflice Noorpur Thal.

Dadu City Survey 1003 revenue survey number 133 Kachehry Road Dadu.

Kashmore Deh Pakka Kashmore, indus highway . oppasitee shell petrol pump district kashmore

Ratadero City survey no 794/34, 794735 & 794/36 shikarpur road ratodero

Nowshera Plot, No. 2-A, Ceantonment Board, Al-Jameel City, GT Roed, Near PSQO Filling Station,
Nowshera,

Daherki Survey No. 446, GT Road, Daharki, Distriet Ghotki.

Qazi Ahmed Ward No. 2 Serdar Calony, Neer Police Slation National High Way Road Qazi Ahmed, District
Nawabshah.

Sanghar Plot No. A - 8, City Survey no. 124, Ward A, Housing Socicly Main Nawabshah Road, Taluka &
District Sanghar.

Mithi Plot No. 10 and 11, Near Press Club Mithi Distriet Tharparkar

Golarchi Plot No. A-1, Malin Karachi Road ,Golarchi , District Badin

Mirpur Sakro Plot No. 285, Main Gharo Road Mirpur Sakso Distrie! Thatta

Vehari Khewal £ 48, Khatloni # 48 49-A ,Block Karkhana Bazar Vehari, Disirict Vehari

Ali Pur Khata no. 209,Rayan Ptaza Mear College Chowk, Muhan Road, Alipur, District Muzaffargarh.

Fazilpor Khata Number 437 Ward 4 09 Main Indus Highway Fazilpur Tehsil and Distt Rajanpur

Liagat Pur Plat no.133 City Center Rest House Road Tehsil Liaqal Pur, District Rahim Yar Khan.

Mian Channu Khawal no.635, kheftoni no.647, khasra no.1672,Din Plaza 1672 Bodle Road, Mian Channu
District Khanewal.

Tibba Sultan Pur Khewat no.126, khatton] no.326, khasre no. 1047121,plot no.133,ward no.4,Qutab Pur Road
Tibba Sulien pur tehsil Mailsi district vehar)

Qasba Gujrat Khata no. 118, Khatton} No. 326, Mansa Raam Khas ,Civil Hospital chowk, GT Road Qasba
Gujrat tchsi] kol addu District Muzaffargarh

Fort Abbas Khewat no. 267, Khasra no. 126/B, Moulana Hafeez Strest near Boys' High School , Forl
Abbas,District Bahawalnagar,

Shore Kot

Plol & B-P207/SH, Tehsil Chowk, Cantt Road, Shore Kot City, Shore Kot, Disn. Jhang \%Q‘
\J
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Haroon Abad Khewat # 685, Khaloooi # 685, Shop £ 195/C Block C, Bangle Road, Near Grain Marke,
Haroonabad, Disu. Baheweinagas,

Burewala Khewat ¥ 286/292, Khaloooi # 532, 124-P, Lahore Road, Burewals, Distt. Vehari.

Minchen Abad Khewat i 471, Khatooni # 472, Circulsr Road, Minchen Abad, Distu Bahewalnagar,

Kot Mithan Khewat ne.1357, Khata no.17/486, Khawaja Ayaz Tower Baldla Chowk Kol Mithan Tehsil and

Dlstrict Rajanpur

Islamabad F-7 Markaz

Plot # |3-H, Jicnah Super, F-7 Markaz, Istamabad.

Bhiriya Road

Shop No. I1C-14/M, Sialion Road, Deh Chaheen Manno Mal, Bhiriya Road, Taluka Bhiriya Ciry,
District Noshero Feroze.

Super Highway, Karachi

Rehim view Shop no. 13, 14, 15 & 16, Flat No. BI-001 & BI-002, Secior 17-B, Gulzar-¢-
Bijri, S¢heme 33, Main Super highway Road, Karschi

Jampur Ward No. 13, Khata No. 737, Dajal Road, Tehsil Jampur, District Rajanpur.

Yazman Khata no 423/373, khatooni no. $72.Rec no.228/12, Muraba no. 9 _Kils no.25/1, chek no 56_DB-
(A),Bahawalpur Road Yazman, Near Tool Tax Tehsil Yazman,District Bahawelpur.

Haripur 0SS Hall, PTCL , Tetephone Exchange Kanpur Road Qpposite .TIP Haripur,

D.1.Khan Customer,Sorvice Center, PTCL Opposite Circuit Howse, Ders Ismail Khan.

Manschra Khaia,Khatooni no.0739/0394,Khasra no.08994/2827 Baidra Chowk, District Mansehra.

Jhelum 0SS Hall, Kazim Kamal Road, PTCL Compound, Jhelum Cantt.

Chakwal Khewat,No. 1385, Khatooni No. 2486,Dhoke Momen, Pindl Road, Chakwal, District, Chakwal.

Mir Pur PTCL Exchange, OSS Hall, ARab Building, Atlama Igbal Road, Mirpur AJK

Wah Cantl OSS Hall, PTCL Exchange ,Alm Markel ,Ma)l Roed, wha cantt.

Mardan Main Telephone Exchange Building 0SS Hall, Near College Chowk opposite Kechari, Mardan,

Charsadda Main PTCL Telephone Exchange Building, OSS Hall, Nowshera Road, Charsadda.

Gojra 0SS Hoall, Adjacent PTCL Exchanpe, Club Road, Gojra district Toba Tek Singh.

Hala City Survey No.1365, Dargah Road Near the first Microfinance Bank District Mariari.

Cio Compound, Quetta Oss Hall, PTCL Smart Shop CTQ, besides mein GPO Zarghoor road Quetta

Landhi Ptel smart shop landi Iciephone exchange near landi -89, karachi

Kot Chuns Khewar No. 109, inlagal No.9252, Kot Chutta No.J, Tehsit Kot Chutta, Distriet Dera Ghezi Khan,

Jauharabad Kheatooni 1225, Khewat 736, College Chowk, Main Bazar Jauharabad.

Mingora Registry No. 293, Abaseen iower, China Plaza, Tehsil Minpore, District Sawsl,

Chobara KbataNo.8,Knaigoni No.63, Near HBL branch Layyah Faisalabad Roed, Tehsil Chabara, Districy
Layyah.

Kot Sultan Khata No.103,Khatooni No, 398-457,Layyah, Kot Addu Road, Near Asker 1 Patrol Pump, Kot
sultan disirict Layyah.

Kamalia Khasra No.4193, House No. §75/1202-D, Mohallah Mhtain Wals, Tehsil Kamalia, District Tobe
Tek Singh.

Daska Serial No 928/1 in PT-1. Cireular Road, Near Sohawa, stop Daska, Disirict Sialkot

Badin Suorvey No.176, Mein Hyderabad Road,Badin.

Choota Sahiwal Khewat No. 1239, Khaloeoi No. 1998, Sahiwa! Sargodha Road Sshiwal,Choola Sahiwal,district
Sargodha.

Malakwal Khewat No. 268, Khatooni No.371, Khasra No. 3220/4 56/1 Bismillah Plaza, Badshah Pur Roed,
Choungi No.2, Melakwal, District Mend} Beheuddin.

Kunri Ward n0.06, Block -252, Plot No. 17 & L8, Kunri. District Umar Kot.

Khipro Ward no.76, Mirpurkhas Road, Khipro Teluka Khipro District Sanghar.

Bagh Khasea No 212, Neer Pulli Stop, Bagh, Dislrict Azad Kashmir.

Sujewal Plot No. 5-A, Main Sujawal 10 Karachi Road, near imigation colony, Sujawal District Sujawal.

Abdul Hekeem Khatooni no. 191 & 199, Khate No. 63727973, Kache Kho road, Nized Sabzi Mandi Abdul
Hakeem, district Khanewal. .

Shahdadkot Ward C, Cily survey No. 644/1, Districl Qamber Shahdadkot

Mandi Bahauddin Khewat No.258,Khatooni No. 363, Khasra No.368, Main Bazar Bank Square, Disirict Mandi
Bahauddin.

Lala Mosa Khewsl No., 215, Qlaia 27, Khatooni No. 493-516, Behari Colony, Near Graveyard, GT Road,

Lala Moosn, Tehsil Kharian & District Gujrat.
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Keohat

Khata No.217%, Khasra No. [ 136, Khatooni No. 2999, Near Al Moiz CNG, Malik Noor Plaza,
Hungu Road, Kohat, Disirict Kohat

Islamabad F-10 Markaz

Plot No. 1-N, SL No. |, F-10 Markaz, 1slamabad.

Staikot Khata No. 114, Khewat No.269, Khatooni No.9723, Khasra No.92/448, Kashunir Road, Pacca
Gharra, Disirict Sislkot.

Ahmed Pur Sial Khewat No.581/558 Khatooni No. 1969, Opposfie Usmania Masjid, Main Ahmedpur Sial Road,
Tehsll Ahmedpur, District Jhang.

Mianwali Khewat # 236, Khatoonl # 703, Mianwall District, Mianwali.

Paharpur Khewat No. 145, Khatooni No. 293, Rang Pur Adda, Tehsll Paharpur, District Dear Ismae! khen,

Chachro Plot 294/02, Main Umer Kot Roed, Chachro, Distriet Tharparkar,

Nosheroferoze Plot No. 327, Old National Highway, Nosheroferoze,

Nankana Sahib Khewat ¥ 261, Khatooni # 365, Shora Kothi Road, Near Nadra Office, Nankana Sghib.

Gujar Khan Chaudbary Ghulam Muhammad Plaza, Maln GT Road, Ward # 15, Khewat No. 14, Khatooni No,
19, Gujar Khan, District Rawalpindi.

Tala Gang Khewat 4315, Khatooni 834, Khata [0/55, B-11, 203-E-2, Near Madni Chowk, Pindi Road,
Talagang, District Chakwal.

Qadir Pur Rawan Khcwat No.449/443, Khatooni No. 1616 to 1617, Opposite Higher Secondary Scheol Qadir Pur
Ran 1owan, Tehsil Multan Sadar, District Multan,

Khairpur Tamewali Bosti Malook, District Multan,

Chinjot Khewat No. 3188/3178, Faisalabad Road, Near ZTBL, Tehsil Chowk Chiniot, District Chiniel.

Thatta §. No. 117, Sujawal Road, Near Shah Jahan Masjid, Thatta Sindh, District Thatta.

Daur Ward: No, 04, House#l JB/117 Mohaliah Jamali Road Daur, Disirict Shaheed Benazirabad
{Nawabshah),

Shahdadpur Plot 10/11/12/13/14/135, Station Road, Shahdadpur, District Sanghay,

Rohillanwali Khewat No. 22, Khatooni No,76-82, Opposite ZTBL Branch, Main Alipur Road, Rohillanwali,
Tehsil & Disirict Muzaffarparh.

Dha Karachi Plot No. 5-C, nishat Lane 2, Phase VI,Defense Housing Authority, Karachi. Karachl South.

Islamkot Plot No. 45A, Nangar Parkar Road, Mukhi Mohin, {slamkot, District Tharparkar,

Naukol Plo ¥ 150, Sabzi Market Road Naukot, District Mirpurkhas.

Dera Allah Yar Near Disirict Council Hall, D.C. Office, Tehsil Road, PTCL Exchange, Dtra Alleh Yar, District

Jararabad.

Muhammad Pur Dewan

Mouza Muhamamd Pur 2, Khatta 267, Khewat No. 258, Tchsil Jampur, District Rajanpur.

18 Hazari Khata no. 328/321, Khatooni no. 891, 18 Hazari, District Jhang.

Lahore Dha 32, Z Block, Commercial Area, DHA Lahore, Phase 3, Lahore.

Quaidabad P-12, 3 Marla Scheme, Khewat No. 32 & 13, Lakkar Mandi, Tehsil Quaidabad, District Khushab,
Thul survey # 401, Riaz Chowk, Kandhkot Road, Tehsil Thul, Disirict Jacobabad.

Dera Murad Jamali

New Circuit House, Opposiie Officer Club & D.C. Office, Allah Chowk, PTCL Exchange Road,
Dera Murad Jamali.

Jacobabad City survey no. 208/1/3/1, Ward No.06, Adam Khan, Panhwaer Road, Tebsi} and district
Jacobabad.
Bhalwal Khata No. 35, Ahata No. 131, Liaqat Shahced Road, Tehsil Bhalwal, District Sargodha.

Kot Ghulam Muhammad

Deh ¥ 290-A City Survey Plot # 978, Tehsil Kot Ghulam Muhammad, District Mlrpurkhas,

Atlock Circle 117, Block-F, Ward B-VI, Opposite Meezan Bank, Afock, District Attock.

Sawabi Khata no.1889/3308, 189713308, & 447813617, Grade Simion, Khangira Road, Dismrict Sawabi.
Toba Tak Singh Khewat 133/127, Khatooni [59, near Arllled Bank, Toba Tek Singh, District Toba Tek Singh.
Feich Jhang Khewat 495, Khatooni 605, Pindi Road, Near UBL, Tehsil Faleh Jang, District Antock

Basti Malook Khewst 5, Khatooni 15-17, Multan Road, Opposite Pazolling Post, Near Sabzi Mandi, Basti
Gilgil

Malook, District Multan, %
Khasra # 1935, Jutial Roed, District Gligit. 5\
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Kot Momin Khata No. 104, Xhewat No. 483 1/2, Bhagianwala Road, Tehsil Kot Momin, District Sargodha,

Gawadar Khewat 131, Khatooni 131, Khasra 146, Sayed Hashmi Avenue, Airport Road, Master Khuda
Bakhsh Ward, Gawadar, District Gawadar.

Taunsa Sharll -Khaia No.1313, Opposite Adil Shah Bus stand, Mouza Taunsa Sherif, Disirie! D.G.Khan

Usta Mubhammad Shop No. J86/4-17-5-3 & 368/4-17-5-4, Bala Khana # 368/4-17-5-3, Near Main Police Station,
Jinngh Road, Tehsl] Usta Muhamamd, District Jafarabad.

Sammundari Khewat 604/592, Khatooni 604, Gojra Road, Opposite Government High School No.l
Saromundari, District Faisalabad.

G-8 Booth PTCL Head Quarter, Block E, Sector G-8/4, Islamabad.

Fatepur PTCL Exchange, Falchpw, District Bhakkar

Zahir pir Old kIp Road, Chachar Road, Zahir Pir, Tehsil Khanpur.

Peshawar - Islamic

Jaanisar Pleza, GT Road, Hasshimagri, Peshawar Ciry.

Mardan- [slamic

Shop # 29, 30,31, Shaheen Shopping Mall — 3, Malakand Road, Mardan.

Rahim Yar Khan- Islamic

Trust Colony, Mooza Rahim Yar Khan, Ander Hadood Commitiee Tehsil & District Rehim Yar
Khan.

Gujranwala- Islamic

Khasra # 469, GT Road, Shaheenabad, Near Soholat Center, Gujranwala.

Sahiwal- Islamic Khewat # 6024, Khatooni # 5098, 388/1 Fareed Town Sahiwal.

pindi Gheb Khewat # 1867, Khatooni # 3315, Khasra # 4077/2, Near ZTBL, Tehsil Pindi Gheb, District
Anock.

Pir Mcha! Khewat 4 1337, Khatooni # 1136, Khata # 35/35/4, Rehaba Road, Kousearabaed, Tehsil Pir
Mehal, District Toba Tek Singh.

Dijkot Chak # 263, Khewat # 920, Khatooni # 1126 10 1143, Khasra # 773/95752, Sammundari Road,
Dijkot District Faisalabad.

Sillanwali Khewat ¥ 1947, Khatooni # 1977, Khasra # 46/7 to 4, Zafarabaad, Tehsil Sillanwali, District
Sargodha.

Harappa Khewat 4 128, Khatoonl # 309 to 3103, Khasra # 7, Maim Bazaar Harappa Near Khushkhali
Bank, Tehsil & District Sahiwal.

Diplo Jaryan No: 50/51, Near Sarai Flour Mill, Main Badin Bus stop, Diplo P.O/Taulka Diplo, Distriet
Tharparkar.

Pasrur Khewai 7 45, Khalooni # 78 1o 8}, Khasra & 5, Narowal Bypass Pasrur, Tehsil Pasrur, District
Sialkot.

Piplan Plot # 40, Block # 4-5, Mandi Town Liaqetabad, Tehsil piplan, District Mianwali.

Sambrie} Khewat # 630, Khatooni # 74|, Mushtrka khata # 554/27200 Wazirabad Road , Opposite Dry
Port Sambrial, Tehsil Sambrial, Dismries Sialkot.

Sharkpur Khewat # 7, Khatooni # 11 10 20, Mustarka Khata # 4624/68727, Khasra # 8, Opposite Virk
Traders, Nazd Gill CNG, Lahere Jaranwala Rosd, Tehsil Sharkpur, District Sheikhupura

Sehwan Meshallsh Perrol Pump, Dargah Road, Schwan Shareef, Tehsil Sehwan, District Jamshoro.

Zafarwal Khewat # 365, Khatooni # 643-649, Khasra # 5/4981, Tehsil Zafarwal District Narowal.

Kandiari Wassan Shopping Center Shop No 4,5,6 Main Mirpur khes Road Kandiari, Tehsil & District
Sanghar

Tando Bango Shop#16, 17 & 18 Faiz Town, opposite Degree College, Tehsil Tando Bago, District Badin,

Dharanwa)a Khewat # 52, Khatooni # 136/137, Khasra # 847, Main Fort Abbas Road, Dharanwala, Tehsil
Chistian, Disirict Bahawalnagar.

Zshir pir Khewal # 36736, Khatooni # 80 10 85, Khasra # 308 10 14, Tataar Chaachar, Zahir Pir, Tehsil

Khan pur, Disirict Rahim Yar Kban.

Kotwali Road, FSD

Faisalabad Branch, Khewat ¥ 1858, Khatooni # 1885, Khasra # 1008, Liagat Ali Khan Road,
Korwali Faisalabad.

Shahpur Chakar Plot # 17 A, Survey # 193, Near Main Bus Stop Shahpur Chakar, Tehsil Shehdsdpur, District
Sanghar.

Chher Plot# A-117, A-118, A-119, A-121 & A-122,Staiion Road Chhor, P.O Chhor Taluka & District
Dmerkot.

Tando Ghulam Al Survey No 177 FROM 2, Shop No. 5, Agha Market, Main Matli Digri Road, Tando Ghulam Ali,

Taluka Mal)i, District Badin.
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Sibl

Alighabad Road, PTCL T &T Office, Near General Bus Stand, Tehsil & District SIBI.

Abbottabad-1slamic

khasta /t 1001 new 2336, 2335,Shop # 173, 174 & 175 Mansehra Road supply bazar Jinnah road
Abborsbad.

Haripur-Islamic

Khasra # 406/407, Shahrah e Resham, Main GT Road, Haripur Hezara.

Nowshera-lstamic

Khata # 81, Khatooni # 186, Khasra # 6693/682777, Nowshera Kalnan, Tehsil & District
Nowshera

Toba tak Singh-1slamic

Khewat & 69/59, Khatooni # 82, Qita & 2, Chak # 326/GB, Allame [qbal Road, Tehsil & District
Toba Tek Singh

Thang-1siamic Khata A 820, Nawaz Chowk SSP Road Jheng Saddar.
Nagarparker Plot i A 369 opposite Judicial court, Near NBP Nagar parkar district Tharparkar.
Dhoronaro Rajar Shopping Center Shop No: 2,3,4,11,12,13,14 ncer PTCL Exchange, P.O Dhoronaro Taluka

& Districl Umerkol.

Karachl Gulshan-)slamic

Shop #SB 15/1, block #13-c, Ghulshan ¢ igbal, KDA scheme, 24, Karachi

Faisal Town, Lahore-1slamic

Plov # 975, Block C, Faisal Town Lahore.

Charsada-Islamic

Khatooni # £19/1118 10 1122, , Mian Babar Zaman Building, T_&n_gi Road, Charsada.

Manschra-{slamic

Khata # 590, Khatooni ¥ 1138, Khasra # 940872702, Ghulam Ghes Hazervi Road Near Noor
College Manschra.

Larkana-Islamic

City Survey # 700, Taluka Larkana, Bank Square Larkana.

Khairpur-Tslamic

Plot # 6, Survey ¥ 193, New Abadl Deh Bhurgari, Taluke & District Khairpur.

Geggo Mandi Khewat No. 182, Khata Ne, 525 1o 529, Khasra no.6, Mian Delhi Mulian road, tehsil Burewala,
district vehari,
Dajal K

Grain market, vehari road, M Khewnat No.401/399, Khatooni no 472, Khasra No. 1402/3570, Vehari road near grain markel,

tehsl) ang district Mullan

Mailsi Khewat # 45/45, Khatooni # 202 10 220, Khesra # 87/2,5alim Khala # 508-13, Tehsil Mallsi,
Dislrict Vehari.

Rawat Khewst # 676 & 772, Khatooni # 1000, | 187, 1188, Khasra # 2375, 2372, 2373, 2374, Main GT
Road Rawat. Tehsii & Disirict Islamabad.

Shabgadar Mohalla Bahader Sher Komona Shabgadar Charsadda, Pakistan. Mohallsh Bahadur Sher Qila,
Post office Shabqedar, Tehsil Shabgadar, District Charsadda.

Dullaywala Khasra # 1460/ 4/1/2, Muza Dullewsla, Tehsil Darya Khan, District Bhakker.

1-8 Markez, Islamabad

Plot # 32, 1-8 Markaz, Islamabad.

F-11 Markaz, lslamabad

Plot # 9, Shop # 1, 12, 13, 14, F-11 Markez, [slamabad.

New Sabzi Mandi, Karachi

Bearing # 6, Block E, New Fruit & Vegelable, Super Highway Karachi.

PWD/Bahria Town - [slamab Plot # 1283, Hoor Plaza, Main Double Road, 09 Nationsl Police Foundation, Lohi Bher,

Islamabad.

Skardu Khate # 21/61 10 21/68, Khasra # 39, Mooze Sakmidaan, Skardu.

F-8 markaz, islamabad PTCL Revenue office, Johar Road, Near PSO Pump, F-8 Markaz [slamabad.

kamoki Khewat # 1095, Khatooni # 1163, Khata # 10730, Khasra ¥ 4428/861, Near National CNG slation,
Qpposite municipal corporation office, Gt Road, Tehsil Kamoki, District Gujranwala,

Battagram Khasra # 2917, / 1647, Oppusite Passport office, Tehsil and District Batiagram.

Timergara Shaheed Chowk, Near Publie Library, Bypass Road, Tehsil Timergarah, Distict Lower Dir.

Chitral-1slamic Village Bypass Road, Post office Chilral, Ataliq Bazar, Tehsil Chitral

Terig Road, Karachi

Plot # 152-8, Block # 2, PECHS Karachi.

1.I. Chundigar Road2, Karach Plot # SR-4, Survey # 4-1/B, situated 8t Serai Quarters, [.] Chandigarh Road Karechi.

26th Streel Badar Commercia Plot # 13-C, Street # 10, Shop # 1 & 2, Badar Commercial, DHA Phase 5 Karachi.

Joher Town, Lahore

Plot # 433, Block G-1, M.A Road, Johar Town, Scheme, Lahore.

Ferozepur Road-Lahore

K hewat # 1969, Khatooni # 3665, Khasia # 16, Main Ferozepur Road, Lahore.

Nowshere Vikran

Moti Masjid, Tallay Aali Road, Tehsll Nowshera Vikran, District Gujranwala

Sukkur-Islamic

City Survey 1712-B, Station Road, Sukkur.

Quena-Islamic

Main Surj Gunj Bazar, Quetta.

Heir Branch Bedian Road, Ls Khewat # 4, Khatooni # 20, Khasra # 3164, Wagia Ragba Hudbastaa, Moza Heer, Heir Branch

Bedian road, Tehsil Cantt, Disirict Lahore.

Khyban-e-ltichad Phasc §

Plol # 15-C, Phase # 2, EXT.Khyban—¢-llichad, DHA Karachi. .!R}
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Dhoraji Shop ¥ 1, 2 & 3 Ground Fleor, Sana Complex, Block 7 & 8, C.P. & Berar Cooperative Housing
Society, Karachi.

Hub chowki Survey No 17, Linked Road Doda Goth, Moza Sakran, Tehsil Hub, District Lesbails.

Gawadar-Tsiamic Jennat Bazer, Opposite ZYBL Gawadar City, Gawadar.

Jodia Bazar Sheet # NP-12, Survey # 62, Premises § GA3, 1/1, 172, 2/1, 272, 1/1-A, G/, Gi2 & GI2-A, situsted

. at Napier Quarters, Jodia Bazar, Karachi.

Behadurabad Shop # 2, Survey Sheet # 35-P/1, Survey # SNCC-J, Karachi Cooperative Housiog Society Unien

Ltd, Karachi.

Gulberg Green, Isiarmabad  Sarenc Heights, Gulberg Greens, Islamabad.

Baharkahu Branch, Istamabe Khewat 321 Khateoni & 466, Khasra # 1661/1033, Baharkahu, [slamabad.

G-11 Markaz, [siamabad Plot # 01, G-11 Markaz, Islamabad.

Mirpur Bathoro, Sujawal Plo/Survey No. 168-169, Tando Muhammad khan, Sujawal Road, Mirpur Bathoro, Taluke
Batoro, Disu, Thetta,

Pir Jo Goth, khairpur Ward A # 2243, Mohalla Chatti pur, Pir Jo Goth, Taluka Kingri, District Khairpur.

College Road Braneh Townst Shop # 34/1, Black - A, Main College Road PCSIR Staff Society Lahore.

Mughalpura Branch, Lahore Khatooni # 272, Khatooni # 529, Khasra # 11, Main Kens} Road, 2 Mughelpura Lahore.

Ali Garden View Branch, Be« Khewat & Khalooni # 1, Khasra # 58, situated at Main Bedian Road, Near Ali view Garden,

Lahore.
Chone Walg, Bhawalpur Chona Wsla,Chak # 16], Murad PO Box Khaas, Tchsi! Haslipur, Distrlct Bahawalpur,
Central Park, Lahore Plot # COM-0054, Block-B, Central Park Housing Scheme, Ferozepur Road, Lahore.
Krrui Road, Tslamabad Khewat # 633, Khatooni # 750-754, School Stop, Tarlai Kalan, Islamabad.
B-17, Isiamabad Plot # 37, Ground Floor, Bloek A, Multi Gardens, Scetor B-17, Extended Area, Zone-|l,
Islamabad.

Head Rajkan, Bahawalpur  Khewst ¥ 25/51, Khatooni # 21010 217, Chak # 35, DNB, Tchsil Yazman, District Bahawalpur.

Clifion Branch Karachi Plot #F- 101, Block 07, Clifion, Karachi.

Sabzi Mandt Branch, Islamat Plot No. 354-355, F & V Markey, Sector I-1 /4, [slamabed.

T-Bloek Branch, DHA Lzhor Plot # 000061, CCA Phase 2C, T Biock, DHA phase 2, Lahore,

G-§ Branch, Islamabad PTCL CMC Office, G-8 Markaz, Islamabad.

Khurrisnwalz, Faisalebad ~ Khewat # 4003, Khatooni # 1362, Khasra # 99, 4722, 4729/ & 4730, Makowana Road, Faisalabad.

Safgarabad Branch Khewat # 174, Khatooni # 242 to 251 Near Gali Sharif Muiteni Wali Safdargbad, Tehsil
Safdarabad, District Sheikhupura.

Rahwali, Gujranwala Khatooni 3365, Khewat 2271, Khasra No. 2118, Oppositc Fazal Center, Main G T Road Rahwali.

Walion Road, Lahore Khewat # 1, Khatooni 227,Khasra # 2287/251, Zamen Colony, Main Walion Road, Mouzs
Kourey, Walton Cantt,Lahore.

Malir Branch, Karachi Plot No. A-33/423, Kala Board, Malir Colony, Karachi.

Sabzi Mandi, Mullan 87-D Shah Ruken Alam Colony Multan, Tehsil & District Multan.

Balakot Khasra No 1887 Police Market, opposite Balakot police station, Kaghan Road Balakot,

Dera Ismail Khan-islamic ~ Plot # 13, Sorvey # 68, Circular Road, Dera Ismei] Khan Cantt

Faisalabad-Isiamic Quarter # 408, Block C.F.G, in STS/ADS, Wagaia Jinngh Colony, Androon Hadood Committee,
Faisalabad,

Siaikot- Jslamic Khewat # 600, Khatooni # 761, Khasra # 847, Shahaabpura Road Sialkot, Pakistan

Rawalpindi-islamic B-1000, 4th Road, Sateltite Town, New Town Police Station Road, Rawstpindl.

Sarpodha-Isiamic Khewst 3 266, Khalooni # 278, Kitla/ Khasra # 21/2, Square # 32, Chak 4 46/NB, Lahore Road,
Sarpodha

Multan-Istamic Property Unil No. 3626/)iSH, Ward No. VTl M (P-1V) Azmal Wasil Rosd Multen, Pakistan

Brhawalpur-lsiamic Khewat # 267, Khatoond # 626, House #406/C Sateflite Town, Bahawalpus, Pakislan

Sadigabad-[slamic Khewat # 167/162, Knasra # §7/3249, Khatooni # 768, Kacha Shahi Road, Tehsi] Sadigabad
District Rahim Yar Khan

Nawabshah-lslamic Ward B, Mohni Bazasr, Nawahshah, Pakistan

Hyderabad-Islamic Thand) Serak, PTCL Exchange, Hyderabad. . (\ *tg?\
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FAIR VALUES

Aecounting closslilcotion and taly values

The faliowing ably shows tha catrying ampunts and fair valuas of financial assots end finoncis! liabikiies, including thair levola in the fair valua hiorarchy. It doos not inctuda falr valua information for lioancisl asseis and tingneial kabflifies not rossured at
Init valua il tha cainpng amount is a reasonable eppraximaiion of fair value.

On-belanca sheot finonclal Inttrumonts

31_Cecambar 2022

Fnanclal assais mamaurad at fair value
|nvastmanis - nal of provisions

Fnancial acsais rot mogsured st falr voluo
Cash gnd cagh aquivslenis

Langtng to linanclal institution

m 1s - nol of provisians

Advencts - net af provisians
Othar assots

Fanncial [labilHes not mesured et lair villua

Depasita end ather accounts
Barrowangs

Subordwnated deht

Other Eahifities

Note

A

b ]

10
V24342

Jaa

Caryylng amount Feir value
Fair velua Amorikzed cost Falr vaius Total Level 1 Lavat2 Levall Total
through through othar :
profit or comprahenaha
lgza Income
Rupees Rupess
95.882,293.339 - J15.952,767,999 131.640.063339 131.640.063.238 - - 121,840,083,338
8.728.460.449 . - 2,728,400, 449 . . - .
6,581567,250 8,581,507,.280
- 5,680,878,086 - 5,690,679,066 - - - -
59 261 992 959 . - §9,283,897.950 . - - -
1.918.762,148 - - 1.915,782,148 - - . -
716,512.911,808 5 690,678,066 . 82,203 693 872 - B . -

92200411122 J2200.411,722 -

- - 116,123,115,137 18123, 7E137 - - - -
- - 1.633.591,2686 1,813,591,288 - - - -
- - 3,414,992 350 3,414,842 350 - - - -

213,572,709 685 213.572.709.895 -
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Carrylng amount Fair valuo
0n.balanca shaot financisl instrrmants Fzlr volua Hold to Laans Availshle fersala . Other Tatal Laval1 Loval2  Lowald Total
through maoturity and i f!qlm:lll
proiit and racatvebim R Tlabilhlos
loss
31 Doepmhar 2021 Nata Rupoas  ~ ! . .. Rupaon
. - B AR TR
Finsnelal picots maeasured =t falr valua » 2 sR S
Investmanis - nol of provsions 9 12,082, 205.591 ) ?&73‘2.313.72 38.814 519.729 38814519773 - -« J8.814. 519,779
Finsnclal sasats not mossurod at falr valug 4
Cash and cash aounzlenty 29 - 10.023.835.262 10,023,835,262 -
Irvastmants - nat ol provsons 9 2.750,000,000 - 7,750,000,000 -
Acvanchs - nol of provisans 10 - - 34375729018 34,375,729,118
Oihar assals 127432 - - 10,021,350,519% - - 10,021 380 538 - .
7.750.000,000  54.470.965,119 - - 62,170,985 119 - . =

Financial llablihias rot mossured =t falr valug 344
Daposts and othac accounts 14 - - - . 55,000.769.635 55.000,269.695 - -
Borrowings 15 - . . - 26,680,886, 164 38.680.686.164 -
Subordinatad dobl L] - - - 1,728,820.000 1,798,920,000 -
Qthar labilties 174343 - - - 2.787.671.260 2.797,871,268 - - -

. - . 96,477,787.115 38,477.767,116 - - -

342 h excutdes advances Laxatan and invantary of ATM cards & siztianary.

343 lt excludes aoctued exponsas and warkars' walfaca fund payabla.

344 Tha Bank has not disciovad (be lor values for thaso financlsl sssols and financal labittes bacsusa their carrying amounty aca a roasarsbls approumation of fair vahy
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B FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

34.5 Interest / mark-up rate risk

Interest rale risk is the risk thal the value ol the financial instrument will fluciuate due 1o changes in the market
imerest rates. The Bank's interest rate exposure is low dug to the short-term nature of the majorily of business
transaclions. Interest rate risk is 2lso controlled through flexible credit pricing mechanism and varlable deposit
rates. Optimizalion of yield is achieved through the Bank’s investment strategy which aims on atlaining a balance
between yiald and liquldity under the strategic guidance of Assets and Liebllity Committee of Managerment
{ALCO}.

34.6 Credit risk

l Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fall 1o discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. The Bank’s credit risk is primarlly attributable to its advances and balances at banks.
The credit risk on liquid funds is limiled because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings.
The Bank has an elfective loan disbursemant and recovery monitoring system which allows it 1o evaiuate
I borrowers’ credit worthiness and identify potential problem !oans. A provision for loan losses is maintained as
s feguired by 1he Prudential Regulations. Investments are mainly in government saecurilies or other securities having
good credil rating. Maximum amount of financial assets which are subject to credit risk amount to Rs, 212,223

l million {2021: Rs. 100,177 million).

34.7 Ligquidlty risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk thal the Bank will not be able to raise funds to mest its commitments. At present, the bank
is not exposed 1o this risk as there is sulficient cash placed with various commaerciel banks &t the year end.

The Assets and Liability Managemem Committee {ALCO) of the Bank is responsible for the oversight of liguidity
managernent and meets on a monthly basis or more frequenlly, if required. The Bank's approach to liquidity
management is to ensure, as far as possible, 1hat it will always have suflicient liquidity to meet its lisbilities when
due, under both normal and stressed condilions. without incurring unaccepiable losses or risking sustained
damage 1o business franchises. A centrelized approach is adopted, based on an integrated frarmewoark
incorporating an assessment of all material known and expected cash flows and the availability of collateral which
could be used 1o secure additional funding if required. The frtamework entails caretul monitoring and control of the
daily liquidity position, and regular liquidity stress testing under a variety of scenarios. These encompass both
normal and stressed market conditions, including genera! market crises and the possibllity that access 1o markets
could be impacled by a suess event affecting soma pert of the Bank's business.

35 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3 35.1 The objeciive of managing cepital is 10 safeguard the Bank’s ability 1o continue as a going concern, so that it could
conlinue to provide adequate returns and benefits lo siakeholders by pricing products and services
cormmensurately wilh the level of risk. It is the policy o the Bank to maintain 3 strong capital base so as (0
maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and 10 sustain tuture development of the business. The impact
ol the level of capital on shareholders’ return is also recognised and the Bank recopnises the need to mainten a
balance belween the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the adventages and security

al{orded by a sound capital position.

35.2 The Bank's objectives when menaging its capital are:

- To sateguard 1he Bank's ability to continue s 8 going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

- To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business, ! a\x

l - To comply with the capital requirements set by the SBP.
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35.3 Statutory minimum capital requirement and management of capital

36

36.1

36.2

As per amenidments on Prudential Aegulations (A-1) ssced wde BPAD Circular No. 16 of 2015 dated 3 June 2015, the minimum paid
up capital requrement IMCRY, free of losses lor Miciofinance Banks operating at nationai level 1s Rs. 1,000 rmilkon as at 31 Decamber
2022. As of 31 Decamber 2022, 1he net eguily of the Bank stood at Rs. 7,100 million (2021: Rs 7.491 million).

The capital of the Bank s managed keeping in wew the minmum CAR (15%} 1aquired by the Prudential Regulations for Microfinance
Banks / Institulions. The adequacy ot the camital 15 1ested with reference to the nsk-werghted assels ot the Bank. The calculguon of
capral adequacy enables the Bank 10 assess the long-ierm soundness. As the Bank conducts business on a wide area network basis.
it 15 ¢iiical that Bank continuously romlor the exposure Bcross the entire organization

The Bank manages s capital sirucluie and makes adjusimenis (o 1 in ight of lhe changes n regulatory and economic conditions. In
order 10 maintain or adjust the capita! structure, the Bank may adjus: the return on capital ta sharehotders o 1ISSU8 Neww shares.

As al 31 December 2022, the Bank’s Capual adequecy talio {CAR) was appropuately 18.25% (202): 18.50%} of its waeighted
exposure, 3s against the minimum reguiement of 15% prescntsd oy SBP. The Bank has applied ranstional arrangement 1ssued by
State Bank of Pakistan wia BPRD circular no 3 of 2022 in compuung its capital agequacy ratio had the transilional arrangement not
been applied the capital adequacy ratio of the Bank would have been 9.38% as at 31 December 2022,

AEMUNERATION OF PRESIDENT/CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
President /  Diractors Executives President / Direclors Executives
Chiaf Chuaf
Executive Executive
Rupees Rupses

Fee - 4,150,000 . 3,750.000 -
Managernal rermunerauon 19,248,704 - 258,188,082 77,186,341 - 177,928,092
Bonuz 16,708,944 - 64,489,330 17.250.166 - 44,196,912
Gratuity fund 1,604,059 . 22,380,794 1,432.195 - 14,905,624
Providens fund 1,539,900 . 20,132,137 1.374.907 - 11,758,903
Rent and house mantarance 11,228,411 . 156,443,047 10,025,365 . 103,298,065
Utilitioy 1,604,059 - 22,349,008 1,432,199 - 14,756,867
Medical 653,835 - 14,828,691 18,674 - 9 558,974
Conveyance 1.440,000 - 51.366,989 1.200.000 - 28,467,458
Others 5,615,476 - 23,985,136 3.983.067 - 15,719,499
Total 58,643,488 4,150,000 544,173,214 53.932.914 3.750.000 420,590,394
Numbe! ¢f pgrsonl(s) 1 B 116 1 B g2

Executive means an employes whose annual basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.20 million (2021: Rs 1.20 million} during the yead.

Bank rmainteined vehicles are alsa provided 10 the chigl execulive olticer and 5ome ol the exaculives as per their entitlement; tha nat
book values of which are Rs. 48.071 millan {2021: Rs 73.505 milkon).

tNo remuneration and other benefits wese paid 1o directors of the Bank. An amount of Rs. 4,150,000 {2021: Bs. 3.750.000) was paid 1o
the independent directors for attending the Board / sub commuitiee meenngs. q\q
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36 SCHEDULE OF MATURITY DISTRIBUTION OF MARKET RATE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Market rate assets
Advances
Invesiments
Lending to financial institunion
Other earning assets
Balances with other banks - deposit accounts
Total market rate assets

Other non-earning assets
Cash in hand
Balances with SBP and NBP - current accounts
Balances with other banks - current accounts
Operating fixed assels
Other assels

Deferred tax asset
Total non-aarning assats

Total assets

Market rate llabilities

Large ume deposits above 8s. 100,000
Alt other time deposits (including fixed rate deposits)
Other cost bearing Seposils
Borrowings including subordinated debt
Total market rate liabilities

Qther non-cost beering liabilitias
Deposits
Other liabilitigs
Total non-cost bearing liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets

Total

Up to one month

Over one month
up to six months

Over six months
up to one year

Over one year

Rupees

59,283.983,959
137,330,841,404
6,581,567,250

593,874,148

5,314,490,653
131,640,063,338
6,581,667,250

593,874,148

15,967,360,632

23,586,253,492

14,405.,889.175
5,690,878,066

203,790,376,761

144,129,995,389

15,967,360,632

23,596,253,499

20,096,767,241

1.640,403,221 1.640,403,221
5,811,929,368 5,811,929,368

682.281,712 682.281,712 - - -
4,763,987,510 B1.943,926 409,719,630 491,663,556 3.780,660.398
1,997,370,695 166,447.558 332,895,116 499,342,674

2,609,783,540

998,685,347
2,609,783,640

17.505,756,046

8,383,005,785

742,614,746

991,006,230

7,389,129,285

221,296,132,807 152,513,001,174 16,709,975,378 24,587,259,729 27,485,896,526
26.699,813,637 2,667,718.789 11.438,039.231 11,326,637,137 1,367.518,380 |
79,804,612 3,115,000 19,631,500 30,627,312 26.530,800
59,228,346,865 59,228,346,865 -

117,957,306,423

85.540,734.201

97,858.,266,190

3,817,531,989

10,321,927,227

203,965,271,437  147.339,914,855  109,315,936,921 15,174,596,437 11,715,976,408
6,192.446,108 6,192,446,108 R - }
4,038,262,247 3.931.756.913 106.505,334
10.230,708,355 10,124,203.021 106,505.334 - -
214,195,979,792 _ 157,464,117,876 _ 109,422,442,255 15,174,596,437 11,715,976,408
7,100,153,015 (4,951,116,702) __ {92,712.466,877) 9.412,663,291

15,769,920,118 Es‘t\
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36 SCHEDULE OF MATURITY DISTRIBUTION OF MARKET RATE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Over one month Over six months
Total Up to one month up to six months up to one year Over one year
Rupees
Market rate assets
Advances 34,375,729,318 530,360,866 9.,518,285,480 18,114,830,014 8.212,252,858
Investments 46,564,519,779 12,969,7186,203 27,838,117.331 491,985,000 5,264,701,245
Other parning assats
Balances with other banks - depesit accounts 6,211,518,698 6,211,518,698 - - -
Total markat rate assets 87,151,767.,796 19,711,595,867 37,356,402,811 16,606,815,014 13,478,954,103
Other non-earning assets
Cash in hand 808.663,563.0 B0B.663,5G3 - - .
Balances with SBP and NBP - cunent accounts 2.,991,267.287.0 2,991,267,287 - -
Balances with ather banks - current accounts 12,385.714.0 12,385,714 - - -
Operating fixed assats 2,886,170,227.9 15,988,000 77,790,000 118,802,000 2,673,590,228
Other assets 10,050,683,152.0 664,069,593 3.099.303,837 3.113,880,551 3,273,589,1 1
Daferred tax assat 677,447,619.0 - - - §77,447,619
Total non-earning assets 17,426,517,5683 4,392,364,157 3,177,083 ,837 3,232,462,551 6,624 597,018
Total asgats 104,678,285,368 24,103,960,024 40,533,496,648 19,839,277 565 20,101,551,121
Market rate liabilitles
Large time deposits above Rs. 100,000 20,134,642.321 3,927,985,466 11,416,643,030 3.526,887,066 1.263,126,693
All other tima depesits (including fixed rate deposits} 145,684,312 8,485,000 36,743,000 41,874,500 80,581,812
Other cost bearing deposits 30,892,674,901 30,892,674,901 - - -
Borrowings 38,679,606,184 17,472,353,500 1,685,833,965 B8,995,136.173 10,526,282,526
Total market rate llabilitles 89,852,607,698 52,299,498,867 13,139,220,06% 12,563,897,739 11,848,991,037
Othet non-cost baaring labllities
Deposits 3,827,288,161 3,827,288,161 - . i
Othar liabllities 3.407,296,747 3,324,804,924 82,491,823 - -
Total non-cost baaring Habilities 7,234,584,908 7,162,093,085 82,491,823 - -
Total liabilitles 97,087,192,606 59,451,591,952 13,221,711,878 12,563,897,739 = 11,849,991,037
Nat assats 7,491,092,752 {35,347,631.928) 27,311,784,770 7.275,379.026 8,2651,560,084

YRR
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RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The Bank 1s a subsidiary of Pakisian Telecommunicauor Company Liruted (the Parent Cempany’ Therefore all
subsiciaries and associated undertakings of the Parent Company are related panies of the Bank. Othar ralated parties
comprise of directors, key management personnei, entities over which the Bank has significant influence, entities having
common cirectors and entues cver which the directors are able to exercise significant influence and employees
retirement benetfit funds. Detail of transactions during the year and balances outstanding as at the reporting date are as

follows:

Transactions Note

Pakistan Telecommunication Company Limited (Parent Company}

Internet and connectivily charges expense

Utiities expense

Utlity Bill collected on behalf of the Parent Company

Payment in regards to ulility bills collecied on behalf of the Parant Company
Utiity Bill collecuion charges

Fayment for administrative costs and fixed assets

Interest expense on TIER-N subordinaied debt

Payment of interest expense on TIER-1I subordinated debt

Interest expense on deposis

Associated Company - Pakistan Telecommunication Company Limited GF Fund
Intesest expense on PTCL employee GP fund
Associated Company - Pak Telecom Mcbile Limaed (PTML}

Internet and conneclivity charges expense

Uulines expense

Payrment tor administrative costs and fixed assels

Payment against branchless banking and bills coliected

Amount receved agains! reimbutsement of agent's commission

Associated Company - Pakistan Telecommunicalion Employees trust {PTET}
Interest expense on deposits
U Microfinance Bank Limited Employees’ prowident fund

Contribution to prowident fung 26

U Microhnance Bank Limined Employees’ gratuity fund

Pavment to gratwty fund 17.3.1C
Balances
Pakistan Telecommunication Company Limited (Parent Company}

Deposns 14.2

Interest payable on deposits 173

Payable against utility bitls collected 17

Uty bills collection charges receivable 12
Pakistan Telecommunication Company Limied Gratuity fund

Deposits 13.3
Pakislan Telecommun-cauon Company Limited G Fund

Denosits 14.2

2022
Rupees

35,617,700
483,550
205,460,478
206,460,478
760,436
84,258,457
184,491,289
184,491,289

9,786,541

6,168,845
32,912,410
154,026,005
188,178,801
188,179,807

38,141,612
56,023,322

80,568,301

580,589,254

3,725.882
643,315

1,664,946,347

1,290,587,073

20N
Rupees

48,468,957
590,361
107.767.02)
107,767,021
348,552
136,068,898
209,377,129
209,377,129

204,103,258

3.267,378
20,206,393
65,439,874

2 ,558,453
118,493,199
42,448,326
38,923.143

210,119,988

1.157.052
643.313

1.402,181,868

1.120,339,584

i
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1)
2)
3)
4)
51
6l
7]
8
9)
10)

38

Batances

Interes? payabie on deposus - PTCL Employees’ GP Fund
Associated Company - Pakistan Telecommunication Employees Trust

Deposis
Interast payable on deposits

Associated Company - Pak Telecom Mobile Limited {(PTML)

Deposits
Payable sgainst branchiess banking and biis collecied
Interes1 payable on Geposns

Associated Company - Pak Telecom Mobile Lirited [PTML} gratuity fund
Deposits
U Microtinance Bant Limited Employees’ provident fund

Deposits
interest payable on deposits
Payable/lRecevable) from provident fund

U Microfinance Bank Limitad Employees’ graluity fund

Deposits
Interast payable or deposits
Pavable/{Recewvable} from Gratuty lund

Note

14.2
171

142
17
171

14.2

14.2
173
7

142
171
17.3

2022
Rupees

6,293,340

2,000,000,000
8,838,064

1,110,000

22,224,150
557,211

694,317,179

115,774,413
1,291,803
{2,376,025)

124,640,272
1,433,458
[16,733,389)

Following are parlicu ars of related parties of the Bank with therr respectve shareholoing :

Name Basis of relationship Share
Mr. Burak Sevilengul DicectorfChairman 01
Mr. Nadeern Khan Director 01
Mr. Mohained Essa Al Tahen Director 03
Mr. Muhammad Aqueel Abbas Malit Director 01
M. Tarig Mohar Director 02
Mr. Munammad Jahgnzeb Rahim  Duecior egl
Ms. Misbah Nagw Director 01
Dr. Rameez Khalg Direclor

Mr. Kabeer Nagw Directot/CED -
PTCL Parent Company 508,571, 421

COMPLAINTS MANAGEMENT MECHANISM

The Bank 15 a customer orniented organization and gives due consideration 1o the valuable feedback of s customers.
Complaints are vealed as opportunity 10 ahan our products/services and srocesses 10 serve the customers In a best
possible way., A Complaints Resoilution Unit [CRU) has been established in the Bank »n ine with apphcable regulatory
requirement and Banx’s own policy drive. The Unit 15 equipped with Compiaints Management System (CMS) to record,
escalate and resolve complaints receved 1hiough available channels. Al cails/complaints are recorded in Complaints
Managsment System against @ unigue tickel number and acknowledged 1o the cuslomer {or tracking Its resolution.
Scenario tased work codes are embedded in 1he system with the escalation matrix. Penodic reviews are aiso conducted
and results are shated wilth the management for ther information. Duly approved Complaints Rescluton and Financial
Consumer Protection Policries are in place to protect the rights and interests of 1the customers, During the year 61,419
{2021: 37.455) complaints were received by the Bank and were resolved with average resolution time of 76.65 hours

‘\[f\‘\\?\

{2021: 107.88 hours}.

202
Rupees

3.021,588

1.928,187,807
9,250,788

23,014,161
66.,190.908
324,723

500,002,795

221,405,264
2,240.201
154,137

153,632,357
1.555,398
3,404,005

Percentage of shareholding

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.09%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
99.99%

W
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391

40

GENERAL

Captions, as prescribed by BSD Circular No. 11, dated 30 December 2003 issued by SBP, in respect of which there are
no amounts, have not been reproduced in these financial statements, except for the captions of the balance sheet and
profit and loss account and for presentational changes due to adoption of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’.

DATE OF APPROVAL

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank in their meeting held on

g et

CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR




U MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASSETS

Cash and Balances with SBP and NBP

Balances with Other Banks/NBFIs/MFBs Investment- net of provisions
Islamic Financing and related assets - net of provisions

Operating Fixed Assets

Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and other accounts
- Current accounts

- Saving accounts

- Term deposits

Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY:
Islamic Banking Fund

Unappropriated Profit

Annexure |
Page | of 7

2022
Rupees

939,384,133
3,892,205,279
600,561,361
147,194,039
35,848,252

5,615,693,064

514,172,119
3,222,159,031
76,902,500

3,813,233,650

1,560,475,321
5,373,708,970

241,984,094

200,000,000
41,984,094

241,984,094




U MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Profit / return earned
Profit / return expensed
Net Profit / Return / income

Provision against Non-performing financing
Bad debts written off directly

Net Return earned after provisions

Other income

Fee, commission and brokerage income

Total Other Income

Other Expenses
Administrative expenses

Extra ordinary / unusual items
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Annexure [
Page 2 of 7

2022
Rupees

277,862,580
(24,630,254

253,232,326

(6,378,923)

(6,378,923)

246,853,403

1,647,325
19,198,496

267,699,223

(218,640,556)

49,058,668

49,058,668
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As at the year end, the Bank is operating 30 Islamic branches. Islamic Microfinance Division (IMD) is operating a Generat pool and Special Pool to
manage profit and loss distribution

FEATURES OF GENERAL POOL

In this pool, savings and terms deposits are accepted on Mudarbah basis. The Bank invests the funds given by account holders in Istamic assets like
Murabaha, Salam,Diminishing Musharakah, Sukuks and any other Shariah Compliant Investment which are duly approved by the Shariah Advisor. The
profit earned is shared on the basis of profit & loss sharing ratio. In case of loss, the same is bome by the depositors in proportionate to their investment
and the bank bear the loss of its efforts services in managing Mudarabah

The profit of the pool is calculated from the income earned on all the remunerative assets booked by utilizing the funds from pool and is distributed
between bank and depositors based on declared sharing ratio. The ratio for Bank (mudarib) and depositors is 50:50 for general pool.

As per policy of the Bank, weightages are declared three days before start of each month. Gifl (Hiba) given during the current peried Rs 1,082,777,

Brief highlights of profil eamed and distributed 1o depositors and retained by IMD are as under:

2022

Note —Rupees——
Gross income / profit 85,319,952
Administrative expenses of pool (10,003,280)
Net distributable share 75,316,712
Profit paid 1o PLS accounts/ Certificates 7,771,700
Bank equity share 61,938,865
Bank Mudanb Share 5,606,146
Total 75,316,711
Return on average earming assels 13.77%
Return on average PLS / Deposits 9.10%

All types of direct administrative expenses of General pool are shared with the depositors. However, cquity holders have the option to absorb all or part of
administrative expenses. All peneral and specific provisions ercated against non-performing financing and diminution in the value of investment as under
Prudential Regulations and other SBP directives have not been passed on 1o the PLS depositors.

FEATURES OF SPECIAL POOL

In this pool, savings and terms deposits are accepted on Mudarbah basis. The Bank invests the funds piven by account holders in Islamic assets like
Murabaha, Salarn,Diminishing Musharakah, Sukuks and any other Shariah Compliant Invesument which are duly approved by the Sharish Advisor. The
profit earned is shared on the basis of profit & loss sharing ratio. In case of loss, the same is bomnc by the depositors in proportionate to their investment
and the bank bear the loss of its efforts services in managing Mudarabah

The profit of the pool is calculated from the income eamed on &ll the remunerative assets booked by utilizing the funds from poot and is distributed
between bank and depositors based on declared sharing ratio.

Gifl (Hiba) given during the current peried Rs 256,542

2022
Note ----Rupees-—-
Gross income / profit 7,926,734
Adminisurative expenses of pool -
Net distributable share 7,926,734
Profit paid to PLS accounts/ Certificates 7,239,356
Bank equity share 97,571
Bank Mudarib Share 589,807
Total 7,926,734
Return on average eaming assels 16.39%

Return on average PLS / Deposits 15.92%



A-1

ISLAMIC FINANCING AND RELATED ASSETS-NET
Murabah financing

Salam financing

Diminishing Musharaka

Less: Provisions held against non-performing facilities

Note

A-2.1
A-22
A-23

Annexure |
Page 4 of 7
2022
-—Rupees—

458,313,131
144,636,278
3,990,875

606,940,284
(6,178.923)

600,561,361



A-2.1

A-22

A23

Murabaha

Murabaha financing - net
Deferred income
Gross investment in murabaha financing

MNet book value of Salam assets

Asset acquired under Salam
Accumulated depreeiation on Salam

Diminishing Musharaka

Diminishing Musharaka investment
Net Asscts - Investment in Musharaka

Annexure |
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2022
Not later than one year later than one year but not  later thap three year but Later Than Five year and Total
later than three years not later than five years Onward
Rupee
283,916,601 168,017,607 - - 451,934,208
9,791,580 4,469.516 - - 14,261,096
293,708,181 172,487,123 - 466,195,304
2022
later than one year bot not  later than three year but Later Than Five year and
Notlater than one year later than three years not later than five years Onward Total
Rupee
144,636,278 - - 144,636,278
7,459,721 - - - 7,459,721
152,095,999 - - 152,095,999
2022
Not later than one year later than one year but not  later than three year but Later Than Five year and Total
later than three years not later than five years Onward
Rupee
- - 1,990,875 2,000,000 3,990,875
- - 1,990,875 2,000,000 3,990.875




A-3

A-4
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MATURITY PROFILES OF FUNDS
Maturity profile of funds mobilised under various modes:
2022
Upto T month Over 1 month  QOver 3 month  Over 6 month Over 1 year  Over 2 year uplo Total
upto 3 months upto 6 months upto 1 year upto 2year 3 vear
Term accounts 1,000,000 1,800,000 15,010,000 59,092,500 76,502,500
Saving accounts 3.222,159.031 3,222,159,031
3,222,159,031 1,000,000 1,800,000 15,010,000 - 59,092,500  3,299,061,531

Sectors of economy/business where Mudarbah based deposits have been deployed:

All earning assets of Islamic banking group are jointly financed by Unrestricted Investments/PLS deposits account holders and the Bank. Detail of
jointly financed gross earning assels arc:

2022
—-Rupees—--

Agri business 143,936,200
Livestock and Dairy farming -
Micro enterprises 462.960,103

606,896,303
Mutual Fund 1,699,233,724
Private -Sukuk 1,192,971,555
GOP ljarah Sukuk 1,000,000,000

4,499,101,582
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U MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Financial results of the Islamic Microfinance Division, as referred to in note 2.2 of the
financial statements, Statement of Sources and Uses of Charity Fund for the year ended
December 31, 2022

2022
Rupees

Opening balance
Additions during the period

- Received from customers on delayed payments 59,580
- Non-Shariah compliant income -
- Profit on charity account -
- Others

59,580

Payments/ utilization during the period 2

Closing Balance 59,580
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